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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. HUANG Xianzhi (Chairman)
Mr. LIN Zhaoyang
Mr. WANG Benlong

Non-executive Directors

M. OU Guogiang
Mr. OU Guowei

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mzr. LOKE Yu (alias LOKE Hoi Lam)
Mr. SHEN Guoquan
Mr. WANG Chuanxu

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mzr. LOKE Yu (alias LOKE Hoi Lam) (Chairman)
Mzr. OU Guowei
Mr. WANG Chuanxu

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. HUANG Xianzhi (Chairman)
Mr. WANG Chuanxu
Mr. SHEN Guoquan

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. WANG Chuanxu (Chairman)
Mr. HUANG Xianzhi
Mr. SHEN Guoquan

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. TAN Mingheng
Ms. KWONG Yin Ping Yvonne (FCIS, FCS)
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AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. HUANG Xianzhi
Mr. LIN Zhaoyang

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young

COMPLIANCE ADVISOR

Guotai Junan Capital Limited

PRINCIPAL BANKS

Bank of China
Shanghai Branch

Bank of China

Fujian Province Branch

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Shanghai Branch

COMPANY'’S WEBSITE

www.zhenrodc.com

STOCK CODE
6158

4 #t Annual Report 2017

3



4

2 ] B R

Corporate Information

P 5 T I 3 B 2l ) O e

R A

Walkers Corporate Limited
Cayman Corporate Centre
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Walkers Corporate Limited
Cayman Corporate Centre
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George Town
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CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR

AND TRANSFER AGENT
Walkers Corporate Limited

Cayman Corporate Centre
27 Hospital Road

George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-9008

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE IN CAYMAN ISLANDS
Walkers Corporate Limited

Cayman Corporate Centre
27 Hospital Road
George Town

Grand Cayman
KY1-9008

Cayman Islands
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HEAD OFFICE IN THE PRC

28/F Gubei International Fortune Center II
1438 Honggiao Road

Changning District

Shanghai, PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

18/F, Tesbury Centre
28 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai

Hong Kong
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Zhenro Properties Group Led. 1E 4% b & B R A 7

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. HUANG Xianzhi (#{lI4%), aged 49, was appointed as the executive
Director of Zhenro Properties Group Limited (A58 4 A PR 7))
(“Company”, “Our Company”, “we” or “us”, together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”) and the chairman of our Board on September 20, 2017. Mr. Huang
is primarily responsible for the overall management of the investment strategies
and business development of our Group. He has over 19 years of experience
in the PRC real estate industry. Mr. Huang graduated from Jimei Advanced
Specialized Institute of Finance and Economics (535 B8 % HRHEEAL)
in Fujian Province, the PRC in July 1989, where he majored in Investment
Economics. He also obtained a master’s degree in business administration
from The Open University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong in November 2012.
Mr. Huang obtained the qualification as an accountant in December 1997 as

certified by the Ministry of Personnel of the PRC ( H 3 A\ R AL A ZH5).

From October 1998 to October 2014, Mr. Huang served various positions
in Zhenro Group Co., Ltd. (EZEEHRAF) (formerly known as Fujian
Zhenro Group Co., Led. (HEEIEEEBARAFA)) (“Zhenro Group
Company”), including the chief financial officer, the assistant to the chief
executive director, the vice president primarily responsible for financial
affairs and the executive vice president where he was responsible for overall
management, consecutively. He has been a director and president of Zhenro
Group Company since November 2014. Mr. Huang has served as an executive
director and chairman of the board of Zhenro Properties Holdings Company
Limited (1F 4% Hb 72 #5243 7 BR /A 7] ) (“Zhenro Properties Holdings”)

since December 2015.



N A B R

Biographies of the Directors and Senior Management

ZERNETH > BEAERE A S &R
AR B B2 A 25 g A 9T 2008 4F B b
BEBBERIA |, —F——4F+ 1>
WA v B A R I AR T 2011 B AR
G AR AW 198 B —FAELA
0 78 B 5 o % Jre O 9T AP AR BE R AT T~ T
e KL HbEE BF 5T T B o R 4 OO 5 e
AR 2015 I Sl EE SRR E RN ] -
TR -REZEA O WINE T B L E TOP
10 W 7 20 AH BE T 2016 7 B = b A o B K
Al e

WRE RS S > 475 > TR & —EAENA
oAb HERAL S AN A AT SR
T—HFENH A AR /A A AT
B o MR =T — N H —+\H
22 R I W e A7 AR - M B AR
A A [ R SE5 O ) B R SES A B o
T H 5 Ml EE AT S A L 19 AF AR - ARUE
FER — JUILTLAR £ SR B AR A 1Y
A ERLEAL BB E R o BOR
A AR A A PR S OB 5E
5 b 72 SRUIBRAT AR R AR AR o R %
TRFEN AP BAREE N FERERR A A
AR AL o

Mr. Huang was awarded “Outstanding Professional Manager in China for the
Year of 2008” (2008 4F-Ji H B3 1 i SE 48 #E N ) by China Human Resources
Management Annual Selection Committee (PN U AT A
A Z) in October 2008, and “Chief Accountant in China for the Year of
20117 (2011 " A @ 5T 2 A by China Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (B A€ FfitH € ) in December 2011. He was awarded “Figure
with Contributions to China Real Estate Brands in 2015 (2015 "' [5 J5 i
WA E A jointly by the Enterprise Research Institute of the Development
Research Center of the State Council (B b 5% AT 5L ‘L‘ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%}ﬁ),
Property Research Institute of Tsinghua University (1 % K 8 [ Hll 2 AF 50
1) and China Index Academy ( CUEEEY F%) in September 2015. He also
received “Top 100 Figures with Contributions to China Real Estate Industry
in 2016” (2016 H [ J7 #h & 38 B BK A YY) award from China Real Estate
TOP10 Research Group ("B 5 i TOP10 W72 4 ) in March 2016.

Mr. LIN Zhaoyang (BK[57), aged 47, was appointed as our executive Director
on June 27, 2017 and the chief executive officer of our Company on September
20, 2017. Mr. Lin was re-designated as joint Chief Executive Officer on February
28, 2018. Mr. Lin is primarily responsible for the overall business direction
and day-to-day business and management of our Group. He has over 19 years
of experience in the PRC real estate industry. Mr. Lin graduated from Putian
Advanced Professional College (7 H /5 % B2 RHEE AL ) in Fujian Province, the
PRC in July 1995, where he majored in financial accounting. He completed the
advanced courses for chief executive officers in real estate in Shanghai Jiao Tong
University in the PRC in May 2012. He obtained the qualifications as senior

economist in August 2007 as credentialed by the Department of Personnel of

Fujian Province of the PRC ( Gy TEE%)\%E%)
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From October 1998 to April 2005, Mr. Lin served as the vice general manager
of Zhenro Group Company. He then served as the general manager and the
chairman of the board of directors of Zhenro (Putian) Real Estate Development
Co., Led. (IE4E (75 H) BB R A TR ), consecutively, from April 2005
to March 2013. He served as the vice president primarily responsible for
investment affairs of Zhenro Group Company from April 2013 to March 2016
and the director of the same company from July 2013 to March 2016. Mr.
Lin has been an executive director and the chief executive officer of Zhenro

Properties Holdings since December 2015.

Mr. Lin is a member of the Sixth People’s Congress of Putian City (#j H T 5575
il AKAFR), the vice president of Real Estate Association of Fujian Province
(?E%%\Ei@%%@), the vice president of the Federation of Industry and
Commerce of Minhang District of Shanghai (T BAT I LR A )
as well as vice president of the Federation of Industry and Commerce of Putian
City (ﬁ? Hi T [} % Wt & @'). Mr. Lin is a councilor of China Real Estate
Association ("1 B [ Hi & 2 1 &), In October 2011, Mr. Lin was awarded
“Outstanding Professional Manager in China for the Year of 2011 (2011 4
FR R R ZE S P N, In March 2017, Mr. Lin was awarded “2017 China
Top 100 Real Estate Entrepreneurs” (2017 *1 B 5 i 2 /1 5@ A £ ERK A ).

Mr. WANG Benlong (Iﬂ:ﬁg), aged 42, was appointed as our executive
Director on March 28, 2018 and the joint chief executive officer on February
28, 2018. Mr. Wang is primarily responsible for the day-to-day business
operations, human resources matters, customer relationship matters and overall
administrative matters of our Group. Mr. Wang has been serving as the vice
president of our Company from September 20, 2017 to February 27, 2018. Mr.
Wang has also been serving as the vice president of Zhenro Properties Holdings
since January 2017, primarily responsible for the operation management
department, customer relationship department and comprehensive management
department. Mr. Wang has been assisting the president of Zhenro Properties
Holdings since July 2017 with respect to affairs of the human resources
department and has been a director of Zhenro Properties Holdings since
September 2017.
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Mr. Wang joined our Group in 2014 and has served a number of other positions
in the Company’s subsidiaries, including: (i) the general manager and then the
chairman of the board of directors of Zhenro (Tianjin) Real Estate Development
Co., Led. (IE4E (KHE) BEBERA WA A) from June 2014 to July 2016;
(ii) the general manager of Zhenro Sunan (Suzhou) Property Co., Led. (1IF2E#f
(M) B EBRRAT) from July 2015 to July 2016; (iii) the assistant
to the Chief Executive Officer of Zhenro Properties Holdings from May 2016
to January 2017; (iv) the manager in charge of our real estate business in
Beijing and Tianjin at Zhenro Properties Holdings from July 2016 to March
2017; and (v) the manager in charge of our real estate business in Zhengzhou at
Zhenro Properties Holdings from March 2017 to July 2017. Before joining our
Group, Mr. Wang worked in several property development companies in the
PRC including (i) the project general manager of Shanghai Longhu Real Estate
Co., Led. (LW FE W1 & 26 85 B A FR A 7) from February 2008 to August
2009; (ii) the general manager of Yancheng Zhongnan Century City Real
Estate Investment Co., Ltd. 8 3 e Al EE AR PR N A from
September 2009 to June 2011; (iii) the chief officer of the group engineering
center of Shanghai Penghui Property Development Co., Led. (- 1 i i & 3
A PR 2 7]) from July 2011 to January 2013 and (iv) the general manager of
Tianjin Jingshang Property Investment Co., Led. (K 5t i B E B & H R
A #l) from February 2013 till May 2014. Mr. Wang obtained his bachelor’s
degree in engineering majoring in management engineering from Tianjin
University (K K2) in Tianjin, the PRC in July 1999

Non-executive Directors

Mr. OU Guogqiang (BKE58), aged 33, was appointed as our non-executive
Director on September 20, 2017. He is the brother of Ou Guowei, who is also
our non-executive Director, and the son of Ou Zongrong, one of our controlling
shareholders. Ou Guoqiang is primarily responsible for providing strategic
advice and recommendations on the operations and management of our Group.
He has over 9 years of experience in the PRC real estate industry. Ou Guogiang
graduated from Peking University in Beijing, the PRC in July 2005, with a

bachelor’s degree in economics majoring in finance.

4 #t Annual Report 2017
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Ou Guogiang has been serving as an non-executive director of Zhenro Properties
Holdings since December 2015 and a director of Zhenro Group Company since
February 2012. He served as an executive director from November 2008 to
February 2010 and the chairman of the board of directors from March 2010 to
February 2012, in Fuzhou Shiou Properties Development Co., Led. (?EJ‘I‘IﬁEk
7 b 2E B EE A FR/A ), a real estate development company.

Ou Guogqiang is a member of the Fourteenth People’s Congress of Fuzhou City
(%EJ”FH%"HEEJ\j(ﬁ%‘:Z) He is also a councilor of Fujian Zhenro Public
Welfare Foundacion (fREE A IE 4/ %54 ). Mr. Ou received the “Fuzhou
May 4th Youth Medal” (4 /M % 4F F. V1 2% %) from the Communist Youth
League of Fuzhou Municipal Committee (357 B 5 M 12 ) and Fuzhou Youth
Federation (RN HFEH S E) in May 2013.

Mr. OU Guowei (lﬁk@lﬁi), aged 29, was appointed as our non-executive
Director on September 20, 2017. He is the brother of Ou Guogiang, who is also
our non-executive Director, and the son of Ou Zongrong, one of our controlling
shareholders. Ou Guoweti is primarily responsible for providing strategic advice
and recommendations on the operations and management of our Group. He has
over 9 years of experience in the PRC real estate industry. Ou Guowei graduated
from Shanghai Jiao Tong University ( [ 58% K 5L ) in Shanghai, the PRC in
February 2010, with a bachelor’s degree in economics majoring in international

economics and trade.

Before joining our Company, Ou Guowei served various positions in Nanchang
Zhenro (Singapore) Real Estate Co., Ltd. (FA B IEEE Comdk) BEEARAF)
(“Nanchang Real Estate”), including the chief officer of human resources from
October 2009 till November 2011, the general manager from December 2011
till February 2013 and the chairman of the board of directors from March 2013
till February 2014. He also served as the assistant to the chief executive officer
of Zhenro Group Company from March 2013 to March 2016 and has been a

non-executive director of Zhenro Properties Holdings since December 2015.
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Ou Guowei is the executive director of Shanghai Ronggu Venture Capital Co.,
Led. ( FIFEEREAIZER G A R/ A ), a subsidiary of Zhenro Group Company.
He is also the executive vice president of Fujian General Association of
Commerce in Jiangxi Province (VL PY AR &), the executive vice president
of Nanchang Putian Association of Commerce (¥ & H 75 &), a committee
member of Nanchang Youth Confederation (BT HFH A ), and the vice
president of Fujian Association of Commerce in Shanghai (iR e ).

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. LOKE Yu (alias LOKE Hoi Lam, FEH§#K), aged 68, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on December 15, 2017. He is primarily
responsible for providing independent advice on the operations and management
of our Group. Dr. Loke has over 41 years of experience in accounting, auditing
and corporate governance. Dr. Loke obtained a master’s degree in business
administration from the Universiti Teknologi Malaysia in Malaysia in April
2001 and a doctor’s degree in business administration from the University of
South Australia in Australia in March 2006.

Dr. Loke has been a Fellow of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales since January 1982, a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and The Hong Kong Institute of Directors since
April 2004, and a Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
since October 2013.
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Name of Entity

3 R AT B2 7]

Matrix Holdings Limited

S — AR A PR A

V1 Group Limited

Hh I RS 7 AR B 4 BT R R

China Beidahuang Industry
Group Holdings Limited

H 1 1 s A 36 4 T AT PR )

China Fire Safety Enterprise Group Limited

Zhenro Properties Group Led. 1E 4% b & B R A 7

i B B AR B

Place of Listing and Stock code

W =2 i (A58« 1005)

Stock Exchange (stock code: 1005)

Bt 32 Br (e AR5 - 82)

Stock Exchange (stock code: 82)

W 22 r (A58« 39)

Stock Exchange (stock code: 39)

W =2 r (A58« 445)

Stock Exchange (stock code: 445)

Dr. Loke was the sole proprietor of H.L. Loke & Co. and Loke Hoi Lam & Co.,
both Certified Public Accountants firms in Hong Kong, from February 1980
to April 1985 and from April 1990 to December 1991, respectively. He served
as a CPA partner in Loke & Heng from October 1984 to April 1985 and from
November 1989 to December 1990. From November 1989 to December 1991,
he served as the CPA partner of Baker Tilly, an accounting firm in Hong Kong,
from November 1989 to December 1991 and a CPA partner in Tse & Loke from
March 1993 to May 1996. Dr. Loke has been serving as the company secretary
of Minth Group Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 425) since June 2007. Dr.
Loke has been serving as the director of MHL Consulting Limited ( #5813
HIA PR H]) since September 2004. In addition, Dr. Loke currently holds or

had held directorship in the following listed companies:

TRk A B B i

Position and Period of Time

B - FEREILH =+ B ARS8
T THER

an independent non-executive director
since September 30, 2004

A-FLAELA L H R
FPATHE S

an independent non-executive director
since May 17, 2005

HERAAFENH 0 E RS
ST S

an independent non-executive director
since June 24, 2005

H TN\ H — B 57 ¢
YirHEFE

an independent non-executive director
since August 1, 2006
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Name of Entity

IKEEEEARAF

Winfair Investment Company Limited

e R 4R I A BR 2 )

SCUD Group Limited

P EA R T

Zhong An Real Estate Limited

PREBRRAE H A R 7]

Chiho Environmental Group Limited

KB R A PR 7]

Tianjin Development Holdings Limited

H I S P P AT PR

China Household Holdings Limited

REMTHEEARAF

Tianhe Chemicals Group Limited

i B B AR B

Place of Listing and Stock code

Wi 22 r (A58 ¢ 287)

Stock Exchange (stock code: 287)

Wi 52 T ORI 38 © 1399)

Stock Exchange (stock code: 1399)

W =2 r (A58 < 672)

Stock Exchange (stock code: 672)

Bt 32 Br (e A% - 976)

Stock Exchange (stock code: 976)

Wi 22 it (A58 ¢ 882)

Stock Exchange (stock code: 882)

Bt 32 Br (e A% = 692)

Stock Exchange (stock code: 692)

W 22 o (A58 ¢ 1619)

Stock Exchange (stock code: 1619)

Tk A B B i

Position and Period of Time

H ZR-LAEMH — F RS
TR

an independent non-executive director
since April 2, 2007

A FLIELA M H RS
FPATHE S

an independent non-executive director
since May 14, 2009

H ZZRIEANH =+ HRELE L
FHATER

an independent non-executive director
since June 30, 2009

HoF—REANH = HREEE
SLFPATE S

an independent non-executive director
since June 23, 2010

H o Z— 4+ 20 = — BT
WL PATE S

an independent non-executive director
since December 21, 2012

A =% — =4 A L H R AT S JE
YiTHEF

an independent non-executive director
since August 9, 2013

HOZ—AELA =+ — HRIBEE
SLIEHATE S

an independent non-executive director
since May 31, 2014

4 #t Annual Report 2017
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T

Name of Entity

S R IR AR

Mega Medical Technology Limited

MEELEA PR 7

Lamtex Holdings Limited

FH o] 8 22 B AT PR 23 )

Forebase International Holdings Limited

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International
Holding Company Limited

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International
Holding Company Limited

s B IR SBAT PR )

Hong Kong Resources Holdings
Company Limited

i B B AR B

Place of Listing and Stock code

W32 B (e AR - 876)

Stock Exchange (stock code: 876)

W52 BT OB 5% « 1041)

Stock Exchange (stock code: 1041)

W =2 i (A58 < 2310)

Stock Exchange (stock code: 2310)

Wi 58 T (RO 3%+ 3626)

Stock Exchange (stock code: 3626)

Wi 22 r (A58« 02882)

Stock Exchange (stock code: 02882)

Tk A B B i

Position and Period of Time

BoZ—MEANA - HRIE - F—+
F—Ht— BB LT HES
an independent non-executive director
from June 20, 2014 to January 11, 2017

H-F—HLFLH /N H BB
SLEPATE S

an independent non-executive director
since July 28, 2015

H = F—NEM A AN H RS A8
A THER

an independent non-executive director
since April 18, 2016

B F— NN AN B E T
SLEHATE E

an independent non-executive director
since April 26, 2016

HoZF—tFERH=1—H&EEE
ST S

an independent non-executive director
since May 31, 2017

TCBIRESE A > 530 M F —LFE T A
T H AT S A O S S JE AT
B 2 28 BT A AR B Y R O AR (I
SERE L o VRSEAR T B kA B A
WS B A7 080 19 AR KRB o 8 Bl — UL/ AR
A B JUIL=5E8 A A R 3 R EOA
B (B 3 REGE 2R ) IS A8k 22
B SR RE B o WLSEAEI — UL =4F I
A5 p v 1 )k S R A S e A R

Mr. SHEN Guoquan (VEBIH), aged 53, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on December 15, 2017. He is primarily responsible for
providing independent advice on the operations and management of our Group.
Mr. Shen has over 19 years of experience in the legal and financial regulatory
area in the PRC. He obtained both his bachelor’s degree and master’s degree
in economic law from East China College of Political Science and Law (33
BUAEEPE), now known as East China University of Political Science and Law
(FEFRETEKRE), in the PRC in July 1986 and June 1993, respectively. Mr.
Shen received his PRC Lawyer’s Qualification Certificate in 1993, issued by the
Ministry of Justice of the PRC.

Zhenro Properties Group Led. 1E 4% b & B R A 7
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TRSEAE B B ER R B E R N &
WFEL N E ETTZBENEE - It
AR ZEFFNES A E T LEN
HIAT P RS & R g R ITHF
ZREENWZAGZA - H - JLLILFIA
A > B — T ARy L T I R I A S T A
BEN o WA W B A SE I
B b T Y R

oy g

Name of Entity

ey 2 5 [ B A7 BR 2 )

Harbin Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd.

WKL BB B A PR 7]

Zhejiang Crystal-Optech Co., Ltd.

5 R B A R R

B}

East Money Information Co., Ltd

b 2 AR 4 A BR 2 )

Shanghai Xinhua Media Co., Ltd.

Mr. Shen is the arbitrator of Shanghai Arbitration Commission and a member of

the Fourth Listing Committee of Shanghai Stock Exchange. Mr. Shen served as a

committee member of the Issuance Examination Committee of China Securities
Regulatory Commission (4 B# % BB EHZE BB ITHEZ B ) from
December 2004 to April 2007. He has been the partner of Shanghai AllBright
Law Oftices (t/ﬁ?ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬂiﬁ%% since April 1999. In addition, Mr.

Shen currently holds or had held directorship in the following listed companies:

i S B AR B

Place of Listing and Stock code

¥R AE 5 B
(e LHE + 600664)
Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 600664)

UYIRE I7 38 5 Bt
(e fUa% : 2273)
Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(stock code: 2273)

TRINFE 528 5 B
(et AL5% + 300059)
Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(stock code: 300059)

B IRAEG r
(B R5E © 600825)

Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 600825)

Tk A 2 B ]

Position and Period of Time

R Y R RCLE
FZNEZHZ BB L ESH

an independent director from December
24, 2004 to February 3, 2008

BoFFLENAT HE F -
FEH A= HEEE

an independent director from April 12,
2007 to December 13, 2012

HoZFEZNEAAZTARESE
—WE—A S B ER I E S
an independent director from June 26,
2008 to January 21, 2014

HoFEAE A THE Z
G H I R

an independent director from February 20,
2008 to July 14, 2014

4 #t Annual Report 2017
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T

Name of Entity

AR Bk A AR AR AT R )

Beijing Hualu Baina Film & TV Inc.

TLPG B A TE R A A R A 7

Jiangxi Lianchuang Opto-electronic

Science & Technology Co., Ltd

BN K HE 5 P AR A R A )

Suzhou TA&A Ultra Clean Technology Co., Ltd.

120 FE 2 P 5 % B AT PR )

(T 26 — T s 2 IR PR 7))
State Energy Group International

Assets Holdings Limited

(formerly known as “Takson Holdings Limited

6 TR 7 M 72 AL IR A A PR )

Zibo Qixiang Tengda Chemical Co., Ltd.

I ERAT B A R

Bank of Shanghai Co., Led.

i B B AR B

Place of Listing and Stock code

RO IR 28 5 7
(e AR5% = 300291)
Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(stock code: 300291)

bR S5 5 B
(e fUHE © 600363)
Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 600363)

TRYIRE 528 5 BT
(B3 ARHE : 300390)
Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(stock code: 300390)

W =2 r (A58 ¢ 918)

Stock Exchange (stock code: 918)

RO I35 B
(et A5E - 002408)
Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(stock code: 002408)

iSRS T
(B - 601229)
Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 601229)

Zhenro Properties Group Led. 1E 4% b & B R A 7

Tk A B B i

Position and Period of Time

B oF—TENHILE & B —N4E
AT =HEEE L ES

an independent director from August 9,
2010 to November 13, 2016

A& —EEH U H RS
L

an independent director since July 29,
2014

H A S S R
T H A B E S

an independent director from December 2,
2014 to December 25, 2016

A=F AN A+ R
Ty 57
an independent director since November
22,2016

H-Z L4 L HEEEE L E
+

an independent director since April 7,
2017

B —LHNH U H RS
SLEE

an independent director since June 24,
2017
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EfpAeL > 470 R F—LHET A
T H B RAT BB AT E S -
8 3 2L T o AN A [ 1Y 2 T G PR (L A
SEER R o ESEA A B R SE R 1) BT A
)RR T R 2N F) RS T T B A L 17 AT A
B o A — JLILIH ARt A b B HE O T
KB TEERZR > S LRS- 2
A7 > A — JL L /AE B A A e [ 2 Sl A
RETBEBUA KPR > BT R EL A 1 52
B o ESAER—UILIUVEE+ = A R
WAEEEENE BT AERNER -
ATRET)NAEA—H > HIRBUTFEIIFE S
A5 BTEE ) A R E R G o
FoRAMIELL R EHA R NS TR -
FAELL N HSIE

oy R

Name of Entity

L SE TG T A A BR 2 W

Industrial Securities Co., Ltd.

I < 7 7 B AT BR 2 ]

Sinolink Securities Co., Ltd.

et e R B E A A BRA
(BLA A T e (F-78)
BB A IRA D)

Fujian Zhongfu Industries Co., Ltd.

(now known as Zhongfu Straits

(Pingtan) Development Company Limited )

Mr. WANG Chuanxu (EF), aged 47, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on December 15, 2017. He is primarily responsible for
providing independent advice on the operations and management of our Group.
Mr. Wang has over 17 years of experience in the finance industry and providing
secretarial and corporate service to listed companies in the PRC. He obtained
his bachelor’s degree in engineering majoring in industrial moulding design
from East China University of Science and Technology (ﬁ%fﬂijﬁ%) in the
PRC in July 1994 and his master’s degree in economics majoring in political
economics from East China Normal University (ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁk%) in the PRC
in July 1998. Mr. Wang was granted the qualification of securities investment
consulting by China Securities Regulatory Commission in December 1999.
He also obtained the certificate of secretary to the board of directors of listed

companies issued by Shenzhen Stock Exchange in November 2008.

Mr. Wang had held several positions in a number of listed companies, including

those set out below:

i B 2 AR B

Place of Listing and Stock code

B IRAEG r
(B ARHE © 601377)

Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 601377)

bR I 2E B
(e 3% © 600109)
Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 600109)

GRYI 385528 5 it
(AR 5E © 000592)

Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(stock code: 000592)

WA % 15 [H]

Position and Period of Time

H—WIWEANAZZFFLFELA
WAEDIE B > BRI BCEMRAT =
AL

a researcher and then the senior manager
of investment banking from June 1998 to
May 2007

A-Z%FLFERLAZEZFL/F+ 2
HEAL B RAT IR SEH A B

a business director of investment banking
from May 2007 and to December 2008

HoZZNEFT-HE - ——4
HEAEZ (AR - G452 7 R A8
FESLNNE gl

various positions including the vice general
manager and the secretary to the board of
directors of the company from December
2008 to September 2011

4 #t Annual Report 2017
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e T R B AR WAL % I ]

Name of Entity Place of Listing and Stock code Position and Period of Time

AR F ey A BR A ) TRINFE 528 5 B HoZ——F+—HE2 T —4EN
(Bp A% - 732) B AT Fl) 4 58 2 o

Thaihot Group Co., Ltd Shenzhen Stock Exchange the vice general manager and the secretary
(stock code: 732) to the board of directors from November

R A R A SE B AT B2 ]

Greattown Holdings Led.

2011 to April 2014

bR 25 5 B HoF—-NUELHE-F—-HE=A
(e A% + 600094) 1 A R AR AL
Shanghai Stock Exchange the vice general manager from July 2014
(stock code: 600094) to March 2015

HoZ TN # - ERAETMEE L
P IR A F AT S

TR AR P

HBEMEE > 425 R -F —LHEILA
S BT BRI AR o Bl E
HWRAAREENBE LHESEE - TiHE
MEMEMEREEM - A - % — L&
— IR s W ST AR AT IE AR PR A A AR
oo BF—LHFELAM > IR
VR g > R B e A BEE I R AR
B 2 R R R AR e ST
—JUSUIUAEE A ST A AR A G A
KRE > FHEMBREREH > ]G TREEL
BA o

Zhenro Properties Group Led. 1E 4% b & B R A 7

Mr. Wang has also been serving as an executive director of Shanghai NextDV
Software Company Limited ( ¥ JE U A FRZA ) since August 2015.

Senior Management

Mr. XIAO Chunhe (H# ), aged 42, was appointed as our vice president
on September 20, 2017. Mr. Xiao is primarily responsible for the investment
and development matters, sales and marketing management and business asset
management of our Group. Mr. Xiao has been the vice president of Zhenro
Properties Holdings since January 2017. Since July 2017, he has also been
assisting the president with the investment expansion and teambuilding work
for members of our Group in Shanghai, Tianjin and Jinan. Mr. Xiao obtained
his bachelor’s degree in engineering majoring in earth resources management
from Fuzhou University (f&J K% ) in Fujian Province, the PRC in July 1999.
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H SE A AR IR AR AR Y R A Z I - &
ol F-—FRAE T -=F—H%
AR AT Wi G A I 7 A AR > DA ey
TR -ET AR TR RNELA SR
Ws AR B S AR B o R — =4 —H
R B8R A B SR AR
H(EHARMGMER) - —F—NFE=H
BER—LFE A o DI IE S E
mEGH, —F-LEAE T L4
EAVEAEREH - B3R LAY b5 MR S o
TR -ARFERHEELEFE A HHE
1Em B E R ACHE o i AASE [ 2 H
HoF-RENAEE-F——FNA >
TR 5 A 3t 7 B 3 % ) A o A JNEL IS 7 5
B v B R AR o

REEIE A > 435 W S F —LAELA
T HEE AT Sy TN B AR o RSB
IREAEAR 3wl Hop — 2 B 2 F RS - A
BB S T 4 R B BB R A o R
A9 R BS A R o SROEAEH S F T
A TR AT IR S IR0 B
MEHEFGNE > EEARUHGEE T
O BB BB AR o SRIGAERY — JLIL/AE
LH B BB SR E (£ &
B % < ) B LB o RN TR — AR
N H A HR B 9 A R LR B A v A
ANBTHEMEL - A —JULLEE L
8 T S M o M o
TERR AR WRIT AR R N A
F I Tih 452 94 P R A o B R A A
BN AR SR o

IMAREBZ A > H—ULVEEILA E
FEBFN N BB 2K I g 5]
FH (RS A A mARER A -
FEAAE-HBRZEENEZH > AR
LI A IR TR SRS BT B Ay T > 1B AT
LFG AP — I th R/ EH &
SRR IR i E B A
S T b (AR ) A PR S D G B A RIS A
WE o BRI T — AR — B RS
T 7 Ml B A D PR IR BR A T (I
BIARE © 01862) Z AT 2y 15 I A B B e vt
EHARAN > FREE -Z—HFENAA -

Mzr. Xiao served various positions in Zhenro Group Company, including the
marketing manager and then the marketing chief manager from May 2011 to
January 2013, as well as the chief marketing officer and the assistant to the
chief executive officer from October 2014 to May 2016. He was the vice general
manager of Nanjing Real Estate from January 2013 to October 2014 where he
was mainly responsible for marketing. He served as the assistant to the president
of Zhenro Properties Holdings from March 2016 to January 2017, and the
manager responsible for the real estate business in Shanghai from February 2017
to July 2017. He served as the general manager of Nanchang Real Estate from
May 2016 to February 2017. Before joining our Group, he served in Fujian
Jiushun Properties Development Co., Led. (ﬁ@ﬁ\“[ﬁ%iﬂﬁ BIEE/N ] ), a real
estate development company, as the vice general manager of marketing from
September 2010 till April 2011.

Mr. TAN Mingheng (#K841H ), aged 43, was appointed as our chief financial
officer on September 20, 2017. Mr. Tan is also one of the joint company
secretaries of the Company. He is responsible for the overall financial and capital
operation of our Group. He has over 19 years of finance experience. Mr. Tan
has been serving as the chief financial officer and the secretary to the board of
directors of Zhenro Properties Holdings from December 2015 and is primarily
responsible for the finance management center and legal department. Mr. Tan
graduated from Shanghai University ( 1K) in July 1998 with a bachelor’s
degree in economics majoring in international finance. He also obtained an
executive master of business administration degree from Fudan University (f
HK#) in Shanghai, the PRC in June 2013. He has been a certified public
accountant as credentialed by Shanghai Institute of Certified Public Accountant
since 1999. In November 2002, Mr. Tan was recognized as a certified internal
auditor by China Institute of Internal Auditors with the authorization from the

Institute of Internal Auditors.

Before joining our Group, he served in Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP as a
senior auditor from September 1998 to December 2000. From January 2001
to March 2008, he served in the Shanghai Branch of KPMG Huazhen LLP,
including as a senior manager. From April 2008 to January 2013, he served in
Jingrui Properties (Group) Co., Led. (FHmHEE (SEH) A FR/AH]), a property
development company, as the director of the risk management department. Mr.
Tan was appointed as the chief financial officer and the officer in charge of audit
legal affairs of Jingrui Holdings Limited (StHiif% A FR/AH]), a property
development company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 01862), in

January 2013 and served as so till August 2015.

4 #t Annual Report 2017
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Chairman’s Statement

FALBR

AMNERKRE R GIRE R IESEH E LM
ARAFREE_Z—LFE+_A=+—H
1R AR JE 2 4R 2 3EH

ES

A = — AR 58 M W B B B
(TERAPEEE ] > IR % — FE—
H A8 B AE & il & 28 2 P A R A )
(T 22 BT J) £ LT o B BH WA E
A o AR R R T — B AR AR A S A
KRBV 2 EA T a8l

AR AR AR -
AEEMWkHEAE®RE T —XF+ A
== HIEFENANR¥14,603.5 5 5 G
wimg 6o EHE _E—ELFE+ A
=T HEFENARE199951H &
JG o AN I AL i R K A T U A HE
HHBEZE—NETZA=+—HILE
BEMANR¥1,183.3 A & CHM#A 19.1% &
BE-Z bE+ A=+ HIEFEEN
NR¥1,408.9H #TT o LA BHEREZ
F—NFET A= —HIFEEN ARY
797.6 HE U INA 57.5% E#HE %X —+L
T ZH =t —HIEFEMARK1,256.0
HETC e WA > AEBEINA ZF— LR
A G e 2 N R 308 o0 i K
TKAEAE > AT £ AR AERR AP Y S0 S Rl R
TH o

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, I am pleased to present you the annual results of
Zhenro Properties Group Limited for the year ended December 31, 2017.

RESULTS

The Group completed its initial public offering (“IPO") in early 2018 and
was successfully listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on January 16, 2018. The Group
has been widely recognized by the capital market since its [PO for its sound
performance during the past year of 2017.

In 2017, the Group achieved a rapid growth. The Group s revenue increased
by approximately 36.9% from RMB14,603.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2016 to RMB19,995.1 million for the year ended December
31, 2017. Profit and total comprehensive income attributable to owners of
the Company increased by approximately 19.1% from RMB1,183.3 million
for the year ended December 31, 2016 to RMB1,408.9 million for the
year ended December 31, 2017. Core net profit increased by 57.5% from
RMB797.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2016 to RMB1,256.0
million for the year ended December 31, 2017. In addition, the Group issued
unsecured perpetual bonds in the aggregate principal amount of RMB3.0
billion in 2017, which further provided it with additional access to external
financing.

4 #t Annual Report 2017
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Zhenro Properties Group Led. 1E 4% b & B R A 7

BUSINESS REVIEW OF 2017

During the past year, the real estate market in China remained significantly
unsure and fluctuating. The PRC government has continued to implement
stringent control measures. In particular, in overheated cities, tightened
policies restricting purchases, mortgages and sales have been implemented.
However, given the entire sizable PRC real estate market, housing demand
in most second- and third-tier cities remains strong.

The Group has established a nationwide presence with primary focuses on
four core business regions, namely Yangtze River Delta Economic Region,
Midwest China Economic Region, Bohai Economic Rim and Western
Taiwan Straits Economic Zone. Its existing market position and the strategic
locations it has secured have well positioned the Group to continue to
capitalize on the great growth potential of the PRC real estate market.

In 2017, the Group continued its nationwide expansion and entered into
five new cities, including Zhengzhou, Hefei, Jinan, Jiaxing and Chuzhou.
It acquired a total of 23 new land parcels in 2017, mainly in Hefei, Suzhou,
Putian, Pingtan, Jinan and Jiaxing. It also cooperated with third-party
business partners to jointly acquire 18 new land parcels in cities including
Suzhou, Hefei, Tianjin, Nanjing, Shanghai, Nanchang and Wuhan.

As of December 31, 2017, the Group "s total land bank was over 12 million
sq.m. on an attributable basis, strategically locating in 18 cities in four core
business regions, including Shanghai, Nanjing, Suzhou, Hefei, Wuhan,
Changsha, Xian, Tianjin, Fuzhou, Nanchang and Zhengzhou.
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OUTLOOK FOR 2018

The Group believes that the PRC government s control measures have been
proved effective, evidenced by the slowing down of housing price growth
nationwide in 2017, especially in those overheated cities. It is unlikely
that more extreme control measures would be imposed in the near future.
Nevertheless, the current control environment may continue for a prolonged
term before efficient long-term control mechanism is well established, such
as rental homes currently promoted by the PRC government.

It is believed that large-scale urbanization and the rise and relocation of
middle-class in China, rather than the financing or administrative policies,
are the fundamental growth drivers of the PRC real estate market.

As such, the Group upholds its brand position of “home upgrade master
(% & X # )" with a vision of introducing quality residences with a gross
floor area (“GFA") ranging from 90 sq.m. to 200 sq.m. to affluent mid- to
high-end customers with home-upgrade demand. The Group believes these
customers have relatively high disposable income and strong purchasing
power and place higher priority on quality rather than price in their property
purchase decision making process. To implement its market positioning
strategy, the Group has developed four product series of residential property
projects, namely the “4% % (Great Home)" series, the “#§ T (Craftsman)”
series, the “ X # (Masterpiece)” series and the “# # (Collection)” series,
each targeting different segments of our target customers. “Great Home"
series targets mainly first-time home buyers and “Craftsman” series focuses
primarily on the demand of first-time home upgraders and middle class first-
time home buyers, who represent a majority of the Group s target customers.
“Masterpiece” series mainly targets mid-to-high home upgraders for their
second and subsequent home upgrades. “Collection” series is positioned as
luxury home collection for the Group s target high-end customers.
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Similarly, the Group's commercial property portfolios comprised of three
product lines, the “# & ¥ & (Fortune Center)” series, the “# X & %
(Times Plaza)” series and “iE % #f (Zhenro Street)” series, each with its
own positioning and floor size. The Group believes such market positioning
strategy best leverages its property development capabilities and helps it
maintain sustainable growth in current market conditions.

Since its IPO, the Group has endeavored to further optimize its debt
structure, broaden financing channels and continue to enhance financial
strengths.

Success lies in the ability to understand and leverage market trends. In
2018, the Group is ready to face the challenges and changes. To support a
sustainable development, it will closely monitor and adapt to the evolving
market trends and will strive to achieve recognition by the real estate
industry and capital market and capture opportunities taking advantage of its
integrity, quality and responsibility.
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APPRECIATION

Finally, on behalf of the Board, I would like to express our sincere
appreciation to all shareholders for their support, and all employees for
their dedication and hard work in the past year. In 2018, we will continue
to uphold our core value of “prosperity from integrity” and achieve a
sustainable and healthy growth, so as to bring our shareholders economic
returns and develop ourselves into a respectful and sustainable competitive
enterprise.

Zhenro Properties Group Limited

HUANG Xianzhi

Chairman

Shanghai, China
March 28, 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis

IR

PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

BET-H=Z1T—HILH)E

For the Year Ended
December 31, [F] L 52 )
b ZFE-NE Year-over-
2017 2016 Year Change

BRI O Contracted sales ¥

FHRMEEE (NRWHEIT)  Contracted sales (RMB million) 70,153 39,292 78.5%

BRI E RS (P K)  Contracted GFA sold (sq.m.) 3,795,355 1,875,953 102.3%

BHT I EE

(NR¥TT/FIK) Contracted ASP (RMB/sq.m.) 18,484 20,945 (11.7)%

MEERHEE (AR E#EIC) Selected financial information

(RMB million)

Wi 4 Revenue 19,995 14,604 36.9%

BB AR Cost of sales 15,778 11,434 38.0%

B Gross profit 4,217 3,170 33.1%

I BT A5 B4 I Vi ) Profit before income tax 2,750 2,365 16.3%

A N 1 B 4 TR A SRR Profit and total comprehensive income

for the year 1,521 1,243 22.4%

DA AR - Atcributable to:

EN/NEIE ZEDN Owners of the Company 1,409 1,183 19.1%

FE 4 RO HE 4 Non-controlling interest 112 60 87.6%
B (%) Gross profit margin (%) 21.1% 21.7% 0.6)%

KO AR @ Core net profit @ 1,256 798 57.5%

BET-H=1—H

As of December 31, [ Lb 5 5

R g SR ARH Year-over-

2017 2016 Year Change

MEE (AR A &) Total assets (RMB million) 106,422 86,759 22.7%

AR E#T) Total liabilities (RMB million) 94,198 77,769 21.1%

W A (NR¥H &) Total equity (RMB million) 12,224 8,990 36.0%

AN IR N A HE £ Equity attributable to owners of the Company

(NRBEHE D) (RMB million) 8,179 7,975 2.6%

Wt Ee Current ratio © 1.3 1.5

TR BLRE £ L @ Net gearing ratio 183.2% 206.0%

B &k Notes:

(1) CIEAREH M E AR - SE RS ARNE (1) Includes contracted sales by the Group’s subsidiaries, joint ventures and associated
ZIGHEE o & A BEHE SR R ACEE A% I MR R A A 1 Ry companies. Contracted sales data is unaudited and is based on internal information of the
R A R o BRI R S R SRR TR P AR Group. Contracted sales data may be subject to various uncertainties during the process of
RUEARMEENE > %S A 45 E BRI g collating such sales information and is provided for investors reference only.

%% o

2) FUEBAR - NEATE S, A - R (2)  Defined as net profit excludes fair value gains/losses and net of deferred taxes.

(3) T PC 25 AR KR ) I PR AR B A £ o 3) Current ratio equals to current assets divided by current liabilities as of the end of the year.

(4) AT B £ LG 26 55 AP R M AR AR BB 4 TSR (4) Net gearing ratio equals to total borrowings less cash and bank balances divided by total

TTHE R R LIRE 25 AR IR L 100 ©

equity as of the end of the year and multiplied by 100.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

-3 e B %

aRI8E
BE_FtLHE+HA=+—HILEE
AEBBMRAAHESFARK70,153.4
H I B F—INFER R 78.5% >
T L R i A S T A T B e A A 4
9] ot 25 #e AP AE — IR T Y B T B
ST ARG T EL

BEF—t4E+ZA=+—HIH4EE
MEXMERREEELO B38H BT F
Ko B ENERBIMA 100 ET
KM 1023% - B2 _F—L44FE+Z
A=T—HIFE > G4 THEEITTY
B ) % B AR 18,484 70, F ok - T
TN B AR 20,945 98
Koo WO FEERR -E—LETHE
3 ST A 7 S TR R A 4 &0 R S T R 1 1
FEBTEL -

VL= AR [~ o B o pg 48 3 I
Tt i) i A6 37 P % VA Uk VY R AR I 2y A A 1)
i R LN A A B SRR PR A
45.2% > 5.9% > 6.8% I 42.1% °

TREFIAEIR T —LEGLEE Y
(e Lo 1 53 ) o

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

Contracted Sales

For the year ended December 31, 2017, the Group recorded contracted sales of
RMB70,153.4 million, representing a 78.5% year-over-year increase from 2016,
which was primarily due to the increase in salable GFA accumulated by the
Group in first- and second-tier cities in the past several years by executing the

Group’s development strategies.

For the year ended December 31, 2017, total contracted GFA sold amounted
to approximately 3.8 million sq.m., representing an increase of approximately
102.3% from approximately 1.9 million sq.m. for the year ended December 31,
2016. Contracted average selling price (“ASP”) for the year ended December 31,
2017 was approximately RMB18,484 per sq.m., compared with RMB20,945
per sq.m. for the year ended December 31, 2016. The decrease was primarily
due to the increase in the proportion of GFA with a relatively lower ASP among
total contracted GFA in 2017.

Contracted sales from Yangtze River Delta Economic Region, Midwest
China Economic Region, Bohai Economic Rim and Western Taiwan Straits
Economic Zone contributed to approximately 45.2%, 5.9%, 6.8% and 42.1%,

respectively, of the Group’s total contracted sales in 2017.

The following table sets out the geographic breakdown of the Group’s

contracted sales in 2017.

BRI
GE ok ) HAl
BAEHE SRHELH THEH % of
Contracted  Contracted  Contracted  Contracted
GFA Sold Sales ASP Sales

AR
Tk ARNTE  FAK %
sq.m.  RMB’000 RMB/sq.m. %
VL= iy 45 97 [ Yangtze River Delta Economic Region 1,192,184 31,706,344 26,595 45.2%
B 4 7 Midwest China Economic Region 383,828 4,161,566 10,842 5.9%
TR A Bohai Economic Rim 191,443 4,754,747 24,836 6.8%
I 1 2 4 7 Western Taiwan Straits Economic Zone 2,027,901 29,530,733 14,562 42.1%
w5t Total 3,795,355 70,153,390 18,484 100.0%

Zhenro Properties Group Led. 1E 4% b & B R A 7
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BWE _F—LEt+_A=Z+—HILEE
KB B N H39,324.1 H 8 IC > K
TERNERBINHNR 32,6128 0 H
JG > W 20.6% ° 74T BGR IS wi A&
TEEE W) 3 H %5 TN BT 5 5K T8 o
TR L A B [ R 58 e R i 3 B B
St -

M EmE ORIk
BEEZ—tHE+_A=1+—HIL4EE
PHEYECHER S A ARH19,882.0
B BT NFER NN R
14,534.7 H 70 K #136.8% > (K A% H
Wi 75 HREEY 99.49% o AL HI —F— LA
O TR AT 2 A AR SR T A £ 1.5
HETHK > MoF—NEE21.2% °
A F LA AEEEEDENCER
TR EEL A NR¥ 1311670, F K
NN ANRB 11,6178 F Ik
Wm12.9% » FEEBALEEE 2
BikEEEETTEAERSHRII=
FE Y A58 T [ S B ) 1 458 O L PUT 3K

BB SR AR BN > o A A
(i) A B )RR A I AR 1 2% T R se ASh i
EMEERAERN K& G) —F—LFECH
RRI T R LR -

Advances from customers amounted to approximately RMB39,324.1 million
for the year ended December 31, 2017, representing an increase of 20.6% from
approximately RMB32,612.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2016.
Such advances from customers represents the proceeds received from customers
in connection with our pre-sale of properties, which formed a solid basis for the

Group's future growth in recognized revenue.

Revenue Recognized from Sales of Properties

Revenue recognized from sales of properties increased by approximately
36.8% from RMB14,534.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2016
to RMB19,882.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2017, accounting
for 99.4% of the Group’s total revenue. Total completed and delivered GFA
amounted to 1.5 million sq.m. in 2017, representing a 21.2% increase
from 2016. The Group's recognized ASP from sales of properties was
approximately RMB13,116 per sq.m. in 2017, representing a 12.9% increase
from RMB11,617 per sq.m. in 2016, primarily due to the Group's further
penetration in Yangtze River Delta Economic Region and Bohai Economic

Rim, where prevailing market prices of properties are relatively higher.

The increase in revenue recognized from sales of properties was primarily due
to (i) more GFA completed and delivered as a result of the Group’s continuing

expansion, and (ii) an overall increase in the ASP recognized in 2017.
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During the year of 2017, the properties delivered by the Group included Tianjin
Zhenro Jade Bay (K 1E %€ o 5% ), Shanghai Hongqiao Zhenro Center
(L HUTAE o IEZEHL) and Nanjing Zhenro Splendid Land 2 (FFIEEE o
14 #8 3) and others. The following table sets forth the details of the revenue
recognized from the sales of properties of the Group by geographical location for

the periods indicated.

figtmE
HEMECEDNE CHERE A A I

Recognized Revenue from % of Recognized Revenue CRNAREERE CiA T ER

Sales of Properties from Sale of Properties Total GFA Delivered Recognized ASP
N/ NEFL/
ANEHFE ARFFE % % Fik Fik Fik Fik
RMB'OOO  RMB'000 % ¢ um sqm RMBSgm  RMBSpm
ZR-tE ZERnE ZERLE ZFRNE ZR-UE ZER8E ZRtE ZER R
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
RI=ZAHERE Yangtze River Delta Economic Region 10,087,757 5,560,628 50.8 58.5 474,639 290,755 21,254 19,125
T A E R Western Taiwan Straits Economic Zone 7,373,677 8,502,426 3.1 383 849565 849,790 8,679 10,005
Rl RHKE Bohai Economic Rim 2094750 - 15 - 171606 - 1312 -
R R Midwest China Economic Region 129,831 471,606 0.6 3. 20,075 110,572 6,68 4,265
it Total 19882015 14,534,660 1000 1000 1515885 1251117 13,116 11,617

PR &M T Tk

Frf 8 1 S48 1 45 T B B ACR 5 A9 5E
T > 1R B A B (E R R 1
W o FRAE BB A9 SE AR TI IR B 1)
ST T PR A B A B9 0 BE R E

HEZF—LtEF+_H=Z+—H > F4EHY
WHBELRENCE TYENSES A
R#16,103.1 &L BEE _F—ARF
TA=ZtTHMWERAR¥95267H
BT 69.0% o %N EE R BA ZE
— AR SE LY S B B EL - A4
H 2 R 6 BT A B 58 LY SRS R
LREAEE o
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Completed Properties Held for Sale

Properties held for sale represent completed properties remaining unsold at the
end of each financial period and are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost of properties held for sale is determined by an apportionment of

related costs incurred attributable to the unsold properties.

As of December 31, 2017, the Group had completed properties held for sale
of RMB16,103.1 million, representing a 69.0% increase from RMB9,526.7
million as of December 31, 2016. The increase was primarily due to the
increased number of completed properties in 2017. The Group has obtained the
construction completion certificates in respect of all completed properties held

for sale.
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Properties Under Development

Properties under development are intended to be held for sale after completion.
Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost comprising
land costs, construction costs, capitalized interests and other costs directly
attributable to such properties incurred during the development period and net
realizable value. Upon completion, the properties are transferred to completed

properties held for sale.

As of December 31, 2017, the Group had properties under development of
RMB40,802.8 million, representing an 8.7% increase from RMB37,524.4
million as of December 31, 2016. The increase was primarily because the Group
continued to accelerate its property development activities which resulted in an

increase in properties under development in 2017.

PROPERTY INVESTMENT

Rental Income

The Group’s rental income for the year ended December 31, 2017 was
approximately RMB71.4 million, representing a 44.9% increase from 2016.
The increase was primarily due to the continued growth of our investment
properties completed and put in operation, in particular, the commencement of

operation of Fuzhou Zhenro Fortune Center in late 2016.

Investment Properties

As of December 31, 2017, the Group had 11 investment properties with
a total GFA of approximately 761,722 sq.m. Out of such investment
properties portfolio of the Group, 6 investment properties with a total GFA of

approximately 469,193 sq.m. had commenced leasing.

LAND BANK

In 2017, the Group continued its nationwide expansion and entered into
five new cities. It acquired a total of 41 new land parcels with a total site
area of approximately 2.6 million sq.m. and an aggregate estimated GFA of
approximately 7.1 million sq.m. The following table sets forth details of the
Group's newly acquired land parcels during the year ended December 31, 2017.
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W/ R AR

Land Parcel/Project Name

Yangtze River Delta Economic Region

2
Jiaxing
il
Jiaxing
M
Chuzhou
B

Suzhou

BN

Suzhou

B

Suzhou

B
Suzhou
M
Suzhou
B

Suzhou

FH o FHh2017 EAW 044
Jiaxing No. 2017 Jiaxiuzhou-044

FETFH2017-100 (LFEW)
Jiaxing No.2017-101
TN IE 48 f

Chuzhou Zhenro Mansion

BRI R R
$Ri2016-WG-77 B 3
Suzhou No. Sudi 2016-WG-77
Parcel B

BRI AT
BkH2016-WG-77  C
Suzhou No. Sudi 2016-WG-77
Parcel C

BRI R BT
BRH2016-WG-77 %5 A M0
Suzhou No. Sudi 2016-WG-77
Parcel A

B T g e

Suzhou Miles Splendid Garden
BRM R Z A

Suzhou Tian Qin Elegance Garden

BRI o IR
Suzhou Zhengro Xiangshan

Piedmont Garden

T %
Land Use

fre/ %k
Residential/retail
fie

Residential
it/ %E&
Residential/retail
i

Residential

lixd

Residential

F /SOHO MIF T

Retail/SOHO and office

Residential/retail
/%8
Residential/retail
I e

Residential

32 Zhenro Properties Group Led. 1E 4% b & B R A 7

R

Site Area

Fik

sq.m.

72,100

39,984

80,867

24,583

30,760

7,239

98,783

21,638

39,098

flst
AR
Estimated

Total GFA

ik

5g.m.

183,878

68,156

189,809

77,799

94,036

52,493

170,241

48,960

58,084

Nk £

Land Premium

ANRHEHL

RMB million

878

268

413

2,398(1)

459

119

182

PROPERTIES DEVELOPED BY THE GROUP AND ITS
SUBSIDIARIES

T4 LHEA
(R At T
fofeb
Tt )
Average Land

Cost (Based on
the Estimated
Total GFA)
Vi v
ik
RMBjsq.m

4776

3,935

2,176

10,661

10,661

10,661

2,699

2,426

3,130
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2
City

Ly

Heifei

Bl
Hefei
I
Hefei

FEF A

W/ E A AR

Land Parcel/Project Name

RIEESR « BidE
Hefei Cpital Yue

AR 1907
Hefei City 1907
A R4S

Hefei Zhenro Mansion

Midwest China Economic Region

Ti%

Xi'an

Ti%

Xi'an

TR A

TH% LA — 1 A 4
Xi'an Zhenro Mansion Phase [
Parcel A

TH% LA — 1 A A
Xi'an Zhenro Mansion Phase [

Parcel A

Western Taiwan Straits Economic Zone

M
Fuzhou
M
Fuzhou
M

Fuzhou

E5 o B A

Fuzhou Zhenro Yuejingtai

IS o RIS 2017-07
Mawei No. Mazhongdi 2017-07
RIS o $ITH

Mawei Zhenro Yue Jiang Bay

T
Land Use

ft€,/%%& /SoHO
GES: |
Residential/retail SOHO
and office

fE,/ SOHO IH 7t
Residential/SOHO and office
fie

Residential

i

Residential

£,/ SOHO I 74
Retail/SOHO and office

i
Residential
i
Residential
fiE

Residential

s

Site Area

ik

sq.m.

120,705

111,380

38,221

24,150

15,172

35,164

36,014

47,200

it
MR
Estimated

Total GFA

ik

sq.m.

358,892

192,568

103,391

108,002

103,091

154,554

46,583

144,409

N £

Land Premium

ARBEHT
RMB million

1,954

1,805

850

175

149

385

478

393
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Mg

Tt )
Average Land

Cost (Based on
the Estimated
Total GFA)
AR#
Fik
RMB/sq.m.

5,444

9,573

8,221

1,620

1,449

2,488

10,253

2,721
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i W/ AR
City Land Parcel/Project Name
i FRER N

(HR PR ELE Fh B 2017G006)
Pingtan Pingtan Zhenro Mansion Phase 1
TR TEERN W

(R FR I B 2017G007)

Pingtan Pingtan Zhenro Mansion Phase 2

il o FHpsHi—2017-10

Putian Putian No. PS Pai-2017-10

il HH o ZFHPSH—2017-25
IR o EEN

Putian Putian Binxi Zhenro Mansion

HHH WHAN o E5

Putian Putian Shishi Zhento Mansion

il o FHpsHi—2017-11

Putian Putian No. PS Pai-2017-11

HA 7% DBA2017077
(FMAILIER)

Nanchang Nanchang No. DBA2017077

Raane

Bohai Economic Rim

g R 2017-G121
(RSl A9 HHR)

Jinan Jinan No. 2017-G121

g R 2017-G122
(RIGH AL3301E)

Jinan Jinan No. 2017-G122

et

Sub-total

LT
Land Use

fet/ %%

Residential/retail
e/ %8

Residential/retail
i
Residential
e/ %%

Residential/retail

i

Residential
ft£/ %% /SOHOMEF
#
Residential/retail SOHO

and office
e/ %E

Residential/retail

et/ %E

Residential/retail
tE/ %8

Residential/retail

R

Site Area

Pk

sq.m.

066,560

52,321

79,698

23,926

33,942

39,848

60,732

60,732

57,785

23,013

1,280,881

flst
AT
Estimated

Total GFA

Tk

5g.m.

239,620

195,704

159,487

65,850

115,598

101,703

162,760

162,760

199,867

72,789

3,468,925

=N £

Land Premium

ANREFET
RMB million

1,100

1,066

980

359

363

478

403

403

683

816

17,154

P LA
(R T
ik £
TR )
Average Land
Cost (Based on
the Estimated
Total GFA)
AR BT/
ik
RMB/sq.m.

4,591

5,447

6,145

5,452

3,140

4,700

2476

2476

3,418

11,210

4,945

Zhenro Properties Group Led. 1E 4% b & B R A 7
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AEBEEBEERBE AME  PROPERTIES DEVELOPED BY THE GROUP’S JOINT

(SE/E 3 VENTURES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
RZCE LN
(e tlat
ol £
i)
Average
it Land Cost
BEgEE  LHMEE  (Basedon
Uil W/ HR AR Rt 1]jif TR Estimated Land the Estimated
City Land Parcel/Project Name Land Use Site Area Total GFA Premium  Total GFA)
A&/
Pk Fik ARBEET Pk
RMB RMB/
sq.1m. sq.1m. million sq.1m.

RIL=AMAHE

Yangtze River Delta Economic Region

L Fidrif BU T /SOHO R T

Shanghai Shanghai No. Retail/SOHO and office
201419370776439142

#E IS o L0 ftt/%&

Jiaxing Jiaxing Zhongnan Zhenro Residential retail
Haishang Mingyue

#E TR ftt/%&

Jiaxing Jiaxing Canal Mansion Residential retail

il HRIL% 2017636 {2/ %% /soHo BT

Nanjing Nanjing No. Residential retail/
320115001022GB00780- GB00784  SOHO and office

B SRR » EENE feg

Suzhou Suzhou Jinhui Zhenro Four Seasons ~ Residential

B M o Fwy-2017-017 e/ %k

Suzhou Suzhou No. WJ-J-2017-017 Residential/retail

BN B o 7 w)g-2017-016 lixd

Suzhou Suzhou No. WJ-J-2017-016 Residential

L B « REGRNLEEE) (/%6

Suzhou Suzhou Yuzhou Zhaoshang Shili Residential/retail

B WEEER li%3
(BT 18W)0-2017-019)

Suzhou Suzhou Lanxi Bay Garden Residential

70,857

33,424

03,508

54311

32,044

5,759

7,585

128,313

60,738

307,227

84,748

147,768

248,880

82,018

14,386

21,534

312,090

122,638

1,430

345

442

1,700

510

33

31

1,418

908

4,655

4,071

2,994

6,831

6,221

2,260

1AL
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Interest

20.0%

50.0%

50.0%

20.0%

49.0%

50.0%

50.0%

20.0%

36.0%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FH LA
(Hedith it
Efee
it )
Average
it Land Cost
mRsEE  LhEe (Based on
Wi W/ ERAR L W#EE  Estimated Land  the Estimated
City Land Parcel/Project Name Land Use Site Area Total GFA Premium  Total GFA)
NERT/
Fik Tk ARKEET Fik
RMB RuMB/
sq.m. sq.m. million sq.m.
HIE BHRES  HE %/ SOHO FIE 4% 44,787 115,773 417 3,598
Hefei Hefei Country Garden Zhenro Residential/SOHO and office
Jade Yue
7l IV %/ SOHO FIE 4% 130918 319421 2,089 5,506
Hefei Hefei Centuty World Residential/SOHO and office
A i
Midwest China Economic Region
oA TRIE 4 fit/%E 69,439 21307 989 4,468
Zhengzhou Zhengzhou Xuhui Zhenro Residencial /retail
Capital Mansion
it LA fit/%& 156,511 578,645 1048 1811
Wuhan Wuhan Qingneng Zhenro Mansion  Residentialretail
Vgl
Bobhai Economic Rim
PN i o B () fit/%E 149,245 219,707 1974 8,985
2017-1-A/B/C/ID/E/FIGIH/)
Tianjin Tianjin No. Jinbinbeitanggua Residential/retail
2017-1-A/BIC/DIE/FIG/H/L]
kit Kot /%8 45,511 206,300 389 1,884
Tianjin Tianjin No. Jindongxingua Residential/retail
2016071

36 Zhenro Properties Group Led. IF 4% Hi & 4 FR A 7
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Attributable

Interest

49.0%

33.0%

24.0%

5.0%

13.0%

14.0%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

it /R L

City Land Parcel/Project Name Land Use
AT

Western Tarwan Straits Economic Zone

falt RESREAR it/ %
Fujian Fujian Zhenro Yue Long Bay Residential/retail
G Hhel 2/ %E
Nanchang Nanchang Garden Residential/retail
2 IEREER o BHERS fit/%&
Nanchang Nanchang Zhenro Linlong Mansion ~ Residentiallretail
it

Sub-total

At

Total

T

Site Area

ik

sq.m.

66,706

90,420

72,103

1,288,241

2,569,122

fhat
B
Estimated
Total GFA
oz

sq.m.

179,745

240,926

181,797

3,604,909

7,133,833

LibtiEe
Land

Premium

ARWEAT
RMB

million

263

728

580

15,356

32,510

FH A
(e fht
Eftd
[ EE
Average
Land Cost
(Based on TEf RS
the Estimated ~ Attributable
Total GFA) Interest
ANR#/
Fik
RMB/

sq.m.

1,463 36.0%

3,023 19.0%

3,190 25.0%

4,190

4557
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W B w4

Management Discussion and Analysis

(1) TEREM KW R 2016-WG-77 SR A MU ~ B
H B K C BRI 4R B T A

A A T S R A A A b AR R A
I ANRWE32,509.6 HE G - & —LER
WA B b B 1Y) ST 35 BLAR A BT O R N R
4,557 JC ©

it 2 —-F—tHF+-H=1+—H>
AR AR 18 (8 BT AR B A o1 8 W 3 IH
H o ZEHHE 71 WIE H b A4 5 B8
VA - 2018 B3 A 1 G A 3 RS A
pEs - 2 _F—LHFE+_H=1+—H"
AR M HREAT SRR A 15 | T K 0 B
T EAR O BE T S 12 5 5 K L
A o

T £ 5 4B A () R T ST B B A
H SR RT K v] A AR SR A > (i) BB
) 2 Y HE SR TR B (i) 5 1 R A B W
SE R TR KA

Zhenro Properties Group Led. 1E 4% b & B R A 7

Note:

(1) Represents the aggregate site area of Suzhou No. Sudi 2016-WG-77 Parcel A, B and C.

Total contractual land premium for the newly acquired land parcels in 2017 was
approximately RMB32,509.6 million. The average cost of land parcels acquired
in 2017 was approximately RMB4,557 per sq.m.

As such, as of December 31, 2017, the Group had a total of 91 property projects
located in 18 cities. Among these properties, 71 projects were developed and
owned by the Group and 20 were developed by the Group’s joint venture and
associated companies. The Group had a total land bank of over 15 million sq.m.
in GFA, or over 12 million sq.m. on an attributable basis, as of December 31,
2017.

Total land bank represents the sum of (i) total GFA available for sale and total
leasable GFA for completed properties, (ii) total GFA for properties under

development and (iii) total GFA for properties held for future development.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

TREGIEE-F-LEF A= —H
A A [ 2 i S 2 1) B GREAR RE A

The following table sets forth details of the Group's land bank by regions as of

December 31, 2017.

R
Ok TR
TR/
T L
Completed GFA R LA F f e T +ib A -0 ok
THH#HA Available for BEHH  Planned GFA s AEME S
Number of  Sale/Leasable GFA under of Future Total % of Total
I Regions Projects GFA  Development  Development Land Bank Land Bank
FrKk SES FIk S/ES %
sq.m. sq.m. sq.m. 5q.m. %
S T A ] i 2
Properties developed by the Group and its subsidiaries
RIL=A WA
Yangtze River Delta Economic Region
1 L Shanghai 5 245339 257,914 233,617 736,870 4.8%
2 HA Nanjing 4 273,565 876,602 — 1,150,167 7.5%
3 B Suzhou 9 203,579 637,228 368,339 1,209,146 9.0%
4 Bl Hefei 3 - 439,839 551,460 991,299 6.5%
5 R Jiaxing 2 — — 252,033 252,033 1.7%
6 T Chuzhou 1 — 46,242 143,567 189,809 1.2%
at Sub-total 24 722,483 2,257,825 1,549,017 4,529,325 29.7%
] o 7 A O
Midwest China Economic Region
7 RE Wuhan 1 — 160,505 35,656 196,161 1.3%
8 sl Changsha 2 80,357 215,908 664,850 961,115 6.3%
9 W% Xi'an 2 - 335,038 — 335,038 2.2%
it Sub-total 5 80,357 711,451 700,506 1,492,314 9.8%
R e
Bohai Economic Rim
10 KE Tianjin 3 10,566 273,634 115,483 397,683 2.6%
1 R Jinan 2 - - 272,656 272,636 1.8%
et Sub-total 5 10,566 273,634 386,139 670,338 44%

4 #t Annual Report 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis

R
Ok TR
[ VT
T RACHH 5
Completed GFA P B S +ib A - 3o ok
HH%H Available for HEERHE  Planned GFA fEfdas  AEMNE S
Number of  Sale/Leasable GFA under of Future Total % of Total
ol Regions Projects GFA  Development  Development Land Bank Land Bank
Tk S/ES S/ES R/ES %
sq.m. sq.m. sq.m. sq.m. %
TR A
Western Taiwan Straits Economic Zone
12 FaM Fuzhou 10 88,878 540,823 345,545 975,246 6.4%
13 mF Nanping 1 29,282 188,297 260,076 477,655 3.1%
14 FE Pingtan 5 97,318 376,971 195,704 669,993 4.4%
15 MA Nanchang 7 47,506 179,685 281,295 508,486 3.3%
16 #H Putian 12 264,720 750,314 436,959 1,451,994 9.5%
17 HE Yichun 2 5,874 77,484 — 83,357 0.5%
/it Sub-total 37 533,578 2,113,574 1,519,579 4,166,731 27.3%
/hat Sub-total 71 1,346,984 5,356,484 4,155,240 10,858,708 71.2%
KT 7 A S B A ] B
Properties developed by the Group’s joint ventures and associated companies
RIL=1 WA I
Yangtze River Delta Economic Region
i Shanghai 1 — — 307,227 307,227 2.0%
e Jiaxing 2 — 232,514 — 232,514 1.5%
Hat Nanjing 1 - — 248,880 248,880 1.6%
M Suzhou 5 - 552,666 — 552,666 3%
Al Heifei 2 — 395,273 99,922 495,194 3.2%
/it Sub-total 11 — 1,180,453 656,029 1,836,481 12.0%
JE /NG Attributable
sub-total — 429,937 144,196 574,133

Zhenro Properties Group Led. 1E 4% b & B R A 7
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AR Y
Ok TR
T/
JaE i P 3k
Completed GFA PEEH B +i 1 L
HE%E Available for HAEMBE  Planned GFA sy AEES I
Number of  Sale/Leasable GFA under of Future Total % of Total
ol Regions Projects GFA  Development  Development Land Bank Land Bank
Furk Frk Fk Pk %
sq.m. sq.m. sq.m. 5q.m. %
o G A i
Midwest China Economic Region
18 E Zhengzhou 1 - 81,118 140,189 221,307 1.5%
it d Wuhan 2 — - 967,776 967,776 6.3%
R Changsha 1 — 304,991 41,359 346,350 2.3%
Nt Sub-total 4 — 386,109 1,149,324 1,535,433 10.1%
TG /INET Attributable
sub-total — 171,964 277,823 449,786
TR
Bohai Economic Rim
K Tian jin 2 — — 426,007 426,007 2.8%
Nt Sub-total 2 — — 426,007 426,007 2.8%
TR /INET Attributable
sub-total — — 56,345 56,345
HEURE Y B A R
Western Taiwan Straits Economic Zone
faM Fuzhou 1 — 65,364 114,381 179,745 1.2%
= Nanchng 2 - 422,724 — 422,724 2.7%
/NGF Sub-total 3 — 488,088 114,381 602,468 3.9%
RGNt Attributable
sub-total — 114,756 41,177 155,933

4 #t Annual Report 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis

R
Ok TR
[ VT
T RACHH 5
Completed GFA PEEH B +i 1 L
JHH¥H  Available for MM  Planned GFA Y BMWTE AL
Number of  Sale/Leasable GFA under of Future Total % of Total
ol Regions Projects GFA  Development  Development Land Bank Land Bank
S/ES S/ES SES R/ZS %
$g.m. 5q.m. 5g.m. $g.m. %
AEEGERE Properties
Kol 4 ] b 5% developed
(IE/ES by the Group’s
joint ventures
and associated
companies 20 - 2,054,649 2,345,740 4,400,389 28.8%
AEE GBS Properties
T 2 v [ 4 developed
iSEIES by the Group’s
(MRS &) joint ventures
and associated
companies on
an attributable
basis - 716,657 519,541 1,236,198
A Total land bank 91 1,546,984 7,411,133 6,500,981 15,259,098 100.0%
R AR Total land
(M) bank onan
attributable
basis 1,346,984 6,073,141 4,674,781 12,094,906

Zhenro Properties Group Led. 1E 4% b & B R A 7
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TR EE - F—t4E++ A =+—H

ASAE 2 IE E #0019 LR R

JHH A1

Project Names

AR5 RCHL I 2 I B 1%
Properties developed by the Group

and its subsidiaries

RTL= F A8 [

Yangtze River Delta Economic Region

1

ITHE o IERM—H
Shanghai Hongqiao Zhenro
Mansion Phase I

ITHE o IR
Shanghai Honggiao Zhenro
Mansion Phase II
AR R oL
Shanghai Honggiao
Fortune Center

AR o ESEHL—H
Shanghai Honggiao
Zhenro Center Phase

ARG o ESEHL
Shanghai Honggiao Zhenro
Center Phase II

IE5 o B0
Shanghai Zhenro Royal
Kingdom Phase I
IEZE » B
Shanghai Zhenro Royal
Kingdom Phase II

W
City

it
Shanghai

L
Shanghai

it
Shanghai

it
Shanghai

L
Shanghai

it
Shanghai

L
Shanghai

December 31, 2017.

RER
HEAf i

Interest
Attributable
to the Group

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

SHH MR e g
Primary Intended Use

of the Project

EE/ %

Residential/retail

£

Residential

S
Retail

FE /SOHO MIE 7
Retail/SOHO and office

FE /SOHO MIE 7
Retail/SOHO and office

EE/ %

Residential/retail

£

Residential

TR
Site Area
ik

sq.m.

35,759

22,564

24,039

50,585

23,110

55,274

54,748

B/t
T HM
Actual/Estimated
Construction

Completion Date

“F—LEAA
June 2017

e S o S
December 2017

“ETHIA
May 2021

—E=ANETZH
December 2016

ZE—NEF— N
November 2018

e
May 2016

—“F—tE+—A
November 2017

The following table sets forth details of the Group’s land bank by projects as of

T
Ao
Total Land
Bank®
Pk

sq.m.

32,146

32,459

106,112

66,371

89,625

30,036

59,276
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srains
T A it
e ::.'-'_: WAt e RIAM T s fib
ne :I':-' Interest  JHH 89915 e & Actual/Estimated st gl
: [ : -— '—: JHE AW Wt Attributable  Primary Intended Use HWEHH  Construction Total Land
sEme”~  Project Names City to the Group  of the Project Site Area  Completion Date Bank"
FHK PHK
sq.m. sq.m.
50 IR e BEK-M L 100.0% % 60,692 —F—AREAH 2,500
Shanghai Zhenro The Capital ~ Shanghai Residential June 2016
of Jinshan Phase I
4 o SER 1 L 100.0% fEE 3,045 ZF—NELHA 111,603
Shanghai Zhenro The Capital ~ Shanghai Residential July 2018
of Jinshan Phase II
5 o SER =1 Lty 100.0% %%/ sOHO M 1 41,948 “FZ R 127,505
Shanghai Zhenro The Capital ~ Shanghai Retail/SOHO and office May 2021
of Jinshan Phase III
6 EReRE-M L 100.0% {2/ FE 33,008 “F—AEFS 530
Shanghai Zhenro Fontainebleau Shanghai Residential/retail December 2016
Phase I
B2 o B A Lt 100.0% fiE,/ %5 32,000 &L+ 22,022
Shanghai Zhenro Fontainebleau Shanghai Residential/retail November 2017
Phase II
IE% « BRE = L 100.0% % 37,798 ZF—HFZA 56,086
Shanghai Zhenro Fontainebleau Shanghai Residential February 2019
Phase III
il 514,570 736,870
Shanghai sub-total
6 e WA 100.0% {2/ % 72,100 —FZFENAH 183,878
2017 5 75 —044
Jiaxing No.2017 Jiaxing Residential/retail August 2020
Jiaxiuzhou-044
7 #EEH2017-101 i 100.0% fEE 39,984 “EFZFFTA 68,156
(JLRELIRH)
JiaxingNo.2017-101 Jiaxing Residential October 2020
FIU IR/ 112,084 252,033

Jiaxing sub-total

44 Zhenro Properties Group Led. 1E 4% Hu & A KR 4\ 7]
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KEM T /Bt
FE Al 2 BTHH LA
Interest  JH H M#I$4E Mig Actual/Estimated Ao
JHH A W Attributable  Primary Intended Use WHMA  Construction Total Land
Project Names City to the Group  of the Project Site Area  Completion Date Bank"
FrKk FrKk
sq.m. sq.m.
8 EXMEIN b 100.0% /%5 71345 ZE— NN 118,806
Nanjing Zhenro Riverside Nanjing Residential/retail December 2018
Wonderland
9 ERHERK b 100.0% /%% 105,353 —“F—F-A 268,051
Nanjing Zhenro Splendid Land  Nanjing Residential/retail January 2019
10 EEH% R 100.0% {2,/ %5 84,545 “E—NETA 304,366
Nanjing Zhenro Royal Fame ~ Nanjing Residential/retail May 2019
11 ERGEITEM (AR [EE 100.0% fEE/%E 83,048 “E-THE+T] 163,056
Nanjing Zhenro Riverside Nanjing Residential/retail December 2020
Violet Mansion Parcel A
IESETEIT W (B 1) R 100.0% %%/ SOHO M 744 [ S <25 gy 295,890
Nanjing Zhenro Riverside Nanjing Retail/SOHO and office /" December
Violet Mansion Parcel B
R R E /DR 344,291 1,150,167
Nanjing sub-taoal
12 BMIESERT M 100.0% £/ %5 80,867 “EF 4 f 189,809
Chuzhou Zhenro Mansion Chuzhou Residential/retail April 2021
T/t 80,867 189,809
Chuzhou sub-total
13 IERBI%E M 100.0% {2,/ %% 107,542 =%~ A+ N 45,836
Suzhou Zhenro Royal Kingdom Suzhou Residential/retail December 2018
14 EREN—H B 100.0% /%5 48866 —F—LHENA 128,730
Suzhou Zhenro Happiness Suzhou Residential/retail August 2017
Town Phase [
IESEHE I — 0 B 100.0% /%5 35,812 —&—L4ENA 31,389
Suzhou Zhenro Happiness Suzhou Residential/retail August 2017

Town Phase 11

4 #t Annual Report 2017
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AEMH V80t
TE Al HE 2 BT HH LA
Interest  JH H #I$4E Mig Actual/Estimated st gl
HHAMR Bl Attributable  Primary Intended Use HWEHH  Construction Total Land
Project Names City to the Group  of the Project Site Area  Completion Date Bank"
FrKk FrKk
sq.m. sq.m.
15 IERBRIL M 100.0% fEE 65,679 —F— /TN 133,632
Suzhou Zhenro Top Mountain ~ Suzhou Residential May 2018
16 IEAEHIRRE e 1000% fEE,/FHE 29531 “F—NEFA 56,389
Suzhou Zhenro Majestic Garden Suzhou Residential/retail December 2018
17 IEA o BUEECRIZECRIEE) BM 100.0% fEE 105210 “F-FEIH 310,956
Suzhou Yue Tang Bay Suzhou Residential September 2020
Garden House
18 R KB K 3 2016-WG- BRM 100.0% fEE 24583 “E—JUEF—H 77,799
779 B M
Suzhou No. Sudi2016-WG-77  Suzhou Residential November 2019
Parcel B
M0 97 90 3 2016-W G- BN 100.0% fEE 30,760 —F—hAERA 94,636
779 CHiM
Suzhou No. Sudi2016-WG-77  Suzhou Residential May 2019
Parcel C
M K0 97 900 K 3 2016-W G- BRI 100.0% %%/ SOHO & F4& 7239 ZEFZFEZR 52,493
779 AR
Suzhou No. Sudi2016-WG-77  Suzhou Retail/SOHO and office March 2020
Parcel A
19 BRNTESEITER BN 1000% i€,/ %5 98,785 —EF—NETA 170,241
Suzhou Miles Splendid Garden  Suzhou Residential/retail December 2019
20 BRMKFHER M 100.0% {2,/ %% 21,638 &St/ 48,960
Suzhou Tian Qin Suzhou Residential/retail November 2019
Elegance Garden
21 BRMIESR o FILRER: M 100.0% fEE 39,098 —F—fuE+A 58,084
Suzhou Zhenro Xiangshan Suzhou Residential December 2019
Piedmont Garden
B s /NGt 614,741 1,209,146

Suzhou sub-total

Zhenro Properties Group Led. 1E 4% b & B R A 7
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KEM Bt
FE Al 2 T H LA
Interest  JH H M#I$4E Mig Actual/Estimated Ao
JHEAH Wt Attributable  Primary Intended Use WHEHE  Construction Total Land
Project Names City to the Group  of the Project Site Area  Completion Date Bank"
K K
sg.m. sg.m.
22 RIEES « BiEHE L 100.0% €,/ %%,/ soHo M 120,705 ZF S 598,397
Hefei Capital Yue Hefei Residential/retail/ May 2020
SOHO and office
23 BIEHE 1907 G 100.0% £,/ SOHO fIF 71 111380 “Z-ZELN 289,511
Hefei City 1907 Hefei Residential/SOHO July 2020
and office
24 QIEERE #ie 100.0% HE 38221 “EEHEFA 103,391
Hefei Zhenro Mansion Hefei Residential October 2020
A HE NG 270,305 991,299

Hefei sub-total

4 #t Annual Report 2017
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AEMH V80t
TE Al HE 2 BT HH LA
Interest T H #1452 & Actual/Estimated o
JHE AW Wt Attributable Primary Intended Use WHEHE  Construction Total Land
Project Names City to the Group  of the Project Site Area  Completion Date Bank"
Pk Pk
sg.m. sg.m.
o o AR A Rl
Midwest China Economic Region
25 REERN-—AH R 100.0% EE/FHE 39,235 “EF—JENLA 160,505
Wuhan Zhenro Mansion Wuhan Residential/retail September 2019
Parcel A
R IER —B A R 100.0% SOHO FIE;F 4 9,501 “F—/N\ENMA 35,656
Wuhan Zhenro Mansion Wuhan SOHO and office September 2018
Parcel B
R R/ G 48,736 196,161
Wuhan sub-total
26 PHEIES o B 1% 100.0% %%/ SOHO FIF T 1% 30422 ZE—NEZS 123,945
Xi'an Zhenro Rainbow Valley  Xi'an Retail/SOHO and office March 2018
27 WERERF—H W% 100.0% fEE 24,150 “F-FENA 108,002
(5% QJ10-8-484)
Xi'an Zhenro Mansion Phase I~ Xi'an Residential April 2020
(Parcel QJ10-8-484)
7Y% E SR — RS 100.0% %/ SOHO F T4 15172 “F-REHA 103,091
(5 QJ10-8-485)
Xi'an Zhenro Mansion Phase I Xi'an Retail/SOHO and office May 2020
(Parcel Q]10-8-485)
75 % /Nt 69,743 335,038

Xi'an sub-total

Zhenro Properties Group Led. 1E 4% b & B R A 7
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KEH T /Bt
WAl e BTHH T s fib
Interest  JH H M#I$4E Mig Actual/Estimated Ao
JHEAH i Attributable  Primary Intended Use WHEHE  Construction Total Land
Project Names City to the Group  of the Project Site Area  Completion Date Bank"
FrKk FrKk
sg.m. sg.m.
28 RUVERMEHLHE-# RV 1000% €/ % 48,021 —F— )\ H 47,085
(1-5#)
Changsha Zhenro Fortune Changsha Residential/retail February 2018
Center (1-54)
RUERME LE Mt  RY 100.0% €/ %% | CER—ERA 99,908
(6-10#)
Changsha Zhenro Fortune Changsha Residential/retail May 2018
Center (6-10%#)
ROEEME RO RV 100.0% %4/ SOHO M%7 14 97,199 —F_FEZH 115,742
(FWEFTH)
Changsha Zhenro Fortune Changsha Retail/SOHO and office March 2020
Center (Commercial
and Office)
ROERHE LN RY 100.0% fEE/ %% | SR JUETA 362,861
(f£E)
Changsha Zhenro Fortune Changsha Residential/retail October 2019
Center (Residential)
29 RUEIL o 4R =20 100.0% A/ FHE 106,652 —F-—FHA 335,519
SOHO 5 7
Changsha Binjiang Zhenro Changsha Residential/retail/ May 2021
Mansion SOHO and office
RUHE/NGT 251,872 961,115

Changsha sub-total
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KEH V80t
TE Al HE 2 BT HH LA
Interest T H #1452 & Actual/Estimated o
JHE AW Wt Attributable Primary Intended Use WHEHE  Construction Total Land
Project Names City to the Group  of the Project Site Area  Completion Date Bank"
FHK PHK
sq.m. sq.m.
R e
Bohai Economic Rim
30 REESR e BREN K 100.0% EE/FHE 66955 —F—AEFA 2,491
Tianjin Zhenro Jade Bay Tianjin Residential/retail December 2016
Phase I
REIESR o WIE M K 100.0% E/FE 60,742 —F—/\4EXA 11,062
Tianjin Zhenro Jade Bay Tianjin Residential/retail June 2018
Phase II
31 RHIESRIN—H K 1000% €/ %% 111,524 —F—JE+—A 270,646
Tianjin Zhenro Zhenro Tianjin Residential/retail November 2019
Mansion Phase I
RIERM W (@) K 100.0% AN 17,785 —F—NE+—A 14,028
Tianjin Zhenro Zhenro Tianjin N/A November 2019
Mansion Phase II
(with School)
32 KW e FHAHA () Kt 100.0% {EE/ %%/ s0HO 18,190 “F A 99,255
2016-099 MES 71
Tianjin No. Jinnanhonggua ~ Tianjin Residential/retail/ September 2021
2016-099 SOHO and office
RHEH IR/t 275,196 397,683

Tianjin sub-total

Zhenro Properties Group Led. 1E 4% b & B R A 7
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JHH A1

Project Names

33

34

35

FAMERER S f0— 3 (E)

Fuzhou Zhenro Fortune Center
Phase I (Residential)

AR IE S a8 0 — 30
(1424 7#)

Fuzhou Zhenro Fortune Center
Phase II (1#, 2#, 7#)

TR E S 5 0 =109
(34 4# > 54 6#)

Fuzhou Zhenro Fortune Center
Phase III (34, 4#, 5#, 6#)

TR EG B LE SR B & o —

Fuzhou Mawei Zhenro Fortune
Center Phase [

TR FG B LE SR B 0

Fuzhou Mawei Zhenro Fortune
Center Phase II

FMIES o HE—H
(BR 3454 K5 4€)

Fuzhou Zhenro Rivage Garden

Phase [ (excluding 3# and 5#)

TMIES o HE 8
(3454 K5 4€)

Fuzhou Zhenro Rivage Garden
Phase II (3# and 5#)

N
MG HE 2
Interest
W Attributable
City to the Group
M 100.0%
Fuzhou
M 100.0%
Fuzhou
FaM 100.0%
Fuzhou
M 100.0%
Fuzhou
M 100.0%
Fuzhou
M 100.0%
Fuzhou
FaM 100.0%
Fuzhou

S H B 55 E Mg
Primary Intended Use
of the Project

e/ %E

Residential/retail

28

Retail

TE /SOHOME T
Retail/SOHO and office

EE/ %

Residential/retail

/% /SOHO
ME T

Residential/retail/
SOHO and office
i
Residential

EE

Residential

W
Site Area
IR

sq.m.

66,667

46,667

67,032

51,447

B
T H
Actual/Estimated
Construction

Completion Date

%= )\4FNA
April 2018

“EF -t A

December 2017

SE— L

December 2017

—“F-)\E1A
September 2018

January 2019

s S

October 2015

“E-THE

October 2015

4 #t Annual Report 2017

RN
) g( U]
Total Land
Bank®
ik

sq.m.

7,325

77,199

849

106,760

80,885

1,227
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e ::.'-'_: FEARERS BTHH LA
: L] :I':-' Interest  JH H #I$4E Mig Actual/Estimated o
senes=  HH LA Wt Attributable Primary Intended Use ~ HiMTiif% Construction Total Land
: n : —,'; Project Names City to the Group  of the Project Site Area  Completion Date Bank"
o FrKk FrKk
sq.m. sq.m.
36 ARMIEANT L — M 100.0% A 6290 “EF-NEFH 600
Fuzhou Zhenro Mansion Fuzhou N/A December 2019
Parcel I
M IER = AR 100.0% fEE/ % 19434 —F-NEFTZA 69,584
Fuzhou Zhenro Mansion Fuzhou Residential/retail December 2019
Parcel II
M IER = M 100.0% EE/ % 41,149 “F—hE+ZA 143,982
Fuzhou Zhenro Mansion Fuzhou 100.0%  Residential/retail December 2019
Parcel 11T
37 RRMIEAE « F fEM 100.0% {1,/ SOHO M % FH 22,778 ZF—ZHEAH -
Fuzhou Zhenro Rivage City ~ Fuzhou Residential/ August 2012
SOHO and office
38 BREE « Bl M 100.0% %/ %%/ 25,027 “F—JUAEA 43,400
SOHO IR 744
Mawei Zhenro Top Mountain ~ Fuzhou 100.0% Residential/retail/ April 2019
SOHO and office
39 RMIESE o BLlE M 1000% FE/ %E 29,160 —F—JUENA 97,891
Fuzhou Zhenro Yue Lan Bay ~ Fuzhou Residential/retail April 2019
40  EFefRA M 100.0% fEE 35,164 —F-FE+—] 154,554
Fuzhou Zhenro Yuejingtai Fuzhou Residential November 2020
41 BR e FEFH017-07 BN 100.0% fEE 36,014 “EZFENA 46,583
Mawei No. Mazhongdi2017-07 Fuzhou Residential September 2020
B S8/t 494,027 975,247

Fuzhou sub-total
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Management Discussion and Analysis

KEH V8Tl
WAl e BTHY T s fib
Interest  JH H M#I$4E Mig Actual/Estimated Ao
JHEAH i Attributable  Primary Intended Use WHEHE  Construction Total Land
Project Names City to the Group  of the Project Site Area  Completion Date Bank"
Pk P
sq.m. sq.m.
42 KRR « HLE M 100.0% fEE 4700 “F-FHENN 144,409
Mawei Zhenro Yue Jiang Bay ~ Fuzhou Residential August 2020
43 ETERMESL -8 BT 100.0% E/ %4 87,546 —F—JE+—A 121,408
Nanping Zhenro Fortune Nanping 100.0%  Residential/retail November 2019
Center Parcel I Phase I
M ERSE LS mT 100.0% %4/ SOHO M%7 14 2,31 “F-FEF—N 159,856
Nanping Zhenro Fortune Nanping Retail/SOHO and office November 2020
Center Parcel I Phase II
MTEEME RO S T 100.0% fEE 76,050 —F—JLEMA 196,392
Nanping Zhento Fortune Nanping Residential April 2019
Center Parcel II
iR 1Y% 205,827 477,655
Nanping sub-totbal
44 PEER « Wi FiE 100.0% fEE/ %% 48,282 —F— /LA 6,626
Pingtan Zhenro Smooth Sea  Pingtan Residential/retail September 2018
Phase
FRIES o i~ TE 100.0% L€/ % 37,935 —F—MNEAH 3,800
Pingtan Zhenro Smooth Sea  Pingtan 100.0%  Residential/retail June 2018
Phase II
45 CFRIESR o B T 100.0% fEE/ & 23,228 —F— /A 86,893
Pingtan Zhento Royal Lake Bay Pingtan Residential/retail December 2018
46 CFIRIES o BLbHE— P 100.0% €/ %FE 19215 “FZFENA 69,558
Pingtan Zhenro Yue Lake Bay ~ Pingtan Residential/retail April 2020
Phase I
FRIESE o BLbE— P 100.0% EE/%FE 19215 “FZFETHA 67,793
Pingtan Zhenro Yue Lake Bay  Pingtan 100.0%  Residential/retail October 2020

Phase 11

4 #t Annual Report 2017
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"I:8Y  Management Discussion and Analysis
E Ey ™
EEm EE.':
T RLIY
. L R N
e A T/ it
W T FEARERS BT HH LA
ne v = Interest T H #1452 & Actual/Estimated st gl
T '-—':—: JHE AW Wt Attributable Primary Intended Use ~ HiMTiif% Construction Total Land
”’
: n : J~  Project Names City to the Group  of the Project Site Area  Completion Date Bank"
FrKk FrKk
sg.m. sg.m.
47 PERERR-H(EMNTE TR 100.0% fEE/ % 66,560 —F-—AEFA 239,620
L B 2017G006)
Pingtan Zhenro Mansion Pingtan Residential/retail October 2021
Phase I
48 FRIERN M RMFR  FE 100.0% €/ %% 52321 —EZEILA 195,704
JIE & % 2017G007)
Pingtan Zhenro Mansion Pingtan Residential/retail September 2021
Phase II
PR 8Vt 266,876 669,993
Pingtan sub-total
49 HHIES « MR HH 100.0% EE/ %% 70,655 —F—NELA 233,135
Putian Zhenro Smooth Jade ~ Putian Residential/retail May 2018
50 WHERMETLALEE  HH 100.0% %4/ SOHO M FH% 199,041 —F—tF—H 176,552
utian Zhenro Fortune Center  Putian 0% Retai and office anuar 7
Putian Zhento Fortune C Puti 100.0% Retail/SOHO and off January 201
Parcel Al
WHIEEME T LA2ME  HH 100.0% SOHO FIF 74 | ZECEELTA 109,919
Putian Zhenro Fortune Center  Putian SOHO and office December 2020
Parcel A2
WHEZMEROBIE  HH 100.0% E/FE | ZEREA 16,992
Putian Zhenro Fortune Center  Putian Residential/retai anuary 201
ian Zh C i idential/retail y 2016
Parcel B1
WHEZMERLOB2NE  #H 100.0% E/FE | ZE-RNETA 20,718
Putian Zhenro Fortune Center  Putian Residential/retail November 2016
Parcel B2
s HEHEAE NS HH 100.0% E/FE 30,844 ~F—UENA -
Putian Zhenro Royal Orchid ~ Putian Residential/retail April 2014
Bay
52 WHIESE o FRREER HH 100.0% E/FE 35,2608 —“F—FERA 819
Putian Zhenro Litchi Garden ~ Putian Residential/retail June 2010
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Management Discussion and Analysis

KEM Bt
FE Al 2 BTHH LA
Interest Y H M¥I 5 € g Actual/Estimated Hago
JHEAH i Attributable  Primary Intended Use WHEHE  Construction Total Land
Project Names City to the Group  of the Project Site Area  Completion Date Bank"
Pk P
sq.m. sq.m.
53 WHIES o BRUES i 1000% €/ % 118,943 —F—UFEZJ 44,310
Putian Zhenro Times Plaza Putian Residential/retail March 2014
54 WHIES o BHTE HH 100.0% A/ FHE 2431 ZF—ARETA 5,328
Putian Zhenro Royal Family ~ Putian Residential/retail October 2016
55 WHERR i 100.0% %/ %FE 94,108 “F—fEFTA 293,673
Putian Zhenro Mansion Putian Residential/retail December 2019
56 HHIES « RH%M Hi 100.0% fEE/%FE 33,283 “EF—JUEF—] 107,909
Putian Zhenro Royal Mansion ~ Putian Residential/retail November 2019
57 HH e FHpsH—2017-10  HH 100.0% fEE 79,698 —F_FHE+H 159,487
Putian No. PSPai-2017-10 Putian Residential October 2020
58 WHIE o LR #H 100.0% i€/ %% 23926 “E-ZRENA 65,850
Putian Binxi Zhenro Mansion ~ Putian Residential/retail April 2020
59 WHAM e BRI i 100.0% fEE 33942 “FFE=N 115,598
Putian Shishi Zhenro Mansion ~ Putian Residential March 2020
60 M e FHPSH—2017-11  HH 100.0% E/FE 39,848 “F FEN 101,703
Putian No. PSPai-2017-11 Putian SOHO FI%; 4% April 2020
Residential/retail/
SOHO and office
i b/ 802,885 1,451,994

Putian sub-total

4 #t Annual Report 2017
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- :-'F E
s
T A it
e ::.'-'_: TE Al HE 2 RIAM T s fib
ne :I':_-' Interest T H #1452 & Actual/Estimated st gl
senes=  HH LA Wt Attributable Primary Intended Use ~ HiMTiif% Construction Total Land
: n : —_'; Project Names City to the Group  of the Project Site Area  Completion Date Bank"
FaKk Fk
sq.m. sq.m.
61 RMBIES » BNEE #E 100.0% EE/%E 59,558 —EF—LEN 5485
Nanchang Zhenro First Mansion Nanchang Residential/retail August 2017
62 FALESR e Bk 12 100.0% E/FE 68313 “F—AFNLA 2,264
Nanchang Zhenro Nanchang Residential/retail September 2016
Embellish City
63 FABIEZ o WK #E 100.0%
Nanchang Zhenro Royal Sunrise Nanchang
MBS » B = 100.0% T/ FE 27,715 “EF =t 230
Nanchang Zhenro Royal Garden Nanchang Residential/retail November 2013
RIEIES o B B 100.0% EE/ % 2185 —F—HELA 599
Nanchang Zhenro Royal Statue  Nanchang Residential/retail May 2015
RBIES « B 12 100.0% E/FE 46986 —F—THENA 2,181
Nanchang Zhenro Nanchang Residential/retail September 2015
Royal Quality
RIEIES o % HE 100.0% EE/FHE 44387 “E—AREXA 1,715
Nanchang Zhenro Nanchang Residential/retail June 2016
Royal Summit
FIEESE o HHTIL HE 100.0% €/ %E 36488 “F—AEN 1,959
Nanchang Zhenro The Country Nanchang Residential/retail February 2016
64 FBIER o RIZH = 100.0% fEE/%E 872,794 —F—LHEAS 33,073
Nanchang Zhenro The Nanchang Residential/retail June 2017
Capital of Great Loch
65 MAERRN HE 100.0% HE/%E 103,413 “F-REF—H 277,498
Nanchang Zhenro Mansion Nanchang Residential/retail November 2020
66 MRIERIHERH (1] 100.0% HE 7,049 “F AN 20,721
Nanchang West Lake Nanchang Residential November 2019
Violet Mansion
67 FEFHDBA2017077 & 100.0% fEE/FE 60,732 “EF-EREJ 162,760
(BEMALIEE ) Nanchang Residential/retail February 2020
Nanchang No. DBA2017077
1 B T 1,349,620 508,485

Nanchang sub-total
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Management Discussion and Analysis

KEH T /Bt
WAl e BTHY T s fib
Interest  JH H M#I$4E Mig Actual/Estimated Ao
JHEAH i Attributable  Primary Intended Use WHEHE  Construction Total Land
Project Names City to the Group  of the Project Site Area  Completion Date Bank"
FKk FaKk
sq.m. sq.m.
68 HEIES « BIEIL HE 100.0% /% 138,667 —“F—=4ESLN 26
Yichun Zhenro Yichun Residential/retail September 2013
Landscape Riverside
69 HEER BRETH-H HE 100.0% fEE 171,791 —F— =]
Yichun Zhenro Royal Yichun Residential April 2013
Riverside South 1
HEES « BREIE M BF 100.0% {EE/%E | ZE-ZFFZA 1,014
Yichun Zhenro Royal Yichun Residential/retail December 2013
Riverside South 2
HEES « BRI BF 100.0% EE/ %% )RR 3,899
Yichun Zhenro Royal Yichun Residential/retail August 2015
Riverside North 1
HEER « 8 HE 100.0% L€/ %%/ [ SN 14,698
bl i Yichun SOHO I} F 1 June 2018
Yichun Zhenro Royal Residential/retail/
Riverside North 2 SOHO and office
HEESR « BREITL=0 HE 100.0% fEE | ZFE—NEAA 63,720
Yichun Zhenro Royal Yichun Residential August 2018
Riverside North 3
HAE/ DG 310,458 83,357

Yichun sub-total

4 #t Annual Report 2017
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KEH V80t
WAt e BT HH T s fib
Interest T H #1452 & Actual/Estimated o
JHE AW Wt Attributable Primary Intended Use WHEHE  Construction Total Land
Project Names City to the Group  of the Project Site Area  Completion Date Bank"
FaKk Fk
sg.m. sg.m.
70 WRIZEH2017-G121 il 100.0% EE/ % 57,78 “EF-—FHA 199,867
(RIS A9 HIKE) Jinan Residential/retail May 2021
Jinan No. 2017-G121
71 PEREEH2017-G122 Uit 100.0% i€/ %E 23,013 “EF-EFTA 72,789
(SRES T A9 HIEH) Jinan Residential/retail December 2021
Jinan No.2017-G122
e /Dt 80,798 272,656
Jinan sub-total
ARSI BOL I 2 R B Y +30 Rk /Dt 6,092,898 10,858,708
Sub-total of land bank developed by the Group and its subsidiaries
KR T o BB B R A
Properties developed by the Group’s joint ventures and associated companies
RAL= A WA [
Yangtze River Delta Economic Region
1 FirfEBuU Lig 209 F%/SOHOME T 70857 “FZFE+—A 307,027
Shanghai Shanghai Retail/SOHO November 2020
No. 201419370776439142 and office
2 THIESR ¢ i LA i 0% [EE/FE 33424 “E—HUETZA 84,746
Jiaxing Zhongnan Jiaxing Residential/retail December 2019
Zhenro Haishang Mingyue
30 EWRAN RA 0% [EE/FE 63,568 —FE—JETH 147,768
Jiaxing Canal Mansion Jiaxing Residential/retail October 2019

Zhenro Properties Group Led. 1E 4% b & B R A 7
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Management Discussion and Analysis

KEM T /Bt
FE Al 2 BTHH LA
Interest T H #1452 ME Actual/Estimated st
HHAR Wl Attributable  Primary Intended Use HWEHAR  Construction Total Land
Project Names City to the Group  of the Project Site Area  Completion Date Bank"
FrKk FrKk
sg.m. sg.m.
4 HRILH2017G36 b 0% L€/ %E/ 4311 “F 4R 248,880
Nanjing Nanjing SOHO il 5y F 1 June 2021
No. 320115001022GB00780 Residential/retail/
-GB00784 SOHO and office
5 RRER e« fCiBNF M 49% £ 32,044 ZE—JEZH 82,018
Suzhou Jinhui Zhenro Suzhou Residential March 2019
Four Seasons
6 BEM e FHbw)g-2017-017  BEM s0% HE/%E 5,759 —EF—NF=A 14,386
Suzhou No.W]J-J-2017-017  Suzhou Residential/retail March 2019
7 BN e FHwg-2017-016  BRM 50% T 7,585 —E—NEZRA 21,534
Suzhou No.WJ-J-2017-016  Suzhou Residential March 2019
§ AR o kM 0% T/ %E 128313 “F—JUEt+—H 312,090
(BEMILHEHE ) Residential/retail November 2019
Suzhou Yuzhou Zhaoshang Shili Suzhou
9 WREEEEREEREK BN 36% T 66,738 —~F—/\F+—] 122,638
14W]J-J-2017-019 Residential November 2018
Suzhou Lanxi Bay Garden Suzhou
10 HEREESR o H18 & 49% AEE/ SOHO M T 44787 “E-TEAN 115,773
Hefei Country Garden Hefei Residential/ June 2020
Zhenro Jade Yue SOHO and office
11 AREATLKTF Al 33% {LE,/SOHOME F4& 130918 —“F—JUETA 379421
Hefei Century World Hefei Residential/ October 2019
SOHO and office
R =y A B/t 638,305 1,836,481
Yangtze River Delta Economic Region sub-total
210,740 574,133

4 #t Annual Report 2017
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KEH V80t
TE Al HE 2 BT HH LA
Interest T H #1452 & Actual/Estimated st gl
HHAMR Bl Attributable  Primary Intended Use HWEHH  Construction Total Land
Project Names City to the Group  of the Project Site Area  Completion Date Bank"
FaKk Fk
sq.m. sq.m.
g A b
Midwest China Economic Region
12 JBHEIESEE M 2% LT/ EE 69,439 —F—JEZR 221,307
Zhengzhou Xuhui Zhenro Zhengzhou Residential/retail March 2019
Capital Mansion
13 REER « WA R s0% fEE/ 136,139 —“FZFHE—H 192,806
Wuhan Zhenro Royal Wuhan Residential/retail January 2020
Summit Phase I
RIEILSR « ZHH 1 HiE s0% AEE [ S 196,325
Wuhan Zhenro Royal Wuhan Residential June 2021
Summit Phase II
14 EHEIESENT R s LT/ RE 156,511 —“FZ—F—] 578,645
Wuhan Qingneng Wuhan Residential/retail November 2021
Zhenro Mansion
15 RUHHE « BN ®Y s0% ALE/FHE 108,221 —“F—/\4ENA 193,602
Changsha Meixi Zhenro Changsha Residential/retail September 2018
Mansion Phase I
RUMHE o ERUH 1 ’Y 50% EE [ S S 21Y 152,747
Changsha Meixi Zhenro Changsha Residential April 2020
Mansion Phase II
v e A 470,311 1,535,433
Midwest China Economic Region sub-total
146,671 449,786

Zhenro Properties Group Led. 1E 4% b & B R A 7
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Management Discussion and Analysis

KEM T /Bt
FE Al 2 BTHH LA
Interest  JH H M#I$4E Mig Actual/Estimated Ao
JHEAH Wt Attributable  Primary Intended Use WHEHE  Construction Total Land
Project Names City to the Group  of the Project Site Area  Completion Date Bank"
FrKk FrKk
sg.m. sg.m.
R e
Bohai Economic Rim
16 K e EEILE () K B3 T/ FE 149,245 “FZFHEFZA 219,707
2017-A/B/C/D/E/FIG/H/]
Tianjin No. Jinbinbeitanggua  Tianjin Residential/retail December 2020
2017-1-A/B/C/D/
E/FIG/H/I]
17 KEhfh K 14% €/ %%/ SOHO 45511 “F-FENR 206,300
LR
Tianjin No. Tianjin Residential/retail/ August 2020
Jindongxingua 2016-071 SOHO and office
BRiG AT at 194,756 426,007
Bohai Economic Rim sub-total
25,027 56,345
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KEH V80t
TE Al HE 2 BT HH LA
Interest T H #1452 & Actual/Estimated o
JHE AW Wt Attributable Primary Intended Use WHEHE  Construction Total Land
Project Names City to the Group  of the Project Site Area  Completion Date Bank"
FaKk Fk
sq.m. sq.m.
I 1 A
Western Taiwan StraitsEconomic Zone
18 REGAEIHEA AR 36% fEE/FE 66,706 —“F-FERLN 179,745
Fujian Zhenro Yue Long Bay ~ Fuzhou Residential/retail May 2020
19 HARE e 9%t/ %E 90,420 —F—NENA 240,926
Nanchang Garden Nanchang Residential/retail September 2019
20 IERIER o BET & 5% fLE/%E 72,105 ZEF—hEF—A 181,797
Nanchang Zhenro Linlong Nanchang Residential/retail November 2019
Mansion
VARG T 40 229,229 602,468
Western Taiwan Straits Economic Zone sub-total
59,220 155,933
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Management Discussion and Analysis

KEM Bt
FE Al 2 T H LA
Interest Y H M¥I 5 € g Actual/Estimated Hago
JHEAH i Attributable  Primary Intended Use WHEHE  Construction Total Land
Project Names City to the Group  of the Project Site Area  Completion Date Bank"
K K
sq.m. sq.m.
AEEAEAFELBEAF 1,532,601 4,400,389
B 1Y LG /Dt
Sub-total of land bank
developed by the Group’s
joint ventures and
associated companies
g ANt 441,658 1,236,198
(FeREfL ARt )
Sub-total associated companies
on an attributable basis
T fak A 7,625,498 15,259,098
Total land bank
R 6,534,556 12,094,906
(FeREfL ARt )
Total land bank on
an attributable basis
FfraE Note:
(6] AL T R R R EA AR O TR TY 1) Total GFA of the Group's land bank includes (1) GFA available for sale and total leasable

ST 1 A SR HRT R A A A SRR - i)
B B v 4 28 B 0 o SR T i) AR R A BB
PR AR o AR A R A
FRFARIEAT S - A m R R M7
IR H b i R AT 2

GFA for completed properties, (ii) total GFA for properties under development and (iii)
total GFA for properties held for future development. For projects held by our Joint
Ventures and associated companies, total GFA will be adjusted by our equity interest in the

respective project.
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Y5 ol

etz

REBEMWHHAEE F—NET A
=t —HIEFEN AR 14,6035 H 80
Wm#369% B2 HE ~F—LFET A
=t —HIEFEHART19995.1H &
TG o AR A & — AR e RE A Wi 25 AR
P )W R B IR T E N
#36.8% % N ¥ 19,8820 H &I 5 i)W
B WS T — NN 44.9% &
NBRBETLAT & IC s K Gin Ry %
PR U 2 B — N AR N 49 106.8%
FNRWE38.8 HEIG o N RIHIALE ML
ST 7 S TH] 1 gt 5 4H AR o 1 ol i % A A
FHMEH -

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's revenue increased by approximately 36.9% from RMB14,603.5
million for the year ended December 31, 2016 to RMB19,995.1 million for the
year ended December 31, 2017. Out of the Group's total recognized revenue in
2017, (i) sales of properties increased by approximately 36.8% to RMB19,882.0
million from 2016, (ii) property leasing increased by approximately 44.9%
to RMB71.4 million from 2016, and (iii) provision of commercial property
management services increased by approximately 106.8% to RMB38.8 million
from 2016. The table below sets forth the Group’s revenue for each of the
components described above and the percentage of total revenue represented for

the periods indicated.

S S
2017 2016
Weds A AR Weat  ANAEMeE WLLAEE)
A4k A
% of Total % of Total Year- over-
Revenue Revenue Revenue Revenue Year Change
AT % ARWTIT % %
RMB’000 %  RMB’000 % %
YRR Sales of properties 19,882,015 99.4 14,534,660 99.5 36.8
AU A Rental income 71,354 0.4 49,227 0.3 44.9
YIZEE A Property management income 38,816 0.2 18,772 0.2 106.8
HoAth Others 2,876 0.0 861 0.0 234.0
At Total 19,995,061 100.0 14,603,520 100.0 36.9
fftaE - Note:
1 F BN ASE RIB SN AR S R (1) Primarily includes revenue generated from provision of design consultation services to a

B PRI -

Zhenro Properties Group Led. 1E 4% b & B R A 7
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Management Discussion and Analysis

A A

A S [ ) 59 B AR T A S b B R O
B DL e 7 e S B R R B S H R A
A RAS o b5 M B 0 8 B AR 9 A
BRI AR M SERA > T e i B
Y B R BAS TR AR R
M 7 B OIS A B R AY E AS AL MR
7 o

AAEE W E AR EE TN FE+
A=1—HIEFEMAR¥11,433.8 8 &
T MA 8.0 EMWME _EF—LFE T+
A=Z+—HIEFEMAR¥15,777.78 &
JG > FEEHMRAEEMAEE ZF—LE
TH = HIREEN TR TR ST 1
W SERN -

ESVIPEYIES
Y b SCBTak  ASE T B R AR
F—ANEFT_A=ZFT—HIEFEMAR
W3,169.7 F G M #1331 £ #E
E—LEFTF_H=T—HIEFEH AR
42174 HETT »

AEEPERE F — LR ZF— R
+ A=+ HIEEENTH RS A
21.1% M 21.7% » KRERFFEE -

Cost of Sales

The Group's cost of sales primarily represents the costs it incurs directly for the
property development activities as well as its commercial property management
and leasing operations. The principal components of cost of sales for property
development include cost of properties sold, which represents direct construction
costs, land use right costs and capitalized interest costs on related borrowings for

the purpose of property development during the period of construction.

The Group's cost of sales increased by approximately 38.0% from RMB11,433.8
million for the year ended December 31, 2016 to RMB15,777.7 million for the
year ended December 31, 2017, primarily attributable to the increase in the
number of properties completed and delivered by the Group during the year
ended December 31, 2017.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

As a result of the foregoing, the Group's gross profit increased by approximately
33.1% from RMB3,169.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2016 to
RMB4,217.4 million, for the year ended December 31, 2017.

Gross profit margin was relatively stable at 21.1% for the year ended December
31, 2017, compared with 21.7% in 2016.
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Other Income and Gains

The Group’s other income and gains primarily consist of interest income,
commercial compensation and others. Interest income primarily consists
of interest income on bank deposits. Commercial compensation primarily
represents forfeited deposits received from certain potential customers who did
not subsequently entered into sales contracts with the Group and penalties
received from certain customers due to their breach of sales or pre-sales

contracts.

Other income and gains increased by approximately 217.3% from RMB48.6
million for the year ended December 31, 2016 to RMB154.2 million for the
year ended December 31, 2017, primarily due to an increase in interest income
on bank deposits mainly as a result of the increase in the total amount of bank
deposits, as well as an increase in commercial compensation collected by the
Group in 2017.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses primarily consist of advertising, marketing
and business development expenses, sales and marketing staff cost, office
expenses, fees paid to our third-party sales agents, rental and other expenses

relating to sales of our properties and property leasing services.

The Group’s selling and distribution expenses increased by approximately
9.1% from RMB587.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2016 to
RMBG641.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2017, primarily due to
(i) the strengthened selling and marketing efforts to promote newly-launched
property projects in new cities and regions in which the Group operates as part
of its business expansion; and (ii) the expansion of the Group's in-house sales

and marketing team to support its business expansion in 2017.
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Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses primarily consist of management and administrative
staff costs, entertainment expenses, office and meeting expenses, stamped duties
and other taxes, rental costs, depreciation of property, plant and equipment,
professional fees, travelling expenses, bank charges, listing expenses and other

general office expenses and miscellaneous expenses.

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by approximately 39.2% from
RMB477.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2016 to RMB664.5
million for the year ended December 31, 2017, primarily due to the continuous
increase in the number of property projects under development and planned for
future development, which was in line with the Group's business expansion,
resulting in increases in its management and administrative headcount,

entertainment expenses, traveling expenses and other miscellaneous expenses.

Other Expenses

Other expenses increased by 109.7% from RMB19.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2016 to RMB40.9 million for the year ended December 31,
2017.

Fair Value Gains on Investment Properties

The Group develops and holds certain commercial properties on a long-term
basis for rental income or capital appreciation. Fair value gains on investment
properties decreased by approximately 40.5% from RMB594.2 million
for the year ended December 31, 2016 to RMB353.8 million for the year
ended December 31, 2017, primarily because Putian Zhenro Fortune Center
commenced operation since late 2015 which recorded a relatively higher level
of appreciation in value for the year ended December 31, 2016 than in the
corresponding period in 2017. The fair value gains on investment properties
for the year ended December 31, 2017 was also partially attributable to the

appreciation in value of Shanghai Hongqiao Zhenro Center in such period.
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Finance Costs

Finance costs primarily consist of interest expenses for bank and other

borrowings net of capitalized interest relating to properties under development.

The Group's finance costs increased by approximately 54.9% from RMB356.1
million for the year ended December 31, 2016 to RMB551.5 million for the
year ended December 31, 2017, primarily due to an increase in bank borrowings
to support business growth and an increase in the level of interest costs that

were not capitalized in 2017.

Share of Losses of Joint Ventures and Associated Companies

The Group’s share of losses of joint ventures was RMB65.6 million for the year
ended December 31, 2017, increased by 811.1% from RMB7.2 million for the
year ended December 31, 2016, primarily due to an increase in the Group's
relevant expenses resulting from the increased property projects held by its new

joint ventures.

The Group's share of losses of associated companies was RMB12.3 million
for the year ended December 31, 2017, primarily represented the Group’s
relevant expenses resulting from the increased property projects held by its new

associated companies. The Group did not have associated companies in 2016.

Income Tax Expenses

Income tax expenses represent corporate income tax and land appreciation tax
(“LAT") payable by the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC.

The Group's income tax expenses increased by approximately 9.5% from
RMBI1,121.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2016 to RMB1,228.2
million for the year ended December 31, 2017, primarily due to an increase in
the Group's profit before tax. The effective corporate income tax rate was 28.9%
for the year ended December 31, 2017, compared with 31.6% for the year ended
December 31, 2016.

Profit and Total Comprehensive Income for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s profit and total comprehensive income
increased by approximately 22.4% from RMB1,243.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2016 to RMB1,521.4 million, for the year ended December 31,
2017.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The industry in which the Group engages is a capital-intensive industry. The
Group met and expects to continue meeting its operating capital, capital
expenditure and other capital needs with proceeds from the IPO, proceeds
from pre-sale and sale of properties, loans from commercial banks, proceeds
from corporate debts or other securities offerings, and capital injections from
shareholders. The Group's need for short-term liquid capital is mainly associated
with loan repayments and capital needs for operation, and the Group’s short-
term liquid capital comes from cash balance, proceeds from pre-sale and sale of
properties and new bank loans. The Group’s need for long-term liquid capital
is associated with capital allocated for new property development projects and

repayment of long-term loan.

Cash Positions

As of December 31, 2017, the Group had cash and bank balances of
approximately RMB14,539.5 million (December 31, 2016: RMB14,689.7
million), pledged deposits of approximately RMB1,195.3 million (December
31, 2016: RMB832.7 million) and restricted cash of approximately
RMB3,931.5 million (December 31, 2016: RMB2,984.4 million)

Indebtedness

As of December 31, 2017, the Group has total outstanding bank and other
borrowings of RMB40,061.2 million, compared with RMB35,034.1 million as
of December 31, 2016. As of December 31, 2017, the Group also had onshore
corporate bond with carrying amounts of approximately RMB2,002.4 million,
compared with RMB1,988.8 million as of December 31, 2016. The Group’s

borrowings are mainly denominated in Renminbi.

All of the Group's secured borrowings were secured by its asset portfolio which
includes investment properties, prepaid land lease payments, properties under

development, completed properties held for sale, and restricted cash.
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The following table sets forth the Group's total borrowings as of the dates

o indicated.
BE+-HA=1+—H
As of December 31,
R g DR RS
2017 2016
ANREFIE ARETIL
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
RSO £ K Current borrowings:
SRAT IS 3K — A K Bank borrowings — secured 250,000 —
SRAT & 3 — LT Bank borrowings — unsecured 230,000 120,000
HoA 3 — A7 Other borrowings — secured 4,106,572 3,474,624
A A 3K — TP Other borrowings — unsecured 688,416 850,000
s IE R A K B R Plus: current portion of non-current borrowings
SRATIE 3 — A K4 Bank borrowings — secured 7,032,732 1,346,701
RAT(E K — ML Bank borrowings — unsecured 33,400 148,437
oAb B — AR Other borrowings — secured 7,660,637 4,044,393
Hofth 5 3% — HEHE A Other borrowings — unsecured 980,000 335,000
NEMESR Corporate bonds 2,002,359 -
RV H £ R A AR Total current borrowings 22,984,116 10,319,155
FEHIIAE K Non-current borrowings:
SRAT A5 3K — A K Bank borrowings — secured 7,722,609 6,310,945
SRAT B — AT Bank borrowings — unsecured 1,705,859 —
HMl A 3K — A HE P Other borrowings — secured 9,531,953 17,862,161
oA 3K — MEHE R Other borrowings — unsecured 119,000 541,800
N EME TS Corporate bonds - 1,988,777
JE B HAfE sk 4l A Total non-current borrowings 19,079,421 26,703,683
AEt Total 42,063,537 37,022,838
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The following table sets forth the maturity profiles of the Group's total

borrowings as of the dates indicated.

HE+T-H=1—H
As of December 31,
&g DE RS

2017 2016
AREFE ARETIL
RMB’ 000 RMB 000

JHIN— N E R Repayable within one year 22,984,116 10,319,155
SHNEE B Repayable in the second year 13,585,642 19,416,309
JHIN B HAFNIEE Repayable within two to five years 5,493,779 7,287,374
INEE Sub-total 19,079,421 26,703,683
At Total 42,063,537 37,022,838

st BE - F—-tE+ A =+—H"
ASE H DARA N 19 7 BT AR 3048
TR R A GG o REE A2 B R 30T
i

i kAR
AERMPEE T —-LFE T A=+—H
1 AF B 1) SR AT B A 1 35 0 RS X B
FIEE7.3%  MNEE _F—NF+_H
= HIEEES8.5% » Y FEIEH
AR B A SO B A R
7 A ] ] S AR B R T 4 DAL T ) A
ARG E & R AR R ST o

Additionally, as of December 31, 2017, the Group issued the unsecured
perpetual bond of RMB3.0 billion through private placement. Please refer to

“Bond Offerings” below for more details.

Borrowing Costs

The Group’s weighted average effective interest rates on bank and other
borrowings were 7.3% for the year ended December 31, 2017, compared with
8.5% for the year ended December 31, 2016. The decrease was primarily due
to the Group’s effective measures to optimize its debt structure, as well as its
stronger bargaining power to access to capital at competitive costs as a result of

its growing operation scale.
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FINANCIAL RISKS

The Group is not subject to significant credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group primarily operates its business in the PRC. The currency in which
the Group denominates and settles substantially all of its transactions is
Renminbi. Any depreciation of Renminbi would adversely affect the value of
any dividends the Group pays to shareholders outside of the PRC. The Group
had cash at banks denominated in foreign currencies, which exposed the Group
to foreign exchange risk. The Group currently does not engage in hedging
activities designed or intended to manage foreign exchange rate risk. The Group
will continue to monitor foreign exchange changes to best preserve the Group's

cash value.

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

The Group’s current ratio decreased from 1.5 as of December 31, 2016 to 1.3
as of December 31, 2017, primarily due to (i) an increase in advances from
customers resulting from sales increase, and (ii) an increase in current liabilities

resulting from the increase in current portion of certain long-term borrowings.

The Group's net gearing ratio decreased from 206.0% as of December 31, 2016
to 183.2% as of December 31, 2017, primarily due to the Group'’s continuous
efforts to manage its financial leverage to achieve sustainable growth. The
Group completed its IPO in mid-January 2018. Assuming the net proceeds
from the IPO were received on December 31, 2017, the net gearing ratio would
be approximately 120.2% as of December 31, 2017.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Mortgage Guarantees

The Group provides mortgage guarantees to banks in respect of the mortgage
loans they provided to the Group’s customers in order to secure the repayment
obligations of such customers. The mortgage guarantees are issued from the date
of grant of the relevant mortgage loans and released upon the earlier of (i) the
transfer of the relevant real estate ownership certificates to the customers, or (ii)
the settlement of mortgage loans by the customers. If a purchaser defaults on
the mortgage loan, the Group is typically required to repurchase the underlying
property by paying off the mortgage loan. If it fails to do so, the mortgagee
banks will auction the underlying property and recover the balance from the

Group if the outstanding loan amount exceeds the net foreclosure sale proceeds.

As of December 31, 2017, the material contingent liabilities incurred for
the Group’s provision of guarantees to financial institutions in respect of the
mortgage loans they provided to the Group’s customers were approximately
RMB21,961.4 million, compared with RMB18,129.5 million as of December
31, 2016.

The Directors confirm that the Group has not encountered defaults by
purchasers in which it provided mortgage guarantees that, in aggregate, had a

material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

Legal Contingents

The Group may be involved in lawsuits and other proceedings in its ordinary
course of business from time to time. The Group believes that no liabilities
resulting from these proceedings will have a material and adverse effect on our

business, financial condition or operating results.
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Commitments

As of December 31, 2017, the Group's property development expenditures it
had contracted but yet provided for was RMB9,168.6 million, compared with
RMB7,146.2 million as of December 31, 2016.

As of December 31, 2017, the Group’s operating lease expenditures was
RMB89.6 million, compared with RMB58.3 million as of December 31, 2016.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET COMMITMENTS AND
ARRANGEMENTS

Except for the contingent liabilities disclosed above, as of December 31, 2017,
the Group did not have any outstanding loan capital issued or agreed to be
issued, bank overdrafts, loans, debt securities, borrowings or other similar
indebtedness, liabilities under acceptances (other than normal trade bills),
acceptance credits, debentures, mortgages, charges, finance leases or hire

purchase commitments, guarantees or other material contingent liabilities.

As of the date of this annual report, net proceeds not utilized are held in bank
deposits and it is intended that they will be applied in the manner consistent

with the proposed allocations in the prospectus.

BOND OFFERINGS

The Group continuously looks for financing opportunities to support its
business development. These opportunities include the raising of funds through

asset-backed securities programs, corporate bonds and other debt offerings.

In October 2017, the Group issued the unsecured perpetual bond of RMB300.0
million through private placement. The perpetual bond has an initial term of

two years bearing an annual coupon rate of 7.5% and the first redemption date
is October 30, 2019.
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In addition, in November 2017, the Group issued another unsecured perpetual
bond of RMB2,700.0 million through private placement. The perpetual bond
has an initial term of two years bearing an annual coupon rate of 7.5% and the

first redemption date is November 8, 2019.

The Group intends to use the proceeds from these bond offerings to repay

external borrowings.

In addition, the Group has been approved by the Shanghai Stock Exchange
to issue asset-backed securities through a private placement in an aggregate
proposed principal amount of approximately RMB2,421.0 million to be listed
and traded on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

The Group has also filed an application to the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
for a private placement of corporate bonds to be listed and traded on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange in an aggregate proposed principal amount of up to
RMB4,000.0 million to qualified investors only. The application is under review
by the relevant stock exchange and there is no certainty that the application will

be approved or we will proceed with the issuance of debt securities.

The Group may also consider other debt offering plans in the near future.

EMPLOYEES
As of December 31, 2017, the Group had a total of 1,899 employees. The

Group offers employees competitive remuneration packages that include basic
salaries, discretionary bonuses, performance-based payments and year-end
bonuses. It contributes to social insurance for its employees, including medical
insurance, work-related injury insurance, retirement insurance, maternity

insurance, unemployment insurance and housing funds.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In connection with the listing of the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange, in January 2018, 1,000,000,000 new ordinary shares of the Company
with a nominal value of US$0.00001 each were issued at a price of HK$3.99
per ordinary share for a total cash consideration of HK$3,990,000,000, before
deducting underwriting fees, commissions and related expenses. An addition of
2,999,950,000 shares were concurrently issued by way of capitalization. Trading
of the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange commenced on January 16,
2018.

Subsequently in February 2018, the over-allotment option has been partially
exercised and the Company allotted and issued 123,000,000 additional shares at
HK$3.99 per share on February 7, 2018.

Other than the abovementioned matters, no material events were undertaken by

the Group subsequent to December 31, 2017.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE INITIAL PUBLIC
OFFERING

The Group completed its IPO and was successfully listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange on January 16, 2018. Net proceeds from the IPO (including
the exercise of the over-allotment options), after deducting the underwriting
commission and other estimated expenses in connection with the Offering

which the Company received amounted to approximately HK$4,392.3 million.

During the first three months of 2018, the Group had utilized the proceeds the
IPO in the manner consistent with the proposed allocations in the prospectus,
comprising approximately RMB158.0 million in repayment of bank borrowings
with the remaining borrowings to be repaid upon their respective expity dates;
and the portion of proceeds in construction and development of its property
projects and for general working capital purpose had been fully allocated to
the relevant project companies for their property development activities for the

following years.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activity of
the Group is property development, property leasing and commercial property

management.

BUSINESS REVIEW

General

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a discussion on the
Group’s future business development are set out in the Chairman’s Statement,
as well as the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 20 to 25 and
pages 26 to 76, respectively, of this annual report. An analysis of the Group's
performance during the year using financial key performance indicators is set
out in the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 26 to 76 of this
annual report. Save as disclosed in the section headed “Director’s report —
Business Review — Subsequent Events” in this annual report, the Group has no
significant events after the end of the financial year ended December 31, 2017

and up to the date of this annual report.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Principal risks and uncertainties the Group faces include (i) uncertainty as
to the acquiring of land reserves for development in desirable locations at
commercially acceptable prices; (ii) uncertainty as to business expansion into
new geographic locations; (iii) uncertainty as to obtaining sufficient funding for
land acquisitions and future developments; (iv) risks related to the fluctuation
of profitability of property projects; (v) risks related to obtaining administrative
certificates; (vi) risks related to the performance of the PRC property markets;
(vii) risks related to the government policies and regulations regarding the PRC
property industry; and (viii) risks related to the increasing raw materials price

and labor costs.
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The Group is not subject to significant credit risk and liquidity risk. The
financial risks of the Group is mainly foreign exchange rate risk. These financial
risks, and the related risk management policies and practices used by the Group
are discussed in note 43 headed “Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies” to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

Subsequent Events

In connection with the listing of the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange, in January 2018, 1,000,000,000 new ordinary shares of the Company
with a nominal value of US$0.00001 each were issued at a price of HK$3.99
per ordinary share for a total cash consideration of HK$3,990,000,000, before
deducting underwriting fees, commissions and related expenses. An addition of
2,999,950,000 shares were concurrently issued by way of capitalization. Trading
of the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange commenced on January 16,
2018.

Subsequently in February 2018, the over-allotment option has been partially
exercised and the Company allotted and issued 123,000,000 additional shares at
HK$3.99 per share on February 7, 2018.

Other than the abovementioned matters, no material events were undertaken by
the Group subsequent to December 31, 2017 and up to the date of this annual

report.

Environmental policies and performance

It is the Group's corporate and social responsibility in promoting a sustainable
and environmental friendly environment, and the Group strives to minimize its
environmental impact and comply with the applicable environmental laws and
regulations. The measures we take to ensure our compliance with the applicable
environmental laws and regulations include: (i) strictly selecting construction
contractors and supervising the process of construction; (ii) applying for review
by the relevant government authorities in a timely manner after the project
is completed; and (iii) actively adopting environmentally friendly equipment
and designs. We also take voluntary actions with respect to environmental
protection and make energy conservation and emission reduction as primary

considerations when designing our property projects.

None of our properties had received any material fines or penalties associated
with the breach of any environmental laws or regulations during the year ended
31 December, 2017.

Our 2017 Environmental, Social and Governance Report shall be published

seperately.
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group continues to keep itself updated over the requirement of the relevant
laws and regulations applicable to it to ensure compliance. The Group had
complied with all relevant laws and regulations in all material aspects and have
obtained all applicable material licenses, approvals and permits from relevant

regulatory authorities.

Relationship with Employees

We believe high-quality employees who value our corporate culture are essential
elements to promote our sustainable growth. We intend to attract and retain
skilled and talented employees from reputable universities of PRC through
various initiatives, including our creative trainee programs, competitive

compensation packages and effective incentive system.

For details regarding employees and staff costs and the emolument policy of
the Group, please refer to the sections headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis - Employee and Labor Cost” and “Directors’ Report - Employees and

Remuneration Policies”.

Relationship with Suppliers

The Group is dedicated to develop good relationship with suppliers as long-term
business partners to ensure stability of the Group’s businesses. We reinforce
business partnerships with suppliers by ongoing communication in a proactive

and effective manner.

For further details regarding our major suppliers, please refer to the section

headed “Directors’ Report - Major Customers and Suppliers”.

Relationship with Customers

Customers satisfaction with our services and products has a profound effect on
our profitability. Our dedicated sales team is in constant communication with
our customers and potential customers to uncover and create customer needs
and help customers make informed decisions. Identification of customers’ pain
points alongside grasping the market trend are critical for the Group to timely

adjust our operating strategies to fit the market requirement.

For details regarding our major customers, please refer to the sections headed

“Directors’ Report - Major Customers and Suppliers”.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2017 and the state
of the Group’s financial position as at that date are set out in the financial

statements on pages 116 to 291.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.10 per share
(equivalent to RMBO0.08 per share), amounting to approximately a total of
HK$412.3 million (or approximately RMB329.9 million) for the year ended
December 31, 2017 (the “2017 Proposed Final Dividend”), representing
approximately 21.7% of our net profit for the year ended December 31, 2017.
The 2017 Proposed Final Dividend is subject to the approval of the Company’s
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM”) to be held
on May 18, 2018. The 2017 Proposed Final Dividend will be declared and paid
in Hong Kong dollars.

AGM AND CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The AGM of the Company will be held on Friday, May 18, 2018. A notice
convening the AGM will be published on the Company’s website and the
Stock Exchange’s website and dispatched to the Shareholders in accordance
with the requirements of the Listing Rules in due course. For the purpose of
determination of eligibility to attend and vote at the AGM, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, May 15, 2018 to Friday,
May 18, 2018 (both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares
of the Company will be effected. In order to be entitled to attend and vote
at the forthcoming AGM to be held on Friday, May 18, 2018, all transfer of
shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company's Hong Kong branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, no later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong
Kong time) on Monday, May 14, 2018.
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Subject to the approval of the 2017 Proposed Final Dividend at the forthcoming
AGM, the register of members of the Company will also be closed from
Tuesday, June 5, 2018 to Thursday, June 7, 2018 (both days inclusive), during
which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be effected. In order to
qualify for the 2017 Proposed Final Dividend, all transfer of shares accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong
Kong branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, no later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time)
on Monday, June 4, 2018. The 2017 Proposed Final Dividend, if approved
by the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming AGM, will be paid on or
about Thursday, July 19, 2018 to those shareholders whose name appear on the
register of member of the Company on Thursday, June 7, 2018.

RESERVES

Changes to the reserves of the Group during the year ended December 31, 2017

are set out in the consolidated statements of changes in equity.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Changes to the property, plant and equipment of the Group and the Company

during the year are set out in Note 13 to the financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries as at December 31, 2017 are set out in

Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year ended December 31, 2017
amounted to approximately RMB30.5 million.

4 #t Annual Report 2017

81



| B B
:':3

EEE
AN
N
EEE \\\
EEE\ n\:
l::.:l.\\‘
ll-\‘
:-::-‘F:
T LL
ll-.::
] LT
EEEpg™=
1
o wifs
LT
.:.u——-
!_!-—f:
82

=R

Director’s Report

A

AT — AAE— 7% BRI B
AR LT o A S 3 2 R B FE £ 3
A9 K B R BOR A 202 B -

WL~ o A8 Dl A 2 ) b
%

BRARAR ARG - F—CE+ AN
FI RS B B i 9 A 2 R U B R A
b > Ay ) B i A m R R R
FrHZH =t BRI -
B [ AS 2 R AR AR Tl o o

g
REE_E—-bEF A=t —HILEE
MEERFEHREY > ANFEFHWE -

EHUY

Directors Name

Al e
Mr. HUANG Xianzhi

MR S

Mr. LIN Zhaoyang

EAFESREL

Mr. WANG Benlong

N
Mr. OU Guogiang

[ 2 {5 A=
Mr. OU Guowei

e Vg MR S 2R
Mr. LOKE Yu (alias LOKE Hoi Lam)

Tk BIHE Sk
M. SHEN Guoquan

T A
Mr. WANG Chuanxu
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The Company was listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange on January
16, 2018. A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group

for the last four financial years is set out on pages 292 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Save for the Company’s initial public offering as described in the Company’s
prospectus dated December 28, 2017, the Company and its subsidiaries did not

purchase, sell or redeem any of the listed securities of the Company during the
year ended December 31, 2017.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year ended December 31, 2017 and

up to the date of this annual report were:

kAL
Position
HHRHFWTES

Chairman of the Board and executive Director

B TR AT BUB RGBT HE 2 O =% — /UE ] /U H lAT B R
2R B AT AR
Joint chief executive officer and executive Director (re-designated from chief

executive officer to a joint chief executive officer on February 28, 2018)

Wt AT BUB R T R O —F — /= /N HERE AR
TTELAEE > W —F— /NF=H N B R A RATES)

Joint chief executive officer and executive Director (appointed as the joint chief
office on February 28, 2018 and an executive Director on March 28, 2018)
FRATHF

Non-executive Director

FoATHEF

Non-executive Director

WAL IEATE SR

Independent non-executive Director

WAL AT S

Independent non-executive Director

WA E AT R

Independent non-executive Director
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In accordance with the articles of association of the Company, Mr. Lin
Zhaoyang, Mr. Wang Benlong, Mr. Ou Guowei and Mr. OU Guogqiang shall
retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company

and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

None of Mr. Lin Zhaoyang, Mr. Wang Benlong, Mr. Ou Guowei and Mr.
OU Guogiang has an unexpired service contract which is not determinable
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of

compensation, other than under normal statutory obligations.

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out in “Biographies of the Directors and Senior Management”

in this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save as the related party transactions as disclosed in note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements and the continuing connected transactions as disclosed
in the section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” in this Directors’
Report, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year

or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As the Company was not listed on the Stock Exchange as of December 31,
2017, Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance

(“SFO”) and section 352 of the SFO were not applicable to the Directors or chief
executive of the Company as of December 31, 2017.
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As at January 16, 2018, on which the Shares are listed on the Stock Exchange

and from which dealings in the Shares are permitted to commence on the Stock

Exchange (the “Listing Date”), the interests and short positions of the Directors

or the chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and

TE B XV ER) HOIR G - AT B0 K R
AT AR 35 o5 ) 91 56 352 e A
O\ FEAE B SR M T 8% o SRS LT
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debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) were as follows:

84

AW
A2 B A
AL E A WEAIE 43 b
B 3 0 44 Approximate
E Y8 15 YN =L xS Name of Group -2l ot &4y #H percentage of
Name of member/associated Capacity/ Number of  shareholding in
Director/Chief Executive corporation Nature of interest”) Shares our Company
B [ 5 2o 7 AR S I A @ 217,800,000 5.45%
M. OU Guogiang The Company Interest in controlled
corporation®
B [ 8¢ o AR S S 217,140,000 5.43%
Mr. OU Guowei The Company Interest in controlled
corporation”
PG Notes:
1) JIr B 2 R i 35 By U A o (1) All interests stated are long positions.

() #%% 217,800,000 B {73 4 5 B RoSheng Limited 2

A -

() % %217,140,000 B B £ 2 ¥ B Warm Shine 3)

Lmited Ff A °

4) [ [ 3 S5 A 7 RoSheng Limiced 1 ME— A 1% B “)
AN > HARSERE IR I B - Do
Ji% RoSheng Limited HEA & IO R0 A B4 o

) K47 S A 2 Warm Shine Limited FIME— £ )2 )
P A A - HAREERE I O Bt > il
F4H> Warm Shine Lmited HEAT 22 1R 0) FP AT

T -
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These 217,800,000 Shares are all held by RoSheng Limited.

These 217,140,000 Shares are all held by Warm Shine Lmited.

Mr. Ou Guogiang is the sole legal and beneficial owner of RoSheng Limited and is deemed

to be interested in the Shares which are interested by RoSheng Limited under the SFO.

Mr. Ou Guowei is the sole legal and beneficial owner of Warm Shine Lmited. and is deemed

to be interested in the Shares which are interested by Warm Shine Lmited under the SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, as at the Listing Date, none of the Directors nor the
chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in any of the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO
or as notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As the Company was not listed on the Stock Exchange as of December 31, 2017,

Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and section 336 of the SFO were not
applicable to the Company as of December 31, 2017.

As at Listing Date, the following persons (other than the Directors or the
chief executive of the Company) have interests or short positions in the Shares
or underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by the

Company under section 336 of the SFO:

REZS WA 43 L
FFe A By SR 72 3 H @ Approximate
R ik % RE 25 1 H Number of Shares or percentage
Name of shareholder Nature of interest securities held” of interest
BioR S SE @ T R A 2,415,060,000 (L) 60.37%
Mr. OU Zongrong @ Interest in a controlled
corporation
RS E i P M 2 2,415,060,000 (L) 60.37%
Ms. LIN Shuying® Interest of spouse
Ha A N 2,272,560,000 (L) 56.81%
RoYue Limited Beneficial owner
SEE 7 ZEDN 142,500,000 (L) 3.56%

RoJing Limited

Beneficial owner

4 #t Annual Report 2017

85



86

HEFHRAE

Director’s Report

REZZHEA) ' 43 kb
Fide ey BB J 3 E Approximate
&R TP e B 25 Number of Shares or percentage
Name of shareholder Nature of interest securities held” of interest
RoSheng Limited JEE L7 ZEDN 217,800,000 (L) 5.45%
Beneficial owner
Warm Shine Limited JEE=E/ XN 217,140,000 (L) 5.43%
Beneficial owner
B 7% 7 B PR Tl A B ) T ENE A 228,000,000 (L) 5.70%
Guotai Junan International Interest in a controlled
Holdings Limited corporation
TP ENE A 78,000,000 (S) 1.95%
Interest in a controlled
corporation
B 7% 7 2w 2 IR A BR A 7 TR A 228,000,000 (L) 5.70%
Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd Interest in a controlled
corporation
T R A 78,000,000 (S) 1.95%

(2)

(3)

)
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Interest in a controlled

corporation

FHETLHEA RN LR ZF B 4R o FHs]
FRGN LGBl IRA -

%5 2,415,060,000 B AR AR+ 2,272,560,000 B
M4 i RoYue Limiced FA » % 142,500,000 A B
i RoJing Limited FEAT o BUR 48 Y54 B RoYue
Limited X RoJing Limited A ME— &1k & B 45 FE A
N B BREESEE BEAR B Y RoYue Limiced
FEA 19 2,272,560,000 BB & RoJing Limited £
142,500,000 B A1 P A HE 45

AR 5y 5 2 S A B A o MR O SO B
155 XV B o RIS £ I B A e A B A
it B4R ] S P o A A

B 2% L2 W S M A PR W B e A R R
e 2 B A PR 7 58.74% MO RE RS > RIL > BIZR R
BRI IR PR v R A R e b B
L8] 75 A % I S 7 PR WA ) O A A [ 0

Er3

Notes:

1

(2)

(3)

)

The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in such Shares. The letter “S” denotes the

person’s short position in such Shares.

These 2,415,060,000 Shares represent 2,272,560,000 Shares held by RoYue Limited
and 142,500,000 Shares held by RoJing Limited. Mr. Ou Zongrong is the sole legal and
beneficial owner of RoYue Limited and RoJing Limited, therefore Mr. Ou Zongrong is
deemed to be interested in 2,272,560,000 Shares and 142,500,000 Shares held by RoYue

Limited and RoJing Limited, respectively.

Lin Shuying is the spouse of Mr. Ou Zongrong. Under Part XV of the SFO, Lin Shuying
is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares in which Mr. Ou Zongrong is

interested.

Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd indirectly holds 58.74% interests in Guotai Junan
International Holdings Limited. Therefore, Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd is deemed to
have same interest in the shares in the Company as Guotai Junan International Holdings

Limited.
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Save as disclosed above, as at the Listing Date, our Directors or chief executive
are not aware of any other person, not being a Director or chief executive of our
Company, who has an interest or short position in the Shares or the underlying
Shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed

during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Our major suppliers are construction material suppliers and construction
contractors. In 2017, purchases from the Group’s largest supplier in terms of
dollar amount accounted for approximately 12.2% of total purchase cost and
the aggregate purchases from its top five suppliers in terms of dollar amount in

aggregate accounted for approximately 38.6% of total purchase cost.

None of our Directors, their close associates or any Shareholders that, to the
knowledge of our Directors, owns more than 5% of our issued share capital of
our Company had any interest in any of our five largest suppliers during the year
ended December 31, 2017.

In 2017, due to the nature of the Group's business, revenue derived from its top

five customers accounted for less than 30% of total revenue.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) has reviewed
the accounting principles and policies adopted by the Group and discussed the
Group's risk management, internal controls and financial reporting matters with
the management. The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited consolidated

financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS AND TAX RELIEF

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles of association of
the Company, although there are no restrictions against such rights under the

laws in the Cayman Islands.

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the
shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the Company’s

securities.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at December 31, 2017, the Group employed a total of 1899 full-time
employees (December 31, 2016: 1490). The increase in the number of employees

was mainly due to the increase in the scale of the Group’s business.

We actively recruit skilled and qualified personnel in local markets through
various channels, such as on-campus recruitment programs, recruiting
firms, internal referrals and advertisement on the Internet. We particularly
value employees who demonstrate loyalty to their work and who values our
corporate culture, as well as those with relevant working experience. Our
continued success and growth, to a considerable extent, depends on our ability
to identify, hire, train and retain suitably skilled and qualified employees,
including management personnel, with relevant professional skills. Therefore,
we have established systematic training programs for our employees, such as
management as well as marketing and sales personnel, based on their positions

and expertise.

We enter into labor contracts with all of our employees. We offer our employees
competitive remuneration packages that include basic salaries, discretionary
bonuses, performance-based payments and year-end bonuses. To incentivize
our employees and promote the long-term growth of the Company, We have
conditionally adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”).
Details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in the sections headed “Director’s

report — Share Option Scheme”.

Under the applicable PRC laws and regulations, we are subject to social

insurance contribution plans.
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EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Particulars of the employee retirement benefits of the Group are set out in Note

6 to the financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On December 15, 2017, a share option scheme of the Company (the “Share
Option Scheme”) was conditionally approved and adopted by the then
shareholders of the Company and its implementation is conditional on the
listing. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide the Company
with a means of incentivising the Participants (as defined below) and retaining
employees of the Group, and to encourage employees to work towards enhancing

the value of the Company and promote the long-term growth of the Company.

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Board shall be entitled at
any time within the period of 10 years after the adoption date, being December
15, 2017 to December 14, 2027, to grant options to any director or employee
of the Group who in the sole discretion of the Board has contributed or will
contribute to the Group (the “Participant”). As of December 31, 2017, the
remaining life of the Share Option Scheme is approximately 9 years and 11

months.

No offer shall be made and no option shall be granted to any Participant in
circumstances prohibited by the Listing Rules at a time when the Participant
would or might be prohibited from dealing in the Shares by the Listing Rules
or by any applicable rules, regulations or law. In particular, no options may
be granted during the period commencing one month immediately preceding
the earlier of (i) the date of the Board meeting (as such date is first notified
to the Stock Exchange in accordance with the Listing Rules) for the approval
of the Company’s results for any year, half-year, quarterly or other interim
period; and (ii) the deadline for the Company to publish its interim or annual
results announcement under the Listing Rules; and ending on the date of actual

publication of such results announcement.
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The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and all other share option
schemes existing at such time of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed
400,000,000 Shares (representing 10% of the total number of Shares in issue
as of the Listing Date, the “Scheme Mandate Limit”), which represents 9.7%
of the total number of Shares in issue as at the date of the annual report. The
Company may renew the Scheme Mandate Limit at any time subject to prior
shareholders” approval but in any event, the total number of Shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company under the limit as
refreshed must not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of approval

of the renewal of the Scheme Mandate Limit.

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted and to be granted to any Participant under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12 month period shall not
at the time of grant exceed 1% of the Shares in issue, unless otherwise separately
approved by shareholders in general meeting with such Participant and his

associates abstaining from voting.

Subject to the terms of grant of any option, an option may be exercised by the
grantee at any time during the option period and in accordance with the vesting
schedule and other terms specified in the offer. No option may be vested more
than 10 years after the date of grant. Subject to earlier terminations by the
Company in general meetings or by the Board, the Share Option Scheme shall

be valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing on the adoption date.

Subject to such terms and conditions as the Board may determine, there is no
minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be exercised
and no performance target needs to be achieved by the grantee before the

options can be exercised.
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The exercise price shall be a price determined by the Board and notified to a

Participant but in any event shall be at least the higher of:

. the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets on the date of grant of the option, which must be a

business day;

J the average of the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately

preceding the Offer Date; and
o the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant,

Participants are required to pay HK$1.00 as consideration for the acceptance of

an option granted to them.

Further details of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are set out in

the prospectus.

During the period from December 15 2017 and up to the date of this annual
report, no option had been granted or agreed to be granted by the Company

pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report and based on the information that is publicly
available to the Company and to the knowledge of the Directors, the Company
has maintained the minimum public float of 25% as required under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
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AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by Ernst & Young who shall retire at
the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

A resolution for the re-appointment of auditor will be proposed at the AGM.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at December 31, 2017, the reserves of the Company available for distribution
to shareholders of the Company amounted to approximately RMB2,971.5

million.

BANK AND OTHER LOANS

As of December 31, 2017, the Group has total outstanding bank and other
borrowings of RMB40,061.2 million. As of December 31, 2017, the Group
also had onshore corporate bond with carrying amounts of approximately
RMB2,002.4 million. The Group’s borrowings are mainly denominated in

Renminbi.

The details are set out in “Management Discussion and Analysis — Liquidity and

Capital Resources — Indebtedness”.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE THE COMPANY’S SECURITIES
AND EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

At no time during the year was the Company, or any of its holding companies
or subsidiaries, or any of its fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors or chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) to have any right to subscribe for
securities of the Company or any of its associated corporations as defined in the
SFO or to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate, nor did the Company enter into any

equity-linked agreement.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at the date of this annual report, none of the Directors and directors of the
Company’s subsidiaries, or their respective associates had interests in businesses,
which compete or are likely to compete either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Company and its subsidiaries as required to be disclosed

pursuant to the Listing Rules.

CHANGES IN DIRECTOR’S AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF
THE LISTING RULES

Mr. Lin Zhaoyang, the chief executive officer and an executive Director of our
Company, has been re-designated as a joint chief executive officer with effect
from 28 February 2018.

Mr. Wang Benlong, who has been serving as the vice president of our Company
from September 20, 2017 to February 27, 2018, was appointed as our executive
Director on March 28, 2018 and joint chief executive officer on February 28,
2018.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other change in Directors’ biographical
details which is required to be disclosed pursuant to rule 13.51B(1) of the

Listing Rules since the date of the prospectus.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

In order to restrict competition activities with the Company, our controlling
shareholders, namely Mr. Ou Zongrong, Mr. Ou Guogiang, Mr. Ou Guowei,
RoYue Limited, RoJing Limited, RoSheng Limited and Warm Shine Limited
(the “Controlling Shareholders”), entered into a deed of non-competition in
favor of the Company on December 15, 2017 (the “Deed of Non-competition”).
Pursuant to the Deed of Non-competition, the Controlling Shareholders have
undertaken, among others, not to compete with the business of the Group,
and details of the Deed of Non-competition are set out in the sub-section
headed “Deed of Non-competition” in the section headed “Relationship with
Controlling Shareholders” of the prospectus of the Company dated December
28,2017.
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Each of the Controlling Shareholders has made a written confirmation to the
Board in respect of their compliance with the undertakings in the Deed of Non-
competition (the “Undertakings”) since the entering of the Deed on December
15, 2017 to December 31, 2017 (the “Relevant Period”).

Upon receiving the confirmations from the Controlling Shareholders, the
independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the same as part of the
annual review process. In determining whether the Controlling Shareholder
had fully complied with the Undertakings in the Relevant Period for the
annual assessment, the independent non- executive Directors noted that: (a)
the Controlling Shareholders declared that they had fully complied with the
Undertakings in the Relevant Period; (b) no new competing business was
reported by the Controlling Shareholders during the Relevant Period; and
(c) there was no particular situation rendering the full compliance of the
Undertakings being questionable. In view of the above, the independent non-
executive Directors confirmed that, as far as they can ascertain, all of the
Undertakings were complied with by the Controlling Shareholders in the

Relevant Period.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to applicable laws, the Directors shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them
may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in
or about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective offices,
pursuant to the articles of association of the Company. Since the Company was
listed on January 16, 2018, such provisions shall be in force from the Listing
Date. The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’

liabilities in respect of legal actions that may be brought against the Directors.
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ISSUE OF SHARES AND USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE
GLOBAL OFFERING

On January 16, 2018, the Company’s Shares were listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. A total of 1,123,000,000 ordinary shares with nominal
value of US$0.00001 each of the Company (the “Shares”) were issued at HK$
3.99 per Share for a total of approximately HK$4480.8 million under the global
offering of the Company. The net proceeds raised by the Company from the
abovementioned global offering, after deducting the underwriting commission

and related expenses, amounted to approximately HK$4,392.3 million.

The details of use of proceeds by the Group are set out in “Management
Discussion and Analysis — Liquidity and Capital Resources — Use of Proceeds

from the Initial Public Offering”.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Mr. Ou Zongrong and Mr. Ou Guogiang are the substantial Shareholders of the
Company. Zhenro Group Co., Ltd. (IEZREE A FR/AF]) (“Zhenro Group
Company”) is owned as to 91.90% by Mr. Ou Zongrong and as to 8.10% by
Mr. Ou Guogqiang, and hence an associate of substantial Shareholders of the

Company and thus a connected person of the Company.

The Company (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries) entered into a
framework agreement in relation to the provision of pre-delivery property
management services with Zhenro Group Company on December 15, 2017 (the
“Pre-Delivery Management Services Agreement”). Under the Pre-Delivery
Management Services Agreement, Zhenro Group Company and its subsidiaries
(“Zhenro Group”) shall, where it is selected following the tender processes
in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations, provide management
and related services to our Group according to the tender documents and

definitive management agreements to be entered into between Zhenro Group
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and members of our Group from time to time. The Pre-Delivery Management
Services Agreement has been effective from the Listing Date and up to and
including December 31, 2019 and the term may be renewed as the parties
may mutually agree, subject to applicable laws and regulations. The aggregate
management service fees paid by the Company to Zhenro Group for their service
in 2017 is RMB14.5 million. The estimated maximum aggregate management
service fees to be paid by the Company under the Pre-Delivery Management
Services Agreement is RMB44.190 million and RMB53.028 million for the year
ended December 31, 2018 and 2019, respectively. Therefore, it shall constitute
de minimis continuing connected transactions under 14A.76(2) of the Listing
Rules. The transactions contemplated under the Pre-Delivery Management
Services Agreement also constitute related party transactions of the Company

under IFRS, details of which are set out in Note 40 to the financial statements.

The Company (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries) entered into a
framework management services agreement in relation to the provision
of management and related services with Zhenro Group Company (the
“Management Services Agreement”) on December 15, 2017. Under the
Management Services Agreement, Zhenro Group shall provide management and
related services to the display units, sales offices and community clubhouses of
our commercial and residential properties under development, including but
not limited to cleaning, gardening, concierge, maintenance of public order and
security services to the aforesaid venues. The Management Services Agreement
has been effective from the Listing Date and up to and including December 31,
2019 and the term may be renewed as the parties may mutually agree, subject to
applicable laws and regulations. The aggregate management service fees paid by
the Company in 2017 is RMB82.5 million. The estimated maximum aggregate
management service fees to be paid by the Company under the Management
Services Agreement is RMB132.571 million and RMB159.085 million for
the year ended December 31, 2018 and 2019, respectively. Therefore, it shall
constitute de minimis continuing connected transactions under 14A.76(2)
of the Listing Rules. The transactions contemplated under the Pre-Delivery
Management Services Agreement also constitute related party transactions of the
Company under IFRS, details of which are set out in Note 40 to the financial

statements.
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As the Company was not a listed company during the year ended December 31,
2017, the annual review and reporting requirement as set out in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules was not applicable to the continuing connected transactions of

the Company for the year ended December 31, 2017.

Save as disclosed above, the other related party transactions as disclosed in Note
40 to the financial statements do not constitute connected transactions required

to be disclosed under the Listing Rules.

All references above to other sections, reports or notes in this annual report form

part of this report.

By order of the Board
HUANG Xianzhi

Chairman

Hong Kong, March 28, 2018
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The Company is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance by focusing on principles of integrity, accountability, transparency,
independence, responsibility and fairness. The Company has developed and
implemented sound governance policies and measures with the Board being
responsible for performing such corporate governance duties. The Board will
continue to review and monitor the corporate governance of the Company with
reference to the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules so as to maintain a high standard of corporate governance of

the Company.

As the shares of the Company were not listed on the Stock Exchange until
January 16, 2018, the Corporate Governance Code was not applicable to
the Directors during the year ended December 31, 2017. During the period
commencing from the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report, the

Company has complied with the Corporate Governance Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is charged with promoting the success of the Company by directing
and supervising its affairs. The Board has general powers for the management
and conduct of the Company’s business. The day-to-day operations and
management are delegated by the Board to the management of the Company,

who will implement the strategy and direction as determined by the Board.

The Board will review the structure and composition of the Board from time to
time in light of prevailing circumstances, in order to maintain a high standard

of corporate governance practices of the Company.

The Board has a balance of skills and experience appropriate for the requirements
of the business of the Company. The Company has also adopted a board diversity
policy to set out the approach adopted by the Board regarding diversity of
Board members. In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, industry experience, technical and
professional skills and/or qualifications, knowledge, length of services and time
to be devoted as a director of the Company. The Company will also take into
account factors relating to its own business model and specific needs from time
to time. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the

selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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In order to have a clear division between the management of the Board and
the day-to-day management of the business operation of the Group, the role of
the chairman is separate from that of the chief executive officer. The chairman,
Mr. HUANG Xianzhi, focuses on the overall management of the investment
strategies and business development of our Group. The chief executive officer,
Mr. LIN Zhaoyang and Mr. WANG Benlong, is responsible for day-to-day
business and management of our Group. Such division of responsibilities helps

to reinforce their independence and to ensure a balance of power and authority.

Our non-executive Director Ou Guogqiang is the brother of Ou Guowei, who
is also our non-executive Director, and Ou Guogiang and Ou Guowei are the
sons of Ou Zongrong, one of our controlling shareholders. The details are set
out in the section headed “Biographies of the Directors and Senior Management
— Directors”. Save as disclosed above, no Board member has other relationship
with the other Board members and the chief executive officer of the Company.
The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 6 to 19 of this annual

report.

Each of our executive Directors has entered into a setvice contract with our
Company on December 15, 2017, except Mr. Wang Benlong, who has entered
into a service contract with our Company on March 28, 2018, and we have
issued letters of appointment to each of our non-executive Directors and each
of our independent non-executive Directors. The principal particulars of these
service contracts and the letters of appointment are (a) for an initial fixed term
of three years commencing from September 20, 2017 (for executive Directors
except Mr. Wang Benlong and Mr. Lin Zhaoyang and non-executive Directors),
June 27, 2017 (for our executive Director Mr. Lin Zhaoyang), March 28, 2018
(for our executive Director Mr. Wang Benlong), or December 15, 2017 (for
independent non-executive Directors), and (b) are subject to termination in
accordance with their respective terms. The service contracts may be renewed
in accordance with the articles of association of the Company and the applicable
Rules.

The aggregate remuneration (including fees, salaries, contributions to pension
schemes, share-based compensation expenses, discretionary bonuses, housing and
other allowances and other benefits in kind) payable to the Directors for the year
ended December 31, 2017 was approximately RMB9.52 million.
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The remuneration of the Directors is determined with reference to salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of
the Directors and performance of the Group. Details of the remuneration of
the Directors and senior management for 2017 are set out in Note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements. In addition, pursuant to code provision B.1.5
of the Corporate Governance Code, the annual remuneration of members of the

senior management by band for the year ended December 31, 2017 is set out

M 42 A [ i 5 an below:
A P g N\
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Throughout the period commencing from the Listing Date through and up
to the date of this annual report, the Company has three independent non-
executive Directors, which meets the requirement of the Listing Rules that the
number of independent non-executive directors must represent at least one-third

of the Board and should not be less than three.

The Company has received a written confirmation of independence from each of
the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing

Rules, and considers them to be independent.

Directors have access to the services of the company secretary to ensure that
the Board procedures are followed. Mr. TAN Mingheng, is one of our joint
company secretaries. The Company has also engaged Ms. KWONG Yin Ping
Yvonne, a vice president of SW Corporate Services Group Limited (a company
sectetarial service provider), as another joint company sectetary to assist Mr. Tan
in discharging his duties as company secretary of the Company. Ms. Kwong's

primary contact person at the Company is Mr. Tan.

Since the Company was listed on the Stock Exchange after the year end
December 31, 2017, Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules was not applicable to
the Company for the period from January 1, 2017 to December 31, 2017. In
compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. TAN and Ms. KWONG
has undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the
year ended December 31, 2017.
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Each of the Directors attended various trainings in 2017, including the training
on duties and responsibilities of directors of a listed company in Hong Kong, in
the process of the listing of the Company on the Stock Exchange. The Company
will arrange suitable training for all Directors in order to develop and refresh

their knowledge and skills as part of their continuous professional development.

Code provision A.1.1 of the Corporate Governance Code requires that at
least four regular Board meetings should be held each year at approximately
quarterly intervals. As the Company was not a listed company during the year
ended December 31, 2017, the above Code provision was not applicable to the

Company in 2017.

During the period from the Listing Date until the date of this annual report, the
Board held two meetings. A total of 12 proposals were considered at the Board
meetings, including proposals for the consideration of the Company’s 2017
annual report, 2017 annual results announcement and the recommendation on

the payment of a final dividend.

The table below sets out the details of Board meetings attendance of each

Director during the period from the Listing Date until the date of this annual

report.
JE Hh 7R o =
2E e i
Number of Board kK
meetings requiring Number of Board

attendance  meetings attended
WiTHE S Executive Directors
BALASEE () Mr. HUANG Xianzhi (Chairman) 2 2

MREBE oA (it =% — )\ 4
T H I\ H BATEL AR
FEAT 2 T R A7 B AR )
FARREAE (= F— /4 H

Mr. LIN Zhaoyang (re-designated from chief
executive officer to joint chief executive
officer on February 28, 2018) 2 2

Mr. WANG Benlong (appointed as the

TN H AT R AT joint chief executive officer on

HE > Wik —F— /\EZHA February 28, 2018 and our

T NHEZRAT AT ES) Executive Director on March 28, 2018) 1w 1
JERATHE F Non-executive Directors
Jif [ 58 S5 2E Mzr. OU Guogiang 2 2
B R A S 2R Mr. OU Guowei 2 2
B AT E SR Independent non-executive directors

e g bR S A= Mr. LOKE Yu (alias Loke Hoi Lam) 2 2
TR S Mr. SHEN Guoquan 2 2
FEHF A Mr. WANG Chuanxu 2 2
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Notes:

(1) Mr. WANG Benlong was appointed as an executive Director on March 28, 2018. Since
there is only one board meeting held during the period from the date of his appointment

and up to the date of this annual report, he was only required to attend one Board meeting.

No general meetings were held for the year ended December 31, 2017.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code
provision D.3.1 of the Corporate Governance Code. The Board reviewed the
Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management, the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
the compliance of the Model Code and written employee guidelines, and
the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in this Corporate

Governance Report.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has three principal Board committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee.
Each of the Board committees operates under its terms of reference. The terms of
reference of the Board committees are available on the website of the Company

and that of the Stock Exchange.

Audit Committee

The Company established an audit committee with written terms of reference in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance
Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Audit Committee
consists of three members, namely Mr. LOKE Yu (alias LOKE Hoi Lam) and
Mr. WANG Chuanxu, our independent non-executive Directors, and Mr. OU
Guowei, non-executive Director. Mr. LOKE Yu (alias LOKE Hoi Lam) has been
appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee, and is our independent non-
executive Director possessing the appropriate professional qualifications. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee include: (i) making recommendations
regarding the appointment and removal of external auditors of our Company;
(ii) reviewing the accounting policies and financial positions of our Company;
(iii) reviewing and supervising the internal audit functions and internal
control structure of our Company; and (iv) reviewing and overseeing the risk

management of our Company.

As the Company’s Shares were only listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange from January 16, 2018, no meeting was held by the Audit Committee
for the year ended December 31, 2017.
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Nomination Committee

The Company established a nomination committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with the Corporate Governance Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee consists of two
independent non-executive Directors, being Mr. WANG Chuanxu and Mr.
SHEN Guoquan and one executive Director, being Mr. HUANG Xianzhi, who
is the chairman of our Board and also acts as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee. The primary duties of the nomination committee include: (i)
reviewing the composition of the Board of Directors and assess the ability and
experience of Directors; (ii) making recommendations to our Board on the
appointment and removal of Directors; and (iii) assessing the independence of

the independent non-executive Directors.

As the Company's Shares were only listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange from January 16, 2018, no meeting was held by the Nomination

Committee for the year ended December 31, 2017.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established a remuneration committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The
Remuneration Committee consists of two independent non-executive Directors,
being Mr. WANG Chuanxu and Mr. SHEN Guoquan and one executive
Director, being Mr. HUANG Xianzhi, who is the chairman of our Board. Mr.
WANG Chuanxu, our independent non-executive Director, has been appointed
as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee include: (i) reviewing and making recommendations
to the Board regarding remuneration policies for Directors and senior

management; and (ii) supervising the implementation of remuneration policies.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the model described in code

provision B.1.2(c) (i) of the Code in its terms of reference.

As the Company’s Shares were only listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange from January 16, 2018, no meeting was held by the Remuneration

Committee for the year ended December 31, 2017.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions.
As the shares of the Company were not listed on the Stock Exchange until
January 16, 2018, the Model Code was not applicable to the Directors during
the year ended December 31, 2017. All Directors have confirmed, following
specific enquiry by the Company, that they have complied with the Model Code

since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

Ernst & Young is appointed as the external auditor of the Company.

For the year ended December 31, 2017, the fees paid to Ernst & Young for the
audit of the financial statements of the Group are RMB2.9 million (excluding
the expenses on the audit and non-audit service provided by Ernst & Young

related to the Global Offering of the Company).

Ernst & Young did not provide any non-audit services to the Group in the year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the financial
statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
of the results and cash flow during the reporting period. A statement from the
auditor about its reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out
on pages 113 to 115 of this report. In preparing the financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2017, the Directors have selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently, made judgments and estimates that are
prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a going

concern basis.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective internal control
and risk management systems in order to safeguard the Group's assets and
shareholders’ interests and reviewing the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control and risk management systems on an annual basis so as to ensure that
internal control and risk management systems in place are adequate. The
Company also has an internal audit function which primarily carries out the
analysis and independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the
issuer’s risk management and internal control systems, and reports their findings

to the Board on, at least, an annual basis.

The Group’s internal control system includes a well-established organizational
structure with clearly defined lines of responsibility and authority. The day-to-
day departmental operations are entrusted to individual department which is
accountable for its own conduct and performance and is required to operate its
own department’s business within the scope of the delegated authority and to
implement and strictly adhere to the strategies and policies set by the Company
from time to time. Each department is also required to keep the Board informed
of material developments of the department’s business and implementation of

the policies and strategies set by the Board on a regular basis.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board has reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management systems of the Group
to ensure that a sound system is maintained and operated by the management
in compliance with the agreed procedures and standards. The review covered all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions. In particular, the Board considered the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs and budget
of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.
The review was made by discussions with the management of the Company,
its external and internal auditors and the assessment conducted by the Audit
Committee. The Board believes that the existing internal control system is
adequate and effective, in particular, for financial reporting and Listing Rules

compliance.
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INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company takes seriously of its
obligations under the new Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
and the Listing Rules. The Company has adopted a Continuous Disclosure
Compliance Policy which sets out guidelines and procedures to the Directors
and officers of the Group to ensure inside information of the Group is to be
disseminated to the public in equal and timely manner. Briefing session is held
regularly for officers to facilitate their understanding and compliance with the

policy.

SHAREHOLDERS

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The Board may whenever
it thinks fit call general meetings. Pursuant to the articles of association of the
Company, general meetings shall also be convened on the written requisition
to the Board of the secretary of the Company of any one or more members of
the Company holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company. Such meeting shall be held within two (2)
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit
the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may convene the general meeting in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of

the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, separate resolutions are and will
be proposed at general meetings on each substantial issue, including the election

of individual Directors.
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The procedures for shareholder to propose a person for election as director is
available on the Company’s website (www.zhenrodc.com). Shareholders may
lodge written proposal to the company secretary of the Company at 18/F,
Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, provided that
the minimum length of the period, during which such written notice is given,
shall be at least seven days and that the lodgment of such notice shall commence
no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than seven days prior to the date
of such general meeting. In order to ensure that other shareholders would have
sufficient time to receive and consider the information of the person proposed
for election as a director, shareholders are urged to lodge their written notice of
his intention to propose a person for election as director as early as practicable
in advance of the relevant general meeting and, in any case, not less than 12
business days (as defined in the Listing Rules, i.e. day(s) on which The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited is open for business of dealing in securities)
before the date scheduled for holding the relevant general meeting, so that the
Company can complete the verification procedure with the Company’s share
registrar, and procure the publication of an announcement and/or the dispatch
of a supplementary circular to shareholders in compliance with the applicable
requirements under the Listing Rules. In the event that any such written notice
is received by the Company later than the 12th business day before the date
of holding the relevant general meeting, the Company will need to consider
whether to adjourn the relevant meeting so as to give shareholders a notice of at

least 10 business days of the proposal in accordance with the Listing Rules.

Enquiries about the Company may be put to the Board by contacting the
Company or directly by raising the questions at an annual general meeting or
extraordinary general meeting. The contact details of the Company are set out
in the Company’s website (www.zhenrodc.com). Shareholders can also direct
their enquiries about their shareholdings to the Company’s Hong Kong share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, whose address
is Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the period from the Listing Date to the date of this annual report,
there has not been any change in the Company’s memorandum and articles
of association. The Company’s memorandum and articles of association are
available on the website of the Company (www.zhenrodc.com) and that of the

Stock Exchange.
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To the shareholders of Zhenro Properties Group Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Zhenro Properties
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set
out on pages 116 to 291, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2017, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirement

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSAs”") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each
matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided

in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report,
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters
below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated

financial statements.
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The Group owns investment properties in Mainland China
which were measured at fair value and their aggregate carrying
amount was approximately RMB8,542,700,000 as at 31
December 2017, which represented 8.03% and 69.88% of the
Group's total assets and net assets, respectively. The Group has
engaged an external valuer to perform the valuations of these

properties as at 31 December 2017.
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Significant judgement is required to determine the fair values
of the investment properties, which reflect market conditions as
at the end of the reporting period. The use of different valuation
techniques and assumptions could produce significantly
different estimates of fair values. Accordingly, the valuation of

investment properties is identified as a key audit matter.
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The accounting policies and disclosures for the investment
properties are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 14 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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We evaluated the competency, independence and objectivity of the
external valuer. We understood the valuation approach and key

assumptions used by the external valuer.
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Furthermore, we assessed the correctness of the property related data
used as inputs for the valuations and involved our internal valuation
experts to assist us in evaluating the valuation methodology and the
underlying assumptions. We evaluated the source data used in the
valuation by benchmarking them to relevant market information on

a sample basis.
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In addition, we evaluated the adequacy of disclosures on the

valuation of investment properties.
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Provision for land appreciation tax
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The Group is a comprehensive property developer in Mainland
China focusing on the development of residential properties and
the development, operation and management of commercial
and mixed-use properties. Land appreciation tax ("LAT”) in
Mainland China is one of the main components of the Group’s
taxation charge. LAT is levied on the sale of properties at
progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% based on the
appreciation of land value. At the end of each reporting period,
the management of the Group estimates the provision for LAT
based on its understanding and interpretation of the relevant tax
rules and regulations, and the estimated total sales of properties
less total deductible expenditure, which includes lease charges
for land use rights, property development costs, borrowing costs
and development expenditure. When the LAT is subsequently
determined, the actual payments may be different from the

estimates.
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The accounting policies and disclosures for the provision for
land appreciation tax are included in notes 3 and 10 to the

consolidated financial statements.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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We involved internal tax specialists to assist us to perform a
review on the LAT position, including the review of the estimates
and assumptions used by the Group and the evaluation of tax
exposure based on communications received from the relevant tax
authorities and applying our local knowledge and experience. We
also recalculated the tax computation and compared our calculations

with the amounts recorded by the Group.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirments of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

€rror.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to

do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting

process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Our report is made solely to you, as a body,and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with IFRSs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with IFRSs, we exercise professional judgement

and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

U Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group’s internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by

the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or

conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during

our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to

bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be

expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is SIU FUNG TERENCE HO.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BEZZLETZA=T—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2017

Bl “E2—bE ZFERE
Notes 2017 2016
ANREFL AREFL

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

Wzs REVENUE 5 19,995,061 14,603,520
A Cost of sales (15,777,701)  (11,433,831)
EH Gross profit 4,217,360 3,169,689
A R i g Other income and gains 5 154,221 48,642
S5 T 438 BH 2 Selling and distribution expenses (641,043) (587,476)
TTHU 32 Administrative expenses (664,519) (477,292)
HoAhBH 3 Other expenses (40,873) (19,528)
Eid <t/ EAIASEET € Fair value gains on investment properties 14 353,798 594,150
L Rl A Finance costs 7 (551,539) (356,072)
JREAG DA BV 36k 1) K 4 Share of profits and losses of:
LBt Joint ventures (65,557) (7,205)
Wi~ Associates 18(b) (12,269) —
e B il v 1 PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6 2,749,579 2,364,908
Jl A5 B 52 Income tax expense 10 (1,228,185)  (1,121,686)
A PR i ) B 2 T WA S8R PROFIT AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME FOR THE YEAR 1,521,394 1,243,222
IS ARG Attributable to:
VN/NEIE: ZEDN Owners of the Company 1,408,876 1,183,256
Rl Non-controlling interests 112,518 59,966

1,521,394 1,243,222

AN T B R EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
A NN A5 1 28 A TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF N AR
THE COMPANY 0.47 JG 0.397C
B R Basic and diluted 12 RMBO0.47 RMB0.39
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

“R AR
31 December 2017

Bt ZEF-LE CE-RF
Notes 2017 2016
AT AREFL
RMB’000 RMB’ 000

Je o A NON-CURRENT ASSETS
YIZE ~ B Property, plant and equipment 13 74,702 50,194
Eia<T/E Investment properties 14 8,542,700 7,421,860
TE A - 5 3RR Prepaid land lease payments 15 125,360 387,435
HoAt TV ¥ Other Intangible assets 16 7,130 5,238
BEREERE Investments in joint ventures 17 1,404,370 46,894
Eid 9N k=N Investments in associates 18 207,587 —
EIEBLIH G Deferred tax assets 19 1,059,807 821,090
I T Bh 5 e A A Total non-current assets 11,421,656 8,732,711

HEE CURRENT ASSETS

Ak R E Available-for-sale investments 20 5,000 —
B B ) Properties under development 21 40,802,768 37,524,366
FRIE & 5E T2 Completed properties held for sale 22 16,103,145 9,526,678
B 7 e HE Trade receivables 23 15,605 10,205
JRE Wiz R j?k A Due from related companies 40 2,677,975 1,462,879
JRE ST P SR I Due from a shareholder 40 — 8,210
AT A 3R Prepaid land lease payments 15 2,926,996 6,941,396
TR ~ 54 R A R YCGE R Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 24 11,815,558 3,091,874
AT A [ 5 TH Tax recoverable 986,699 953,569
2 R B Restricted cash 25 3,931,480 2,984,436
I Pledged deposits 25 1,195,303 832,654
Ba kB G5 EY Cash and cash equivalents 25 14,539,485 14,689,689
T A (E Total current assets 95,000,014 78,025,956
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

—E— Lt A=t
31 December 2017

Bl ZEF-LE CE-RF
Notes 2017 2016
ANREFL AREFL
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
MBI R CURRENT LIABILITIES
B 5 BEA FE I A % Trade and bills payables 26 5,539,852 5,506,441
HAth JRE A5 25 TE % E=T 2 Other payables and accruals 27 4,471,244 968,033
K Advances from customers 28 39,324,143 32,612,783
JREASS B Bt 2 ) 3k Due to related companies 40 801,280 7,648
JRE AT H R KT Due to shareholders 40 = 79,856
RS Corporate bond 30 2,002,359 —
B ERAT B H A Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 29 20,981,757 10,319,155
JEAF i 1A Tax payable 10 1,429,557 1,011,813
E A A Total current liabilities 74,550,192 50,505,729
BB NET CURRENT ASSETS 20,449,822 27,520,227
AR el B L TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES 31,871,478 36,252,938
Femmy £ £ NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
FERERAT B At Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 29 19,079,421 24,714,906
N EVES Corporate bond 30 — 1,988,777
% R TE B 1 Deferred tax liabilities 19 567,756 559,324
I E & AR Total non-current liabilities 19,647,177 27,263,007
B Net assets 12,224,301 8,989,931
HER EQUITY
AN F A N A Equity attributable to owners of
the Company
JeA Share capital 31 3 —
it Reserves 32 8,178,781 7,974,754
8,178,784 7,974,754
TG AR E S Perpetual capital securities 33 2,974,443 —
I e R 45 Non-controlling interests 1,071,074 1,015,177
HE 25 40 Total equity 12,224,301 8,989,931
FAE e R B S Mr. Huang Xianzhi Mr. Lin Zhaoyang
FH #FH Director Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

FEHET A= —HIEEE
Year ended 31 December 2017

AT A AER
Attributable to owners of the Company
HiE KA
bR RH RS R
A AU EARE  Sawory  REEF Perpetual Non-
Share Merger Capital surplus  Retained Mzt capital  controlling  HE# A
capital reserve reserve reserves profits Total  securities interests  Total equity
ABITE ARWTE ARWTE ARWTL ARETL ARETLE ARWTLZ ARWTZ ARKTZ
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
(Wits1)  (Witsoe)  (Wiksza)  (Wit32e)
(note 31)  (note 32(c)  (note 32(z)  (note 32(b))
REZF—tE—A—H Asar 1 January 2017 SATII00  6A2485%  204035% 1650874 7,974,754 — L5177 8989931
BATHB A Issue of new shares 3 - - — - 3 — — 3
O A I R BR Capital contribution from
non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries — — 140,629 - - 140,629 - 457471 598,100
VBRI P R £ Acquisition of a
non-controlling interest — — (395,478) — — (395,478) — (454,522) (850,000)
AEMmBEATERER  Acquisition of subsidiaries by
NI A the Group from the then equity
holders of the subsidiaries — (950,000) - - - (950,000) - - (950,000)
BIKABEAE S Issuance of perpetual capital securities — — - — — — 2974443 — 2974443
1o A i FE A Dividends paid toa
TRARE non-controlling shareholder of
the subsidiary — — — — — — — (59,570) (59,570)
R R TARE Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year — — - — 1408876 1,408,876 — 112,518 1,521,394
R E LR RRE Appropriations to statutory
surplus reserves — — — 88,284 (88,284) — — — —
MEF—LFEFZA=F—H  Asac 31 December 2017 3 4,527,360% 387,636* 292319%  2971466* 8,178,784 2974443 1,071,074 12,224,301
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
B =B A= LIS
Year ended 31 December 2016

E/NTE 2PN/
Attributable to owners of the Company
TR
EE T dit
A AU EAREA  BERREAT  (REEA Non-
Share Merger Capital surplus Retained HEE controlling RS AR
capital reserve reserve reserves profits Total interests  Total equity
ANBETE  ARWTE ARWTLZ ARKTLZ ARETZ ARETZ ARETZ ARETZ
RMB'000 RMB’ 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000
(Wits1)  (Witsze)  (Witsza)  (Wit3am)
(note 31)  (note 32(c))  (note 32(z))  (note 32(b))
BoE—AE—A—H Asat 1 January 2016 5,477,360% — 103,772%  S67.881% 6,149,013 161,549 6,310,562
R A R e R s Capital contribution from
non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries - - 666,028 - - 666,028 824,372 1,490,400
SR A e Acquisition of non-controlling interests — — (23,543) — — (23,543) (15,457) (39,000)
A A LRBHR MRS Dividends paid to a non-controlling
shareholder of the subsidiary — — - - - - (15,253) (15,253)
R R 2 TSR Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year — - - - 1,183,256 1,183,256 59,966 1,243,222
HEERERRRE Appropriations to statutory
surplus reserves — — — 100,263 (100,263) — — —
REF—AREFZA=1—H  Asat 31 December 2016 SATTA00%  642485%  204035%  1,650,874% 7974754 1015177 8,989,931
* AR BB AR S REBIR DL AR A (R 555 £

5\ R #8,178,781,000 T (- F — N4 AR
#57,974,754,000 7C) °

Zhenro Properties Group Led. 1E 4% 3 & A FR A 7

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of RMB8,178,781,000 (2016:

RMB7,974,754,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BEZLETZA=T—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2017

Bk “ER—bE ZFERE
Notes 2017 2016
ANREETFL  ARETFIL
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
HMEEH B SR CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
PR iy v ) Profit before tax 2,749,579 2,364,908
R Adjustments for:
WIS - RS Kkt TE B A e Depreciation of items of property,
plant and equipment 6,13 21,708 21,944
Her oA Y & Amortisation of other intangible assets 6,16 2,702 1,808
HEYIE - RS R T E Rl R Gain on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment 5,6 (351) (820)
B B A R A e i Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 5,36 (1,708) —
SR RLT S IH R Share of losses of:
A Joint ventures 65,557 7,205
/N Associates 12,269 —
B G YA T Fair value gains on investment properties 14 (353,798) (594,150)
B ) 2 MR (s 1R Impairment losses recognised for
properties under development 6,21 74,030 19,747
S U (L e 4 Impairment losses written-off 6,22 (72,330) (269,403)
il J A Finance costs 7 551,539 356,072
FEBA Interest income 5 (138,182) (36,538)
2,911,015 1,870,767
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HEBEREER
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BE-Z—LFE+_HA=t+—HIFE

Year ended 31 December 2017

Fif 5 "R —-BE A
Notes 2017 2016
ANREFL AREFL
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
DR v ) S T R A B 1Y Increase in properties under development and
EEMRYES completed properties held for sale (9,293,893)  (3,065,103)
TEAS LA B SR () Decrease/(increase) in prepaid
land lease payments 4,276,475 (6,233,500)
% PR 354 45 3 Increase in restricted cash (947,044)  (1,258,321)
E AT A hn Increase in pledged deposits (95,251) (275,827)
B 5 RN R B R Increase in trade receivables (5,400) (6,167)
TR ~ $ee R AMECK RN Increase in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables (8,723,681)  (1,001,205)
B Wi PR ) K ()i b (Increase)/decrease in amounts due from
related companies (4,254) 1,165
B 5 Ak T B Ak S48 386 Increase in trade and bills payables 57,767 1,024,379
HA A FOR - Eilicke Increase in other payables, deposits
T T2 RS received and accruals 4,530,760 170,053
& 7K N Increase in advances from customers 6,711,360 11,278,681
JRE A5} B 2 ) TR A (38 Increase/(dectease) in amounts due to
related companies 12,228 (1,814)
(BT /i 4 Cash (used in)/generated from operations (569,918) 2,503,108
2R S Interest received 5 138,182 36,538
EAFFLE Interest paid (2,733,363)  (2,997,876)
BB Tax paid (1,073,856)  (1,201,687)
A T B I P O 4 U TR R Net cash flows used in operating activities (4,238,955)  (1,659,917)
BREEH ISR CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
TEE Y - WE Purchases of items of property,
i IE H plant and equipment (47,516) (22,156)
i B H A Y Purchase of other intangible assets (4,594) (1,690)
HEBEYE Additions in investment properties (636,351)  (1,094,941)
Wi B T A o R Acquisition of available-for-sale investments (613,578) —
H A i) 2 ) Disposal of subsidiaries 40,725 —
B A e B S Disposal of available-for-sale Investments 608,578 1,438,020
HERGERE Investments in joint ventures (1,414,038) (55,000)
BB E AT Investment in associates (184,746) —
HEWE - BE Disposal of items of property,
T IE H plant and equipment 1,651 2,144
BEEE (TH) /TS84T 28 Net cash flows (used in)/from investing activities (2,249,869) 266,377
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BEZZ—LFE+A=+—HIEE
Year ended 31 December 2017

T L
Notes 2017 2016
AT AREFL

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

Tl T B i A CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
W~ ] R AR 1 Capital contribution from non-controlling
shareholders of the subsidiaries 598,100 1,490,400
1) o ) 42 P P RO £+ P 6, Dividends paid to a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary (59,570) (15,253)
7452 18 1) {2 ) R Acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group from
WA A N BT 2 the then equity holders of the subsidiaries (950,000) —
WA J 2 ) b Acquisition of non-controlling interests
in subsidiaries (870,000) (19,000)
1 3 ] R OR K Repayment of advance to shareholders 40 14,973 —
3 T B Repayment of advance from shareholders 40 (79,856) (14,336)
YNGR Advances from related companies 40 1,441,067 26,763,842
A T W A ) B Repayment of advances from related companies 40 (659,663) (26,898,620)
1] 5 R K Advance to a shareholder 40 (6,763) (8,210)
7 1) R ) B K Repayment of advances to related companies 40 7,150,013 11,665,210
Ti] [ W ) K Advances to related companies 40 (7,973,843) (11,007,207)
EL KA 2R Increase in pledged deposits (267,398) (37,820)
RN SRAT B At £ 3R 15 I Proceeds from interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings 24,433,541 39,229,121
BT BT S LA K Repayment of interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings (19,406,424)  (29,553,415)
AT A E S5 A5 I Proceeds from the issuance of corporate bond 30 — 1,957,790
BT K N EATE S T 13 30H Proceeds from perpetual capital securities 33 2,974,443 —
TR D 5 B T VR Net cash flows from financing activities 6,338,620 13,552,502
Bl MkBlEFHY NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN
(A, B4 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (150,204) 12,158,962
R BB EY) Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 14,689,689 2,530,727
ERBLE KRB EFEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR 14,539,485 14,689,689
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HEeBlehaR
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE T LT A= AL
Year ended 31 December 2017

B 5 R -LE SRR
Notes 2017 2016
ANRWFL  AR¥TT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
Be kB e%SHY ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
e i CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bl KARTT & Cash and bank balances 25 19,666,268 18,506,779
W BRI B A Less: Restricted cash 25 3,931,480 2,984,436
SR B & Pledged deposits 25 1,195,303 832,654
Ui R I 9 B Cash and cash equivalents as stated
BB &% 8 in the statement of cash flows 14,539,485 14,689,689
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Notes to Financial Statements

~F— A=A
31 December 2017

1. A RAEFEER
ARNFIRZF—MNELH = +—HEH
SRS e B AR A R A R o A&
NEE R = E— E—H T ANHER
WA 38 5 B A R 7 (T 22 BT )) E 4R
Fifie
255 W)W GE A S 07 2 27 Hospiral
Road, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-

9008, Cayman Islands °

AR > AL ERREEEEYEH
AR ESNWTHE S/ E S 100

EHEEA > AN E MR AR
RoYue Limited > 3%/ ) i 95 Ji JE Lt
E 195 VA

A B M 24 7 2
A T LR A R RS RS -

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with limited
liability in the Cayman Islands on 21 July 2014. The Company’s shares
were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 16 January 2018.

The registered office of the Company is located at 27 Hospital Road,
George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-9008, Cayman Islands.

During the year, the Group was principally involved in property

development, property leasing and commercial property management.

In the opinion of the directors, the ultimate holding company of the
Company is RoYue Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands.

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

kAL, SRR/ AT A
JR3L 5 % H GAUIEN JBRE T 43 b
PR Issued Percentage of
Place and date of ordinary/ equity interest
W 2~ incorporation/ establishment registered attributable to ~ REHFH
Subsidiaries and place of operations share capital the Company  Principal activities
A
Directly held:
Zhenro International Limited KRELRE/ 0.01 T 1009 BEER
(['Zhenro International J) “E—NELAZF=H US$0.01 Investment holding
Zhenro International Limited British Virgin Islands/
(“Zhenro International”) 23 July 2014
Blooming Force Limited R ELRS 1ET 1009 HREHER
([Blooming Force ) “Z-n%+AZH US$1 Investment holding
Blooming Force Limited British Vitgin Islands/
(“Blooming Force”) 2 October 2015
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1 A REHEER L.
A B oD 4w B Sk (4
A/ B W4 1 RS0 -

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(#) (Continued)
wEMERSE,/ SRR/ AT A
FRAL % K F 9 Al A TR 73 b
DA 0 B Issued Percentage of
Place and date of ordinary/ equity interest
il 2wl incorporation/ establishment registered attributable to  FEFEH
Subsidiaries and place of operations share capital the Company  Principal activities
[EEER O
Indirectly held:
Zhenro Hong Kong Limited B/ “F—NETA LA 1HTC 100 HEER
([ Zhenro HK]) Hong Kong/9 October 2014 HKS$1 Investment holding
Zhenro Hong Kong Limited
(“Zhenro HK”)
KB EARAR ([H1) B/ —F-=FAATAH BT 100% SRR
Sheen Billion Investment Limited Hong Kong/18 September 2013 HKS$1 Investment holding
(“Sheen Billion”)
AR BEA 5 5 A A ) i A RAEAE N 100% BEEK
([ AR A ]) = (TR ]) /b s,/ 10,000,000 JC Tnvestment holding
MR 5 A RAH “F—tHELAZAR RMB10,000,000
Fuzhou Huiheng Trading Co., Ltd. People’s Republic of China
(“Fuzhou Huiheng”) * (“PRC")/Mainland China/
28 July 2017
R SEREARAR  Hihs/ —FF_FAA=A 100 B A 100% ETER
(T ESH g ) Singapore/3 September 2002 SGD100 Investment holding
True Dragon (Singapore) Pte.Ltd.
(“True Dragon”)
MR AR AR /P NG 100% SRR
(IR ) “Z—LHEARTZH 1,000,000,000 JC Investment holding
TR SR A R A7) PRC/Mainland China/ RMB,000,000,000
Fuzhou Fengzewei Industrial 12 June 2017
Co., Ltd. (“Fuzhou Fengzewei”)
FAER R ARA /R, ARHE oo B
([ ) “FZ—tHR A TEH 200,000,000 7T Investment holding
MR LR TR PRC/Mainland China/ RMB200,000,000
Fuzhou Huace Enterprise 15 June 2017

Management Co., Ltd.

(“Fuzhou Huace”)
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31 December 2017

Lo 2 BB BB Rt o)
A B PO JE 4w Y SRk (4

AT E WA 7 R RS T

(%)

W

Subsidiaries

WA ()

Indirectly held:(Continued)

MR R EE AR

(M2 )

MR R A RA R
Fuzhou Juntai Commercial
Management Co., Ltd.

(“Fuzhou Juntai”)

IEABE (L) BXBRARA
(%)

IERE (L) BXERARAR
Zhenro Yupin (Shanghai) Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(“Shanghai Yupin”)

AR (L) BXBRARAF

([ i 2R )

IEABE (L) BB RARA
Zhenro Yuyuan (Shanghai) Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd.

=y

(“Shanghai Yuyuan”)

ERSR (Hig) BERRARAH
(I EEEX])

IERER (Lig) BERRARA A
Zhenro Yutian (Shanghai) Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(“Shanghai Yutian”)

wEMERSE,/
JRAL A % A
DREENES

Place and date of

incorporation/ establishment

and place of operations

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Continued)

CRTLER/
Al A
Issued
ordinary/
registered

share capital

R/, N
“E-tHEAATAH 800,000,000 G
PRC/Mainland China/ RMB800,000,000
16 June 2017

/R, NG
—E-=FE+—H+H 100,000,000 7C
PRC/Mainland China/ RMB100,000,000
12 November 2013

W/ R, NG
“EF-=FNA+EH 100,000,000 JC
PRC/Mainland China/ RMB100,000,000
17 April 2013

i/ NG
“EF—-NE=A+MNA 50,000,000 7C
PRC/Mainland China/ RMB 50,000,000
14 March 2014

AR/ A
REHET 23 b
Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Company

100%

100%

100%

100%

FEEY

Principal activities

8 sede

Investment holding

UE 9
E S
Property development

and property leasing

ER

Property development

E L9
UEZihS

Property development

and property leasing
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1 A REHEER L.
A B oD 4w B Sk (4
A/ B W4 1 RS0 -

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

() (Continued)
Ak, CRALER,/ AR/ R
JLHH B H il i A JBOHE i 43 b
VAR B Issued Percentage of
Place and date of ordinary/ equity interest
Wi ARl incorporation/ establishment registered attributable to  FEFEH
Subsidiaries and place of operations share capital the Company  Principal activities
R ()
Indirectly held:(Continued)
EA8E (L) BESRARAR  PE/TENE,/ N 90% MR
(I Fi B )+ “F-mE=A+=H 325,500,000 7G Property development
IE5EEH (1) BB RAMAT  PRC/Mainland China/ RMB325,500,000
Zhenro Yufeng (Shanghai) Real 13 March 2014
Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(“Shanghai Yufeng”) **
EX8E(LG) BERRARAT  PE/TENE/ N 90%  HIERE
([ EiEaeg |) —“F=Ft—A1=H 50,000,000 7G Property development
IEAB (L) BXREAMAT  PRC/Mainland China/ RMB50,000,000
Zhenro Yuzun (Shanghai) Real 13 November 2013
Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(“Shanghai Yuzun”) **
ER (R FRERBERAT  PE/ PERE N 100%  HARREE
([fEgEE]) “F—-WEZA+MNA 50,000,000 7C Not yet commence
F&(RE) FHERBARAT  PRC/Mainland China/ RMBS0,000,000 operation
Zhenro (Fujian) Property 14 February 2014
Development Co., Led.
(“Fujian Property”)
R EERARAF B/ B NG 100%  FEMEER
([ IE4ER3E ) ZE-WELAZTRH 50,000,000 7 Commercial
RS AR PRC/Mainland China/ RMB50,000,000 propetty management
Zhenro Commerce Management 26 May 2014
Co., Ltd. (“Zhenro Commerce”)
B () SRR RARAH il Vil v N 100%  WIER
([FEH#&E ) “E—=Ft—A1HA 100,000,000 7 Property development
IER (F ) BB SR ARAR PRC/Mainland China/ RMB100,000,000
Zhenro (Putian) Investment Co., Ltd. 15 November 2013

(“Putian Investment”)
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31 December 2017

Lo 2 BB BB Rt o)
A B PO JE 4w Y SRk (4

AT E WA 7 R RS T

(%)

W

Subsidiaries

WA ()

Indirectly held:(Continued)

LRIERERERARAH
([EBES])

LRERERBRARAA
Anhui Zhenro Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Anhui Real Estate”)

RELREREFARAH
(MREESR])
REERERERARAH
Wuhan Zhenro Zhengtai Real
Estate Co., Ltd. (“Wuhan Zhengtai”)

IEEER (M) BEHRAH
([BRMNIESL])

SRS (BN R EHRAE
Zhenro Zhengxing (Suzhou)
Investment Co., Ltd.

(“Suzhou Zhengxing”)

wEMERSE,/
JRAL A % A
DREENES

Place and date of

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Continued)

incorporation/ establishment

and place of operations

/R,

N

PRC/Mainland China/

1 June 2016

TR,/ Rk,

“FAERAZF—H

PRC/Mainland China/

31 May 2016

/A,

“F-NEHALAE

PRC/Mainland China/

5 May 2016

CRTLER/
Al A
Issued
ordinary/
registered

share capital

N
200,000,000 7T
RMB200,000,000

AR
50,000,000 G
RMBS50,000,000

N
50,000,000 7T
RMB50,000,000

AR/ A
REHET 23 b
Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Company

100%

100%

100%

FEEY

Principal activities

R I
Not yet commence

operation

UE i

Property development

R I
Not yet commence

operation
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1 A REHEER L.
A B oD 4w B Sk (4
A/ B W4 1 RS0 -

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(#) (Continued)
Ak, CRfEER/ L
JI 5 K H il i A JBOHE i 43 b
VAR B Issued Percentage of
Place and date of ordinary/ equity interest
Wi ARl incorporation/ establishment registered attributable to  FEFEH
Subsidiaries and place of operations share capital the Company  Principal activities
WA ()
Indirectly held: (Continued)
(L) M R,/ Rk, NG 100%  HARFREE
ARAF( LiGFEME]) “E—ANFHHAZTH 50,000,000 JC Not yet commence
E(LE) EHERBEARAR  PRC/Mainland China/ RMB50,000,000 operation
Zhenro (Shanghai) Property 20 May 2016
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Shanghai Property”)
M B EREAERARAR il Vil v N 100% YR
(E=ns:) “Z-RELATAR 50,000,000 7G Property development
MEEREAERARAH PRC/Mainland China/ RMB50,000,000
Nanchang Zhenro Zhengchuang 18 July 2016
Real Estate Co., Ltd.
(“Nanchang Zhengchuang”)
MEEREREXARAR il Vil v N 100% ¥R
([RBERER]) —“Z—-AENA—H 50,000,000 7C Property development
MEEREHEERARAH PRC/Mainland China/ RMB50,000,000
Nanchang Zhenro Zhengxing Real 1 August 2016

Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(“Nanchang Zhenro Zhengxing”)
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31 December 2017

1 AW REBEER
A B PO JE 4w Y SRk (4
A/ R4 0 RS

(%)

W

Subsidiaries

WA ()
Indirectly held: (Continued)
IESRIES (Ef) R B 8
ARAR (TEEER )
ERIES (L) B
AR
Zhenro Zhengfeng (Shanghai)

Property Development Co., Led.

(“Zhenro Zhengfeng”)

IESEIETR (B S EHIRAE
([EEZIER])

IR (BEM) SOEA R AR
Zhenro Zhengmao (Suzhou)
Investment Co., Ltd.

(“Zhenro Zhengmao”)

IERER (FEM) & A RA
([IEZIE%])

IERER (BEM) G R ]
Zhenro Zhengtai (Suzhou)
Investment Co., Ltd.

(“Zhenro Zhengtai”)

IEAIERN (R BB AR 7

(TEAIERN])

AR () BXBRARA

Zhenro Zhengchuang (Wuhan)

Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

(“Zhenro Zhengchuang”)

=

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

(Continued)

wEMERSE,/

JRL 5 % F

DREENES

Place and date of
incorporation/ establishment

and place of operations

/R,
“E AR
PRC/Mainland China/
19 September 2016

/B R,
“F-NEFAZTAR
PRC/Mainland China/

28 Octorber 2016

/B A,
“F-NEt—-AZt1H
PRC/Mainland China/

25 November 2016

/B A,
“F-RELAZTAH
PRC/Mainland China/

28 July 2016

CRTLER/
Al A
Issued
ordinary/
registered

share capital

N
50,000,000 G
RMB50,000,000

AR #
100,000,000 7C
RMB100,000,000

AR
100,000,000 JG
RMB100,000,000

AR
5,000,000 T
RMBS,000,000

AR/ A
REHET 23 b
Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Company

100%

100%

100%

100%

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

FEEY

Principal activities

R I

Not yet commence

operation

ESEE

Property development

MR ETE
Not yet commence

operation

A B e A
Not yet commence

operation
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1 A REHEER L.
A B oD 4w B Sk (4
A/ B W4 1 RS0 -

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(#) (Continued)
Ak, CRfEER/ L
JI 5 K H il i A JBOHE i 43 b
VAR B Issued Percentage of
Place and date of ordinary/ equity interest
Wi ARl incorporation/ establishment registered attributable to  FEFEH
Subsidiaries and place of operations share capital the Company  Principal activities
WA ()
Indirectly held: (Continued)
FRER (L) BERRARAR  HE/ Pl ARH 100%  MARGEE
((EAIER (L) ]) “F—R"%+—HTlH 50,000,000 JC Not yet commence
EREZ (L) EXBREARAR  PRC/Mainland China/ RMBS0,000,000 operation
Zhenro Zhenghong (Shanghai) 14 November 2016
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(“Zhento Zhenghong (Shanghai)”)
IERIER (M) B HRAH il Vil v N 100%  MABRGEE
([EAER (M) ]) “EZ—=RERATZH 50,000,000 TG Not yet commence
ERIFE (M) BEARAR PRC/Mainland China/ RMBS0,000,000 operation
Zhenro Zhengxing (Fuzhou) 12 June 2016
Investment Co., Ltd.
(“Zhenro Zhengxing (Fuzhou)”)
R EEHARAA /P, N 100% BEEK
([FEERE]) “EF-=F+—H+tH 10,000,000 7 Investment holding
REFEREEHARAR PRC/Mainland China/ RMB10,000,000
Fujian Jingheng Investment 7 November 2013
Management Co., Ltd.
(“Fujian Jingheng”)
RUERTEEHARAF R /R, N 100%  FFPEEH
([RUHE) “F-NELATA 1,000,000 ¢ Commercial
RUELHEERARAR PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 property
Changsha Zhenro Commerce 19 July 2016 management

Management Co., Led.

(“Changsha Commerce”)
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e A ES
31 December 2017

2wl B AR MR )
A B PO JE 4w Y SRk (4

AT E WA 7 R RS T

(%)

W

Subsidiaries

R - ()

Indirectly held: (Continued)

IER () EXBRARAH
([HHEE])

R (FH) EXERARA
Zhenro (Putian) Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.

(“Putian Real Bstate”)

B () A B A R A
([ HEHE )

IE (75 ) B AR A A
Zhenro (Putian) Property
Development Co., Ltd.

(“Putian Property”)

AR () BEARAT
(HHSERL))
EARHE () BEARAT

Zhentro Fortune (Fujian) Real Estate

Co.,Ltd. (“Putian Fortune Center”)

IES (P ) B2 A TR A )
(T HmEER])

IEAE () P EE A IR A ]
Zhenro (Putian) Commerce
Management Co., Ltd.

(“Putian Commerce Management”)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

(Continued)

wEMERSE,/

FRAL % K F 9

DREENES

Place and date of
incorporation/ establishment

and place of operations

/R,
“RERENA AR
PRC/Mainland China/

18 April 2005

/R,

B il
PRC/Mainland China/

12 November 2010

g,/ R,
“F—THAANH
PRC/Mainland China/
4 June 2012

/B,

e =t
PRC/Mainland China/

12 June 2014

CRTLER/
Al A
Issued
ordinary/
registered

share capital

N
100,000,000 JG
RMB100,000,000

INEL
30,000,000 G
RMB30,000,000

NG

100,000,000 JG
(M3t @)

RMB100,000,000
(Note ()

AR
10,000,000 JC
RMB10,000,000

AR/ A
REHET 23 b
Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Company

100%

100%

100%

100%

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

FEEY

Principal activities

ESEE
LB
Property development

and property leasing

UE i

Property development

UES N
YEEiiN S

Property development

and property leasing

E S

Property management
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2wl B AR MER )
A B oD 4w B Sk (4

ARm EEWE A R ERERIIIT

1.  CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

(#) (Continued)
wEMERSE,/
JLHH B H
DREFRE
Place and date of
Wi ARl incorporation/ establishment
Subsidiaries and place of operations

MHERA - (8)
Indirectly held: (Continued)

ER(RY) BEARAF W/ A,
([RIWEE] “EF-=F=AAH
ER(RY) BEHRAH PRC/Mainland China/
Zhenro (Changsha) Real Estate 6 March 2013
Co., Ltd. (“Changsha Real Estate”)
B IES (Rrmsk) A RA A /A,
(HBEX]) “FFE-AZEAH
BB IEAE (Bimig) EXAMAR PRC/Mainland China/
Nanchang Zhenro (Singapore) Real 26 November 2002
Estate Co., Ltd.
(“Nanchang Real Estate”)
i B TR s E B A R A ) W/ A,
(5 B Rk J) “FELE+—-A=1H
i B B e B A IR A PRC/Mainland China/
Nanchang Shiou Properties 30 November 2007
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Nanchang Shiou”)
ERWEER (F]) B %R /R,
ARAR(TERILHEER ) ZF-RE+—HZH
BRI HIER (FE) BRI PRC/Mainland China/
HIRAF 2 November 2016

Zhenro Shantian Zhengtai (Pingtan)

Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(“Zhenro Shantian Zhengtai”) **

134 Zhenro Properties Group Led. 1F 2% 3B 3 & BR A 7

CHTLER,/
Al A
Issued
ordinary/
registered

share capital

N
60,000,000 G
RMBG0,000,000

N
105,000,000 7C
RMB105,000,000

N
50,000,000 7C
RMB50,000,000

AR
50,000,000 G
RMBS50,000,000

L
JREHET 23 b
Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Company

100%

100%

100%

51%

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

FEEH

Principal activities

UEE
YEE i
Property development

and property leasing

UESES
PEES i
Property development

and property leasing

UESEES

Property development

UE S

Property development
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Notes to Financial Statements

—F— L= A= R
31 December 2017

Lo 2 BB BB Rt o)
A B PO JE 4w Y SRk (4

AT E WA 7 R RS T

(%)

W

Subsidiaries

WA ()

Indirectly held: (Continued)

T % AR P A R A )
(AR ])

T2 A S A R ]
Xi'an Jingheng Commercial Property
Management Co., Ltd.

(“Jingheng Commerce”)

G %2557 I e B B A TR
i:s=3:d)

TG % 5 o E B B A TR
Xi'an Jingqi Property Development
Co., Ltd. (“Xi'an Jingqi")

MR EEHARAR
(M)

AR IE SR AR 7
Fuzhou Zhenro Commerce
Management Co., Ltd.

(“Fuzhou Commerce”)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

wEMERSE,/
JRAL A % A
DREENES

Place and date of

incorporation/ establishment

and place of operations

/R,

“E-WEAAZFEH

PRC/Mainland China/
24 June 2014

TR,/ Rk,

“E-NEZATLA

PRC/Mainland China/
19 February 2016

B/ B R,
“F-NERANR
PRC/Mainland China/
8 June 2016

CRTLER/
Al A
Issued
ordinary/
registered

share capital

AEH500,000 7
RMB500,000

AR
5,000,000 G
RMBS,000,000

N
1,000,000 G
RMB1,000,000

AR/ A
REHET 23 b
Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Company

100%

100%

100%

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(Continued)

FEEY

Principal activities

EES/ES$:
Commercial

property management

UE i

Property development

[HES7E S8
Commercial property

management

4 #t Annual Report 2017

135



8 785 it o B ik

Notes to Financial Statements

S A ES S
31 December 2017

1. vl REEER 2
A T BEH & A ) B R (4

ARm EEWE A R ERERIIIT

(%)

M 2

Subsidiaries

FHRA - ()

Indirectly held: (Continued)

R EW (F5H) BBARAR
([HHEH)

EREW (75 H) FEARA R
Zhenro Yuhu (Putian) Development
Co., Ltd. (“Putian Yuhu")

P A A IR A A
(TP %53 )

TR B A IR A A
Xi'an Jingyu Property Development
Co., Ltd. (“Xi'an Jingyu”)

IEAEIEZ () BB RARA R
([EARERHME])

IEIEZ () BXBRARA
Zhenro Zhenghong (Putian) Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(“Zhenro Zhenghong Putian”)

WiRE LK B AR A
([ #3m 75 LIk ])

iR 75 LR K EEA AR
Hunan Xiushan Lishui Real Estate
Co., Ltd. (“Hunan Xiushan Lishui”)

1.  CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

wEMERSE,/
FRz 2 1 F
DREENS

Place and date of

incorporation/ establishment

and place of operations

E/HE R,
A=l
PRC/Mainland China/

13 January 2016

i/
“F-AEARZTH
PRC/Mainland China/
30 June 2016

g,/ B A,
“E-REAANR
PRC/Mainland China/
8 September 2016

/B A,
“FFHETATAH
PRC/Mainland China/

16 November 2005

136 Zhenro Properties Group Led. 1F 2% 3B 7 & BR A 7

CHTLER,/
Al A
Issued
ordinary/
registered

share capital

N
80,000,000 G
RMBS0,000,000

N
5,000,000 G
RMBS,000,000

AR
80,000,000 G
RMBS0,000,000

N
8,000,000 G
RMBS,000,000

L
JREHET 23 b
Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Company

100%

100%

100%

100%

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(Continued)

FEEH

Principal activities

UESEES

Property development

I K A i
Not yet commence

operation

ESE

Property development

UESES

Property development
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—F— L= A= R
31 December 2017

Lo 2 BB BB Rt o)
A B PO JE 4w Y SRk (4

AT E WA 7 R RS T

(%)

W

Subsidiaries

WA ()

Indirectly held: (Continued)

MK E SRR RARA A
([HE Rk )

R KRR R RARA A
Nanjing Yongtuo Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Nanjing Yongtuo”)

BMEREXERARAF
([ERMEREE])

R IE B B R B R A TR T
Suzhou Zhengrui Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.

(“Suzhou Zhengrui Real Estate”)

B ERA BB R A RA A
([FgEALRR))

A ERA BB R EARA A
Nanchang Zhenro Honggu
Investment Co., Ltd.

(“Nanchang Honggu”)

MAERTERERRARAA
(T B

MEERHESERRARA A
Nanchang Zhenro Xinjian
Investment Co., Ltd.

(“Nanchang Xinjian")

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

wEMERSE,/

JRL 5 % F

DREENES

Place and date of
incorporation/ establishment

and place of operations

/R,
“Z—tF-AZTWA
PRC/Mainland China/

24 January 2017

/R,

e At
PRC/Mainland China/

12 December 2016

W/ R A,
—“F-=Ft+—A+NAE
PRC/Mainland China/

14 November 2013

g,/ B R,
—“F-=Ft+—A1H
PRC/Mainland China/

5 November 2013

CRTLER/
Al A
Issued
ordinary/
registered

share capital

N
500,000,000 JC
RMB500,000,000

AR
100,000,000 JG
RMB100,000,000

ANE#
100,000,000 7
RMB100,000,000

AR #
50,000,000 7T
RMB50,000,000

AR/ A
REHET 23 b
Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Company

100%

100%

100%

100%

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(Continued)

FEEY

Principal activities

ORI
Not yet commence

operation

UE i

Property development

UES N

Property development

ESEE

Property development
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S A ES S
31 December 2017

1. A RAEBEEF @)
A T BEH & A ) B R (4
PUNSER A Ve TR

(%)

M 2

Subsidiaries

A ()

Indirectly held: (Continued)
B EERRARA A

([ ALK AR ])

ALK BB RARAF
Hefei Yongtuo Real Estate

Development Co., Ltd.
(“Hefei Yongtuo”) **

AREKERERARAF

([ EIEERK )

BIEER B EARA A
Hefei Zhengmao Real Estate

Development Co., Ltd.
(“Hefei Zhengmao”)

ARERELBRARAT

([BIEER])

AEERERERARAF
Hefei Zhengyu Real Estate

Development Co., Led.
(“Hefei Zhengyu”)

1.  CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

wEMERSE,/

JI 5 K H

DREENS

Place and date of
incorporation/ establishment

and place of operations

/R,
“F—tFZAZTLA
PRC/Mainland China/

27 February 2017

Vg
“F-tHEZAZ1H
PRC/Mainland China/
20 February 2017

/R,
“F-tHE=A+H
PRC/Mainland China/
10 March 2017

Zhenro Properties Group Led. 1E 4% 3 & A FR A 7

CHTLER,/
Al A
Issued
ordinary/
registered

share capital

N

400,000,000 JG
(W5E )

RMB400,000,000
(Note (b))

AR
100,000,000 TG
RMB100,000,000

AR #
125,000,000 7C
RMB125,000,000

L
JREHET 23 b
Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Company

25%

100%

100%

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(Continued)

FEEH

Principal activities

UESEES

Property development

UE S

Property development

ESEE'

Property development
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Notes to Financial Statements

e A ES
31 December 2017

2wl B AR MR )

7 VY 28 ) IR )
A TR B R R RS

(%)

W

Subsidiaries

HRA - ()

Indirectly held: (Continued)

IEH (M) EEERARAR
([#HEE)

IEHGEH) BXERARAF
Zhengrun (Putian) Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Putian Zhengrun”)

SR IETE P s B A A IR A
(TERMIETE )

SR IE T 5 o 7 B B A R A
Suzhou Zhengrun Property
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Suzhou Zhengrun”) **

HE R ERARA
(MEERR])

HERPBEARAT
Nanchang Rongke Real Estate
Development Co., Led.
(“Nanchang Rongke”)

MEERE BXARAF
(THBERES])
MEERET BFXARAH

Nanchang Zhenro Zhengsheng Real

Estate Development Co., Ltd.

(“Nanchang Zhenro Zhengsheng”)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

wEMERSE,/
LI E % A
DREENES

Place and date of

incorporation/ establishment

and place of operations

/R,
“F-LFHATAR
PRC/Mainland China/

18 May 2017

/B,
“F-tHF=H=H
PRC/Mainland China/
3 March 2017

W/ R,
“EF—LFENA+—H
PRC/Mainland China/

11 April 2017

B/ B,
“E-RNEAAZTH
PRC/Mainland China/
20 September 2016

CRTLER/
Al A
Issued
ordinary/
registered

share capital

N
80,000,000 7T
RMBS0,000,000

AR
100,000,000 G
RMB100,000,000

ANE#
10,000,000 7C
RMB10,000,000

AR #
50,000,000 7T
RMB50,000,000

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(Continued)

AR/ A

REHET 23 b
Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to ~ FEEH

the Company  Principal activities

100% R

Property development

51%  YIERHEE

Property development

100%  HARRIREE
Not yet commence

operation

100%  HAHGEE
Not yet commence

operation
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Notes to Financial Statements
—F— A=
31 December 2017

1 A REHEER L.
A B oD 4w B Sk (4
A/ B W4 1 RS0 -

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(#) (Continued)
wEMERSE,/ CRfEER/ L
JI 5 K H Al A TR 73 b
VAR B Issued Percentage of
Place and date of ordinary/ equity interest
Wi ARl incorporation/ establishment registered attributable to  FEFEH
Subsidiaries and place of operations share capital the Company  Principal activities
A ()
Indirectly held: (Continued)
BT (CFHE) BB RARAH /R, ARH 5% WHRME
([FRIETH]) “F—tHEAAZTH 50,000,000 7G Property development
A (FHE) EXRRARA PRC/Mainland China/ RMB50,000,000
Zhengsheng (Pingtan) Real Estate 20 June 2017
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Pingtan Zhengsheng) **
WMIERE SRR RARAF Vg ARH 100%  MABRHEE
([ERMEE]) “Z—tHENA+AH 50,000,000 TG Not yet commence
B EREER AR A PRC/Mainland China/ RMB50,000,000 operation
Zhengzhou Zhenro Real Estate 18 April 2017
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Zhengzhou Real Estate”)
WM IE S E R RRARAR /P, N 100%  MARREE
(THMEE ) —“Z—tHAAAH 10,000,000 G Not yet commence
WM E A BB AR PRC/Mainland China/ RMB10,000,000 operation
Zhengzhou Zhengwan Real 6 June 2017
Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(“Zhengzhou Zhengwan”)
WM A BB RARAF R /R E R, N 100%  HARGEE
(THEM 446 1) “Z—tH®AAAH 10,000,000 TG Not yet commence
TR EER AR A PRC/Mainland China/ RMB10,000,000 operation
Zhengzhou Rongyu Real Estate 6 June 2017

Development Co., Ltd.
(“Zhengzhou Rongyu”)

Zhenro Properties Group Led. 1E 4% 3 & A FR A 7
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Notes to Financial Statements

e A ES
31 December 2017

Lo 2 BB BB Rt o)
A7 B 24 7 B9 YR} )
AT LT B 70 RN WS40
(#)

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(Continued)

wEMERSE,/ SRR/ L
FRAL % K F 9 Al A TR 73 b
DA 0 B Issued Percentage of
Place and date of ordinary/ equity interest
il A s incorporation/ establishment registered attributable to  FEFEH
Subsidiaries and place of operations share capital the Company  Principal activities
WA (8)
Indirectly held: (Continued)
MM SR BB SRR R /R, ARH 100%  MABRGEE
([ &R AEE ) “Z—tHE HtH 10,000,000 7C Not yet commence
BMREELERARAR PRC/Mainland China/ RMB10,000,000 operation
Zhengzhou Rongwan Real Estate 7 June 2017
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Zhengzhou Rongwan”)
MR R E SRR RARAF /B, N 100%  MARHEE
(TR A 5 ) “ZE—tHRAtH 10,000,000 7T Not yet commence
BHRREER AR A PRC/Mainland China/ RMB10,000,000 operation
Zhengzhou Rongding Real Estate 7 June 2017
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Zhengzhou Rongding”)
WM ERIEERRA R il Vg N 100%  MARIGEE
(TS ERL) “Z—tHAANA 10,000,000 TG Not yet commence
WM A& RARAR PRC/Mainland China/ RMB10,000,000 operation
Zhengzhou Zhengchuang Real 9 June 2017
Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(“Zhengzhou Zhengchuang”)
MIEREXERARAF /R, N 100%  MAMIGEE
(TS E S 1) “E—LERAFN 10,000,000 7 Not yet commence
B EREERRARA A PRC/Mainland China/ RMB10,000,000 operation
Zhengzhou Zhengjing Real 14 June 2017

Estate Development Co., Ltd.

(“Zhengzhou Zhengjing”)
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Notes to Financial Statements

S A ES S
31 December 2017

1. A RAEBEEF @)
A T BEH & A ) B R (4
PUNSER A Ve TR
()

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(Continued)

wEMERSE,/ CRfEER/ L
JI 5 K H Al A TR 73 b
VAR B Issued Percentage of
Place and date of ordinary/ equity interest
Wi ARl incorporation/ establishment registered attributable to  FEFEH
Subsidiaries and place of operations share capital the Company  Principal activities
A ()
Indirectly held: (Continued)
MM EB BB RA R /R, ARH 100%  MARGEE
(TERMIERE |) “F—tHRNA A 10,000,000 7C Not yet commence
WM EEEERRARA A PRC/Mainland China/ RMB10,000,000 operation
Zhengzhou Zhenggqing Real 14 June 2017
Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(“Zhengzhou Zhengqing”)
WMIERE SR RARAF Vg N 100%  MABRGEE
(TERM IERL)) “E—LHERA T 10,000,000 JG Not yet commence
WM IEREF B RARAR PRC/Mainland China/ RMB10,000,000 operation
Zhengzhou Zhengqi Real 14 June 2017
Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(“Zhengzhou Zhengqi”)
WM IER BB RARAR /P, N 100%  MARREE
(TERMIERR ) “E—HERA T 10,000,000 7C Not yet commence
WM EAN & 8 AR AR PRC/Mainland China/ RMB10,000,000 operation
Zhengzhou Zhengxun Real 14 June 2017
Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(“Zhengzhou Zhengxun”)
UM IENE B SE 3 A R A R /R E R, N 100%  HARGEE
(TS M ERE ) “E—tEAR TN 10,000,000 TG Not yet commence
T ERE B3R AR 7 PRC/Mainland China/ RMB10,000,000 operation
Zhengzhou Zhengwang Real 14 June 2017

Estate Development Co., Ltd.

(“Zhengzhou Zhengwang”)
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Notes to Financial Statements

e A ES
31 December 2017

2wl B AR MR )

7 VY 28 ) IR )
A TR B R R RS

(%)

W

Subsidiaries

WA ()

Indirectly held: (Continued)

MO IE 50 S5 A PR F
(B 1E5b 1)

M IR B SRR R A R A
Zhengzhou Zhengchi Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(“Zhengzhou Zhengchi”)

WM IS B e SR A R
(TARMIERE )

WMIERE BB RA R
Zhengzhou Zhengteng Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(“Zhengzhou Zhengteng”)

T2 A A A PR A
([P9 %54 )

7% S Am L B A R A )
Xi'an Jingheng Property
Development Co., Led.

(“Xi'an Jingheng”)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

wEMERSE,/

FRAL % K F 9

DREENES

Place and date of
incorporation/ establishment

and place of operations

/e,
ZE AR
PRC/Mainland China/
14 June 2017

/B,
“E— LA
PRC/Mainland China/
14 June 2017

W/ R A,

Y Sk e o ol
PRC/Mainland China/

27 November 2013

CRTLER/
Al A
Issued
ordinary/
registered

share capital

N
10,000,000 JG
RMB10,000,000

AR
10,000,000 TG
RMB10,000,000

ANE#
50,000,000 7T
RMB50,000,000

AR/ A
REHET 23 b
Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Company

100%

100%

100%

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(Continued)

FEEY

Principal activities

R I
Not yet commence

operation

ARt EE
Not yet commence

operation

IESE I
B
Property development

and property leasing
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Notes to Financial Statements

S A ES S
31 December 2017

2wl B AR MER )

1 B W 28 W IR R 4)
A TR B A R R RS

(%)

M 2

Subsidiaries

R ()

Indirectly held: (Continued)

IR (FF) EXBRARAH
([P F-BE ])

ER(F) BXBERARAH
Zhenro (Nanping) Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Nanping Real Estate”) **

IR (MR EXERARAH
(BB ])

IER(BR) EXBRARA
Zhenro (Minhou) Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Minhou Real Estate”) **

ER(FE)EERRARAH
([HEEX]

ER(GR)EXERARAH
Zhenro (Mawei) Real Estate
Development Co., Led.
(“Mawei Real Estate”)

1.  CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

wEMERSE,/
FRz 2 1 F
DREENS

Place and date of

incorporation/ establishment

and place of operations

W/ A,
“E-THEAAZTAH
PRC/Mainland China/

28 June 2012

il Vil v
“F—"HZARH
PRC/Mainland China/
6 February 2012

/R,
“E-NEZAZF—H
PRC/Mainland China/

21 February 2014

144 Zhenro Properties Group Led. 1F 2% 3B 7 & BR A 7

CHTLER,/
Al A
Issued
ordinary/
registered

share capital

N
50,000,000 7C
RMB50,000,000

AR
50,000,000 7C
RMBS50,000,000

80,000,000 TG

RMB80,000,000

L
JREHET 23 b
Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Company

55%

63%

100%

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(Continued)

FEEH

Principal activities

UESEES

Property development

UE S

Property development

UESE I
Y&
Property development

and property leasing
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Notes to Financial Statements

e A ES
31 December 2017

Lo 2 BB BB Rt o)

A B PO JE 4w Y SRk (4

AT E WA 7 R RS T

(%)

i) A

Subsidiaries

R ()

Indirectly held: (Continued)

IR (TR BB A RA
(TR EE])

IER (M) BB RARAE
Zhenro (Fuzhou) Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Fuzhou Real Estate”)

IE5 (BfR) BE R RARAH
([ PSR ])

IES (B B EB RA R A
Zhenro (Minhou) Investment
Development Co., Ltd.

(“Minhou Investment”) **

IESILH (CFHE) BB EARA

([FRES])

puy

IESI () BSERRARA A

Zhenro Shantian (Pingtan) Real

Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(“Pingtan Real Estate”) **

MR ERTLE S KR RARAHA

(R E)

MR ERTTE SR RA R A A

Nanjing Zhenro Jiangbin
Investment Co., Ltd.

(“Nanjing Investment”)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

(Continued)

REMERSE,

FRAL % K F )

DREEE

Place and date of
incorporation/ establishment

and place of operations

R/,
“EFLET AT
PRC/Mainland China/

14 December 2007

HhE /R
“F-SEZRAH
PRC/Mainland China/
6 March 2013

/B s,
“F-=Ft-A2+CH
PRC/Mainland China/

22 November 2013

/B R,
“F-=FE+A+HH
PRC/Mainland China/

15 October 2013

CRTLER/
Al A
Issued
ordinary/
registered

share capital

INEL
50,000,000 JC
RMB50,000,000

AR
50,000,000 7T
RMB50,000,000

N
100,000,000 7
RMB100,000,000

AR #
100,000,000 7C
RMB100,000,000

attributable to

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

AR Rl
TR 23 b

Percentage of

equity interest

FEEH

the Company  Principal activities

UESEES

Property development

100%

85% WK
YEME

Property development

and property leasing

S1% MRS

Property development

ESEE

Property development

100%
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Notes to Financial Statements
—F— A=
31 December 2017

L A REMER ) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

B P B A w BB (47) Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
AR E EEME AT R REE RS Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
() (Continued)

REfbAL, CRALER,/ AR/ R

JLHH B H il i A JREHET 23 b

VAR B Issued Percentage of

Place and date of ordinary/ equity interest
Wi ARl incorporation/ establishment registered attributable to  FEFEH
Subsidiaries and place of operations share capital the Company  Principal activities

MHERA - (8)
Indirectly held: (Continued)

B R EA R PR A R A ] g/ B N 100% ¥R
(IR 7 A E ) B Sy W5 e o 100,000,000 JG Property development
R R HE B IR A E PRC/Mainland China/ RMB100,000,000
Nanjing Zhenro Property 27 September 2013

Development Co., Ltd.
(“Nanjing Property”)

MR EAEERRARAR R/ INEL 100% W3R
([P EE]) “F=FEAAT—H 110,000,000 JG Property development
HRIEREXERARAR PRC/Mainland China/ RMB110,000,000

Nanjing Zhenro Real Estate Co., Ltd. 11 September 2013
(“Nanjing Real Estate”)

EA (R BEEERARAF i/ s, N 100% RIS
([REEE] “ZF-NmENA—+—H 100,000,000 G Property development
ER(RE) BEERARAR PRC/Mainland China/ RMB100,000,000
Zhenro (Tianjin) Real Estate 21 April 2014

Development Co., Ltd.
(“Tianjin Real Estate”)

ELILECPE) RERRARAR P&/ R, AR 1% MR
(R E |) “Z-nE=A+hA 50,000,000 7G Property development
IEAEILH (CFE) B EBRARAR  PRC/Mainland China/ RMB50,000,000
Zhenro Shantian (Pingtan) 19 March 2015

Investment Co., Ltd.

(“Pingtan Investment”) **
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Notes to Financial Statements

e A ES
31 December 2017

2wl B AR MR )
A B PO JE 4w Y SRk (4

AT E WA 7 R RS T

(%)

i) P

Subsidiaries

R ()

Indirectly held: (Continued)

IERRRT (BEM ) BB RARA A
(TR B )+

IESERRR (WM ) BER AR A
Zhenro Sunan (Suzhou) Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd.

(“Suzhou Real Estate”) #*

IESAE MR (BRM) BB AR R
([BRMHE D)

IEAESEBRRT (M) SOE AR A7)
Zhenro Group Sunan (Suzhou)
Investment Co., Ltd.

(“Suzhou Investment”)

LF & IR AR ARA R
(NLAEREE D)

LA A ERFEHEREARAR
Jiangxi Zhenro Real Estate
Development Co., Led.

(“Jiangxi Real Estate”)

KEERAERERBRARAA
(MRS )

REEERAERERERARA
Tianjin Zhenro Rongtai Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd.

(“Tianjin Rongtai”)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

(Continued)

Rk,

FRAL A5 % F A

DREENE

Place and date of
incorporation/ establishment

and place of operations

B,/ B,
“EF=HFAATEA
PRC/Mainland China/

12 August 2013

HE/ B,
“F-TEAALH
PRC/Mainland China/
7 August 2014

il T
—IANELARA
PRC/Mainland China/
9 July 1999

il T
ZE-ANEZAZT A
PRC/Mainland China/

29 March 2016

CHTLER/
Al MR A
Issued
ordinary/
registered

share capital

NG
159,462,900 7C
RMB159,462,900

N
100,000,000 G
RMB100,000,000

NG
1,000,000,000 7T
RMB1,000,000,000

ARK
50,000,000 7C
RMB50,000,000

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

AT AR
JoOHE i 23 b
Percentage of
equity interest
FEEY

Principal activities

attributable to

the Company

UESES

Property development

62.71%

UE S

Property development

100%

ESE'

Property development

100%

ESE'

Property development

100%
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Notes to Financial Statements
—F— A=
31 December 2017

2wl B AR MER )
A B oD 4w B Sk (4

ARm EEWE A R ERERIIIT

(%)

M 2

Subsidiaries

WA ()

Indirectly held: (Continued)

REIERIEE BEREARAF
([ RHEEZ )

RBEEREEERERARAA
Tianjin Zhenro Zhenghong Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(“Tianjin Zhenghong")

IEARIERE (K BXBRARA
([EAIEHR )

IERIERL (KR BXERARAR
Zhenro Zhengxing (Tianjin) Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(“Zhenro Zhengxing”)

IESERR (RRM) A A R ]
(BRI 7 1)+

EAHRR (B B EARA A
Zhenro Sunan (Suzhou) Property
Co., Ltd. (“Suzhou Property”) **

IERHER R AR
([ESEHEFER ])

IEAEH AR RO A R
Zhenro Property Holdings
Company Limited
(“Zhenro Property Holdings”)

1.  CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

(Continued)

wEMERSE,/

JI 5 K H

DREENS

Place and date of
incorporation/ establishment

and place of operations

W/
e R AL=UEL
PRC/Mainland China/
3 March 2016

il Vil v
“EF-REAATRRA
PRC/Mainland China/

15 August 2016

R/
“BMEA R
PRC/Mainland China/

12 February 2014

R,/ Rk,
“E-RAEEACTCR
PRC/Mainland China/

22 July 2015

Zhenro Properties Group Led. 1E 4% 3 & A FR A 7

CHTLER,/
Al A
Issued
ordinary/
registered

share capital

N
50,000,000 7C
RMB50,000,000

AR
50,000,000 7C
RMBS50,000,000

AR #
98,254,300 G
RMB9S8,254,300

AR
3,450,000,000 TG
RMB3,450,000,000

L
JREHET 23 b
Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Company

100%

100%

51.91%

100%

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

FEEH

Principal activities

UESEES

Property development

UE Y
E S
Property development

and property leasing

VE LS

Property development

18 eide

Investment holding
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Notes to Financial Statements

e A ES
31 December 2017

2wl B AR MR )
A B PO JE 4w Y SRk (4

AT E WA 7 R RS T

(%)

i) P

Subsidiaries

M ()

Indirectly held: (Continued)

B IR T s PR A R A
(s (s )

AL s L T PR A
Nanjing Zhenro Dexin Property
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Nanjing Dexin”)

MR ERIET B SR RARA A
(T IET)

MR IERIET ERRRARA A
Nanjing Zhenro Zhengsheng Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(“Nanjing Zhengsheng”)

AR T 5 R R IE 5 7 o B 5 R
A([BEFRE]

AR T F5 P R AF. 288 3 3 2 B
HIRAH]
Fuzhou Mawei District Zhenro
Property Development Co., Ltd.
(“Mawei Property”)

BN BB RARAE
([HEMEeE])

ER (M) REBRRARAH
Zhenro (Fuzhou) Investment
Development Co., Ltd.

(“Fuzhou Investment”)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

(Continued)

Rk,

FRAL A5 % F A

DREENE

Place and date of
incorporation/ establishment

and place of operations

il Vil Y
ZF-NF-RZTZH
PRC/Mainland China/

22 January 2016

/e st
ZE-ANENAZAZH
PRC/Mainland China/

22 April 2016

/T
ZE-ANEZAZAMH
PRC/Mainland China/

24 February 2016

i/
“F—NE-ARH
PRC/Mainland China/
6 January 2016

CHTLER/
Al MR A
Issued
ordinary/
registered

share capital

NG
100,000,000 G
RMB100,000,000

N
50,000,000 7C
RMBS50,000,000

NG
60,000,000 7T
RMB60,000,000

N
50,000,000 JC
RMB50,000,000

AT AR
JREHET 3 b
Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Company

100%

100%

100%

100%

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

FEEH

Principal activities

IEL I
UE ik
Property development

and property leasing

AR B A
Not yet commence

operation

ESEL

Property development

B

Property development
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Notes to Financial Statements
—F— A=
31 December 2017

L A REMER ) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

B P B A w BB (47) Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
AR E EEME AT R REE RS Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
() (Continued)

REfbAL, CRALER,/ AR/ R

JLHH B H il i A JREHET 23 b

VAR B Issued Percentage of

Place and date of ordinary/ equity interest
Wi ARl incorporation/ establishment registered attributable to  FEFEH
Subsidiaries and place of operations share capital the Company  Principal activities

MHERA - (8)
Indirectly held: (Continued)

BFEEREA EERRARAR /B N 80% YIERE
(TEIBEIETT )+ “F-AENAZTA 50,000,000 7G Property development
B AR IETHE S8 R PR PRC/Mainland China/ RMB50,000,000

Minhou Zhenro Zhengsheng Real 20 April 2016
Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(“Minhou Zhengsheng”) **

A5 (BN o BB AR AR B/ hE,/ INEL 80% MR
(THRM R ]) “Z-n%+-A=H 50,000,000 7G Property development
TEAHE (BAM) B EE B A IR/A R PRC/Mainland China/ RMB50,000,000

Zhenro Sutong (Suzhou) Property 3 December 2015
Development Co., Ltd.

(“Suzhou Sutong”) **

Y R I B A A W/ R A, AR 100% WA REE
([REIEZ ) “Z—t®N\ATAH 50,000,000 7C Not yet commence
W LR EERR AT PRC/Mainland China/ RMBS0,000,000 operation

Jinan Zhenghong Real Estate Co., Ltd. 18 August 2017
(“Jinan Zhenghong”)

WM IEZ BB RA R AR R/ INEL 100% W3R
(TFMIEZ ]) “Z—tH\A+H 50,000,000 7G Property development
WM IER EEERAR AR PRC/Mainland China/ RMB50,000,000

Chuzhou Zhenghong Real Estate 10 August 2017
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Chuzhou Zhenghong”)
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31 December 2017

2wl B AR MR )

7 VY 28 ) IR )
A TR B R R RS

(%)

W

Subsidiaries

WA (8)

Indirectly held: (Continued)

AILIERE B B R A R
([ L)

AL BB RARA
Hefei Zhenghua Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Hefei Zhenghua”)

AR IET B S RAT R )
(TAMIES )

AR ET B RA R A
Shishi Zhengsheng Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Shishi Zhengsheng")

WM E(REERRARAA
(TERMIER )

MR B RARAH
Suzhou Zhengxin Real Estate
Development Co., Led.
(“Suzhou Zhengxin”)

BRI BB RA IR
(TBRMIERE )

BRMIERE BB RARAF
Suzhou Zhenglong Real Estate
Development Co., Led.
(“Suzhou Zhenglong”)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

wEMERSE,/
JRAL A % A
DREENES

Place and date of

incorporation/ establishment

and place of operations

B/ B R,
“Z—LHEAANR
PRC/Mainland China/
8 August 2017

Vg
“Z—tHEAAZH
PRC/Mainland China/
2 August 2017

g,/ R,
“F—tiFtA-H
PRC/Mainland China/
1 July 2017

g,/ B R,
“F—-tELA-H
PRC/Mainland China/
1 July 2017

CRTLER/
Al A
Issued
ordinary/
registered

share capital

N
100,000,000 JG
RMB100,000,000

AR
50,000,000 G
RMBS50,000,000

ANE#
17,000,000 7C
RMB17,000,000

AR #
100,000,000 7
RMB100,000,000

AR/ A
REHET 23 b
Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Company

100%

100%

100%

100%

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(Continued)

FEEY

Principal activities

R I
Not yet commence

operation

UE i

Property development

R B
Not yet commence

operation

LEN G ot
Not yet commence

operation
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S A ES S
31 December 2017

2wl B AR MER )

1 B W 28 W IR R 4)
A TR B A R R RS

(%)

M 2

Subsidiaries

A ()

Indirectly held: (Continued)

BMES BB RARAF
(TERMIES )

BRI BB AR
Suzhou Zhengfeng Real Estate.
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Suzhou Zhengfeng”)

B (8 B RA R
([FEIER 1)+

IE () BSE R RA R ]
Zhengmao (Pingtan) Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.

(“Pingtan Zhengmao”) **

HEEREERRARA A
([F&EE])

HEEREERRARA A
Xi'an Zhenro Real Estate
Development Co., Led.
(“Xi'an Real Estate”)

RMEH BB RARAF
(TR MIEH )

IRMIESA BB RARAF
Xuzhou Zhengming Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Xuzhou Zhengming”)

1.  CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

wEMERSE,/
FRz 2 1 F
DREENS

Place and date of

incorporation/ establishment

and place of operations

W/ A,
“F-LELATNA
PRC/Mainland China/
14 July 2017

W/ R E A,
“F—tFLA AR
PRC/Mainland China/
18 July 2017

il Vil v
“F-tEAATNH
PRC/Mainland China/
14 September 2017

R /R,
“E-LEAACTER
PRC/Mainland China/

27 September 2017

Zhenro Properties Group Led. 1E 4% 3 & A FR A 7

CHTLER,/
Al A
Issued
ordinary/
registered

share capital

N
100,000,000 G
RMB100,000,000

AR
50,000,000 7C
RMBS50,000,000

AR #
5,000,000 7C
RMBS,000,000

AR #
20,000,000 7T
RMB20,000,000

L
JREHET 23 b
Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Company

100%

75%

100%

100%

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(Continued)

FEEH

Principal activities

UESEES

Property development

AR B A
Not yet commence

operation

ENL Lt

Not yet
commence

operation

EN G g
Not yet commence

operation
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e A ES
31 December 2017

Lo 2 BB BB Rt o)
A B PO JE 4w Y SRk (4

AT E WA 7 R RS T

(%)

W

Subsidiaries

HRA - ()
Indirectly held: (Continued)
EHEREEHRAR
([ ]
HHEREEHRAR

Jinan Rongding Real Estate Co., Ltd.

(“Jinan Rongding”)

BMENELARAR
(TMER)
BMERBLHRAR

Suzhou Zhengli Real Estate Co., Ltd.

(“Suzhou Zhengli")
WA E LA AT
([ FrE4E )
g A £ R AT

Jinan Rongxi Real Estate Co., Ltd.

(“Jinan Rongxi”)

ISRIE SR B A RA
(TR E )
IR IEAEE A R A A

Shandong Zhenro Real Estate
Co., Ltd. (“Shandong Real Estate”)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

(Continued)

wEMERSE,/
LI E % A
DREENES

Place and date of

incorporation/ establishment

and place of operations

R/,
“EFtETAT—A
PRC/Mainland China/

11 October 2017

/B A,
“FtFEHAZTAH
PRC/Mainland China/

26 October 2017

R/ B
“F—tETA=TH
PRC/Mainland China/
30 October 2017

/R,
“F—tETA=TH
PRC/Mainland China/

31 October 2017

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

CRTLER/
Al A
Issued
ordinary/
registered

share capital

N
10,000,000 JG
RMB10,000,000

AR
100,000,000 JG
RMB100,000,000

AR
10,000,000 JG
RMB10,000,000

AR #
50,000,000 7T
RMB50,000,000

AR/ A
REHET 23 b
Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Company

100%

100%

100%

100%

FEEY

Principal activities

ORI
Not yet commence

operation

WRR I
Not yet commence

operation

WA EE
Not yet commence

operation

R
Not yet commence
operation

4 #t Annual Report 2017
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1 A REHEER L.
A B oD 4w B Sk (4
A/ B W4 1 RS0 -

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(#) (Continued)
Ak, CRfEER/ L
JI 5 K H Al A JBOHE i 43 b
VAR B Issued Percentage of
Place and date of ordinary/ equity interest
Wi ARl incorporation/ establishment registered attributable to  FEFEH
Subsidiaries and place of operations share capital the Company  Principal activities
WA ()
Indirectly held: (Continued)
g IEBb B S PR E/HE R, ARH 100%  FAFIREE
([ FraERL ) —Z—t#+—H—H 10,000,000 7C Not yet commence
W R B A RAH PRC/Mainland China/ RMB10,000,000 operation
Jinan Zhengchi Real Estate Co., Led. 1 November 2017
(“Jinan Zhengchi”)
IE% (M) BB RARAA B/ B, N 100%  FARIREE
(THEMER ) —F—t#+—H=H 50,000,000 TG Not yet commence
EF (M) BEEERARAF PRC/Mainland China/ RMB50,000,000 operation
Zhengtai (Fuzhou) Real Estate 3 November 2017
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Fuzhou Zhengtai”)
IETE (M) BB RARAH E/HE R, ARH 100%  MARHEE
(THEMEF ) “Z—t#+—HTHH 50,000,000 JC Not yet commence
EFHGRaM) BEERAR AR PRC/Mainland China/ RMB50,000,000 operation
Zhengsheng (Fuzhou) Real Estate 15 November 2017
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Fuzhou Zhengsheng”)
IES () BE R RA R A il Vil v N 100%  MABIGEE
((HHEY)) “Z—tH+-HtH 80,000,000 7T Not yet commence
IES (M) BB RARAR PRC/Mainland China/ RMBS0,000,000 operation
Zhengfeng (Putian) Real Estate 7 December 2017

Development Co., Ltd.
(“Putian Zhengfeng”)
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31 December 2017

Lo 2 BB BB Rt o)
A7 B 24 7 B9 YR} )
AT LT B 70 RN WS40
(#)

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(Continued)

W

Subsidiaries

WA (8)

Indirectly held: (Continued)

W IERE AR
([ VFIERL)

W EREEARAF
Jinan Zhengqi Real Estate Co., Ltd.
(“Jinan Zhengqi”)

R (KB BB RARA A
([RHAEE )

SRR BEXBRARAF
Rongji (Tianjin) Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.

con

(“Tianjin Rongji")

TR R ERRRARA A
(TR IE SRS 1)+

M E R R E R RARA A
Chuzhou Zhengjing Huarong
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(“Chuzhou Zhengjing Huarong”) **

B (M) BB RARA
([HaM &% D)

RF (M) EXBRARLH
Rongtai (Fuzhou) Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Fuzhou Rongtai”)

wEMERSE,/ CRTLER/ L
LI E % A Al A TR 73 b
DA 0 B Issued Percentage of
Place and date of ordinary/ equity interest
incorporation/ establishment registered attributable to  FEFEH

and place of operations

share capital

the Company  Principal activities

R/, AR 100% AR REE
—“E—tE+-ALHR 10,000,000 JG Not yet commence
PRC/Mainland China/ RMB10,000,000 operation

7 December 2017

GV AR 100% WA B LREE
—E—+LE+-A MR 50,000,000 7C Not yet commence
PRC/Mainland China/ RMB50,000,000 operation

8 December 2017

R/ NG S1%  MARREE
“Z—t#+-HANH 50,000,000 7C Not yet commence
PRC/Mainland China/ RMB50,000,000 operation

8 December 2017

Wi/ A, N 100% WAMIHEE
“Z—tH+-HANH 10,000,000 7C Not yet commence
PRC/Mainland China/ RMB10,000,000 operation

8 December 2017
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L A REMER ) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

B P B A w BB (47) Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
AR E EEME AT R REE RS Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
() (Continued)

REfbAL, CRALER,/ AR/ R

JLHH B H il i A JREHET 23 b

VAR B Issued Percentage of

Place and date of ordinary/ equity interest
Wi ARl incorporation/ establishment registered attributable to  FEFEH
Subsidiaries and place of operations share capital the Company  Principal activities

MHERA - (8)
Indirectly held: (Continued)

BMTTEREERRARAA E/HE R, N 100%  FAFIREE
([HEMERE]) “Z—t#+-H+=H 10,000,000 7C Not yet commence

BT ER & X ERARAR PRC/Mainland China/ RMB10,000,000 operation
Ganzhou Zhengbi Real Estate 12 December 2017

Development Co., Ltd.
(“Ganzhou Zhengbi”)

FZIEGEEAR AT W/ R E A, AR 90% HMARBEE
(TPUZIE T ) “Z—t#+-H+NH 10,000,000 TG Not yet commence
BZEGEELERRAH PRC/Mainland China/ RMB10,000,000 operation

Xi'an Zhenghai Real Estate Co., Ltd. 14 December 2017
(“Xi'an Zhenghai”) **

R EEHRNF /B AR 100% YR
([FEEE]) “F—tE+AZ+NA 50,000,000 7G Property development
EATE S 5 o] YN PRC/Mainland China/ RMB50,000,000

Jiaxing Rongyu Real Estate Co., Ltd. 24 October 2017
(“Jiaxing Rongyu”)

R BRI g,/ R i, AR # 100% £
([ 5 BLAEH ) “F—tE+—A+H 50,000,000 7G Property development
FHEE LA AR PRC/Mainland China/ RMB50,000,000

Jiaxing Rongkun Real Estate Co., Ltd. 10 November 2017
(“Jiaxing Rongkun”)
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1. A RAEBEEF ) 1.
A7 B 4 7 2R (40)
PNSER A VL TR
()

o RMEEAT R B A S
ST

S & /A B/ VB Ry < gty A )
2 > AR uJE&%ZZ\EJ%ﬁ#%%M%Wﬁ
ANRENZ W o

B v B I 2 B 24 ] A9 2S04 R T el A

AL e K5 ) 2 A A R R SO R

15> THIR H3f 4 IE RS
Wk @ @ AUREIEZE () &/l & oD BB A
PR

WREb) = R A SR AR AR A A K 40 B9 ML A R
AMBBEA 519 B9 BEEHE - BB ALK 4R
AHES By AR S B WS g A )

o E A= REE
5 T B B e 4 B R A R R T (R
FERLVE A FE R AR (e 29) -

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(Continued)

© Fuzhou Huiheng is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under PRC law.

o These companies are subsidiaries of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company
and, accordingly, are accounted for as subsidiaries by virtue of the Company’s

control over them.

The English names of all group companies registered in the PRC represent the best efforts
made by management of the Company to translate the Chinese names of these companies as

they do not have official English names.

Note (a):  Formerly known as EZE () 4 Bl B & o0 B EE A TR ] (“Zhenro

(Putian) Financial Wealth Center Development Co., Ltd”)

Note (b):  Hefei Yongtuo is accounted for as a subsidiary of the Group because the Group
owns 51% of the voting rights according to the articles of association of Hefei

Yongtuo.

The Group legally transferred the equity interests in the following
subsidiaries as collateral (note 29) to trust financing companies as at 31
December 2017.

hF LA
+ZH=Z+—H
1B PRHE £
[ER

Percentage of

equity pledged

as at

31 December

2017

G IEER Hefei Zhengyu 20%

4 % Annual Repore 2017 157
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1. A6 RBEEEFR ) 1.
A7 B 4 7 19 YR} )
AT EEMHE AT FEF RS R
(#)

MRUR Ak Pk > A SR A RO A 8
AR AL RS F % 8] € 4 A 5 T
AE A FETIEE o

BEAh > ASLE R EAE B WG RE P
B RCE B ERIEE A A BHE S o T
EREL S B3 308 -0y P cl ki
AR 5 5 O 7 3 20 MR A 3 4K 4
Wy R A SE TR B BB RE 1 % S IE A
R B KA BOR L A 25 E
A AL G B UM 4R > A E E
%% R IR B SR DL B A S &
AP AR S I B B K o TR AL s
FA1 B2 75 i P AR

AATERRE > LRIIED AL
62 0 A A 09
P B8 AR R 5 A S
ATRE - EWEHHERTBIITE -

Zhenro Properties Group Led. 1E 4% 3 & A FR A 7

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(Continued)

Under the afore-stated arrangements, the Group was obliged to purchase
at a fixed amount on a future date upon repayment of the borrowings

from the trust financing companies.

In addition, the Group retains the power to operate and manage the
above project companies in the ordinary course of business. In this
regard, considering the facts that the substance of the arrangements is to
collateralise some equity interests in these companies for the borrowings
for project development and the Group retains the practical ability to
govern the financial and operating policies of these project companies
so as to obtain benefits from the operating activities of these project
companies, the directors of the Company are of the view that the financial
position and operating results of these companies should be consolidated
into the Group's financial statements in full, irrespective of the equity

transfers from legal perspective.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result

in particulars of excessive length.
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 e

4% B R YRR R AT A B P
4 ) 2 o O R A S )
(/6975 1 4 A 4 R A B A AR
e S e B R o0 (0 PR ot e
M) EESRBEZEGRR) RFBAF
41 1) B TR A B o %G MBS IR R T
MRARIE SR A A A - M E R AP (E R
BB - MM TR RRAR
ERROL o ZEMBREUNRE (AR
W RI > BRAAHS - A EEA
BEREE T -

Gl -3

LA AR T R A AE A N R B LR
KRR AIAER ) BE-F—LF
TZA=Et IR MR R o W
J& > ) J o AR ) TR A O
BEEAMEER)  EAEEN2 0
BB B R SE 5 I A5 0 3 B (B R I8 JEL By
B A DA S RE 2 1 B R
I (B AEMER T BRA RN UL ERE
3 S B 15 B 1 A RE A ) 5 5 [
IR o RIVHAS-H2 I B

(/AR ATES TR ' <EE Y

KR Z BB BOH MR B R > RIALE

P A At LR 7 A S B R

IRF 825 8 — VIR B AL > A

@ EEEHZHMBERE AN L
E/37

(b)  HAbB A LERTE AR K

(©  AEBEBEELEESEAE -

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
IFRSs, (which include all standards and interpretations approved by
the IASB, and International Accounting Standards (“IASs”), Standing
Interpretations Committee interpretations) approved by the IASB that
remain in effect, and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for investment properties, derivative financial
instruments and equity investments which have been measured at fair
value. These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”)
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise

indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2017. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the

investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee,

including:

(a)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the

investee;
(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

4 #t Annual Report 2017



160

5 25 Rk 2 Bt
Notes to Financial Statements

“EB— A=
31 December 2017

2.1 MRIEHE )

AR (a1)

WS 2 ) B85 R R T AR 2 ] £ AR )
6 R B B R EOR
WS 2 ) A9 SE AR T AR O T o
Z BB MG PRt WA S AR
HEARER ML Z A RIE -

B 25 0 2 PO i 1 B R T BR A 4R
it B A 2 T W % 4% 047 B A A
SE BB R A N BOIE R AR - BT A
A B A S & B O 7 ] 2 5 5 ) 4R B
T A R AR A B
X RBLE R AR AR 2R o

i 5 3 B 7 LB B SOt = A
WHRPA R B s QAL
P BT AT AG R R USRI BB B R o Y
JA& 2 W) B AR i 5 B (S e i 2 2 1
1) BRI A S 2 NI

ik A B 1 K % B /A ) 2 R HE B
11 HE R (i) w% B B W) 2 B E (AR T
B R BAR 5 Gi) A JF 2 JBOhE £ 2 IR i
{E K Gii) s A RS 2 BT 5250 5 A0 Al
R () B AE 2 A FME 5 Gi) AR AT (R R
BOE 2 AR 5 B G B AR I R R 25 e
RZALM AT EL - e R b e
TE W 4 T R 2 74 4 B M A1 40 3 4 ) 2
B R B G R E RN (AR ) o
e B A 4 [ B B A O E A
i i 2 SR o
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2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date

that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between

members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control described above. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity

transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value
of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's
share of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate,
on the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed

of the related assets or liabilities.
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2.2

2.3

il BOR BB 5 52

7% S T T A A B R o E R DA
AR AGE AT I % o 5 i M B o

IR e 5 7 SRR BT
Amendments to IAS 7
IR R A 12 SRR B AT
Amendments to IAS 12
I % 5 o 4 2 12 3%
I TE N S
HYAE S BHE (3 — P4 ZF—N4EH )
Amendments to IFRS 12 included in Annual
Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

R AR Lt A8 40 T o S S o R O S
KB E -

LA A 28 D B
e e

A% S I iy AR A 5% 5 A R 9 E T 91
AL A1 1L 5 A% 2 2508 T 5T % A A 5T I S
SV 5 S 5 ME ) o A B IR A % 5 T AT I
A AT R 5 o 5 0 o5 ¥ ) A A0 IR R A %
SEER (@M ) o

I B 5 o 4 )5S 2 SR A BT
Amendments to IFRS 2

I B 5 o 4 5 4 SR A BT

Amendments to IFRS 4
I % 5 o e 4 9 3
IFRS 9
I A% 5 o 5 9 SRR 1B AT
Amendments to IFRS 9
] B 5 o 7 M U SFS 10 5% %
I et ¥ UG 28 BRI B RT
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28

] P 5 o e 2 15 %
IFRS 15

IR % s o 6 15 SRR BT
Amendments to IFRS 15

2.2

2.3

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the first time for

the current year’s financial statements.

Bz at#]
Disclosure Initiative
8 2 T fer 1R 9 AL B TR B
Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses
VEHEAG B R 555 - B TR A A
12 BERT R T

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: Clarification of the Scope
of IFRS 12

The adoption of the above revised standards has had no significant

financial effect on the financial statements.

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.
The Group intends to adopt them, if applicable, when they become

effective.

LARR 17 75 ZEBERI 1) S g ) M R et 2!
Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions'
R B R T 7R 75 PR 55 4 I (R B 2 AT — F
TS BB BT BB A TR 9 i TR
Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts'
FHl LA
Financial Instruments’
BB 1R AT A A1
Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation’

REHHAPE L G B F ) EE H ERIL R

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture

KGR

Revenue from Contracts with Customers’

PE IR B R E BR A TE R 15 85 7 4 A i

Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers’
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2.3 LU R AR A 20y B B SO
ek e )

IR 5 A 5 5 T U 56 16 9

IFRS 16
TR B¢ U )5 17 5%
IFRS 17

I R R 19 SRR BT
Amendments to IAS 19
IR T U 28 SRR BT
Amendments to IAS 28
IR e U 40 BEAY 1B AT

Amendments to IAS 40

B MR E R T R B e RS 22 98
IFRIC 22

B R AT TR AR B e R 23 9
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INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (Continued)
HE?

Leases’

R A9

Insurance Contracts’

il B EE - B AT

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement’

WRBE L AR G E L FER R 4

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures’

HRREYF

Transfers of Investment Property’

SFES S RN

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration’

18 B S P A TEE 12

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’

HLUFERIAIERT -

Amendments to the following standards:

— BB AR 1 IE BRI A B A

- [FRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards'

—BIfF g at ERE 28 9 REWBE L ARG ELF!

- [AS 28 Investments in Associates and_Joint Ventures'

HLUF R AT
Amendments to the following standards:

— BB R IER B 3 98 Ko F
- [FRS 3 Business Combinations’

— BB R G ER B 11 5 B E T
- [FRS 11 jJoint Arrangements’

— B EFERIE 1298 Pride’

- [AS 12 Income Taxes’

— B gt R 23 9
- [AS 23 Borrowing Costs’

1B HL A

! Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2018

? Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019

Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2021

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
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INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be applicable

to the Group is described below.

The IASB issued amendments to IFRS 2 in June 2016 that address three
main areas: the effects of vesting conditions on the measurement of a
cash-settled share-based payment transaction; the classification of a share-
based payment transaction with net settlement features for withholding
a certain amount in order to meet an employee’s tax obligation associated
with the share-based payment; and accounting where a modification to
the terms and conditions of a share-based payment transaction changes its
classification from cash-settled to equity-settled. The amendments clarify
that the approach used to account for vesting conditions when measuring
equity-settled share-based payments also applies to cash-settled share-

based payments.

The amendments introduce an exception so that a share-based payment
transaction with net share settlement features for withholding a certain
amount in order to meet the employee’s tax obligation is classified
in its entirety as an equity-settled share-based payment transaction
when certain conditions are met. Furthermore, the amendments clarify
that if the terms and conditions of a cash-settled share-based payment
transaction are modified, with the result that it becomes an equity-settled
share-based payment transaction, the transaction is accounted for as an
equity-settled transaction from the date of the modification. On adoption,
entities are required to apply the amendments without restating prior
periods, but retrospective application is permitted if they elect to adopt
for all three amendments and other criteria are met. The Group will adopt
the amendments from 1 January 2018. The amendments are not expected

to have any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)
In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9, bringing

together all phases of the financial instruments project to replace IAS
39 and all previous versions of IFRS 9.The standard introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement, impairment and hedge
accounting.The Group will adopt IFRS 9 from 1 January 2018. The
Group will not restate comparative information and will recognise any
transition adjustments against the opening balance of equity at 1 January
2018. During 2017, the Group has performed a detailed assessment of
the impact of the adoption of IFRS 9.The expected impacts relate to the
classification and measurement and the impairment requirements and are

summarised as follows:

(a) Classification and measurement

The Group does not expect that the adoption of IFRS 9 will have
a significant impact on the classification and measurement of its
financial assets. It expects to continue measuring at fair value all
financial assets currently held at fair value. Equity investments
held as available for sale will be measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income as the investments are intended to
be held for the foreseeable future and the Group expects to apply
the option to present fair value changes in other comprehensive
income. Gains and losses recorded in other comprehensive income
for the equity investments cannot be recycled to profit or loss when

the investments are derecognised.
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INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(b)

Impairment

IFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt instruments recorded
at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income, lease receivables, loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts that are not accounted for at fair value through
profit or loss under IFRS 9, to be recorded based on an expected
credit loss model either on a twelve-month basis or a lifetime
basis. The Group will apply the simplified approach and record
lifetime expected losses that are estimated based on the present
values of all cash shortfalls over the remaining life of all of its
trade and other receivables. Furthermore, the Group will apply
the general approach and record twelve-month expected credit
losses that are estimated based on the possible default events on its
other receivables within the next twelve months. The Group will
perform a more detailed analysis which considers all reasonable
and supportable information, including forward-looking elements,
for estimation of expected credit losses on its trade and other
receivables upon the adoption of IFRS 9. The Group does not
expect that the adoption of IFRS 9 will have a significant impact
on the Group’s financial performance and financial position,

including the measurement of financial assets and disclosures.
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INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency between
the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing with the sale
or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss when
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction involving
assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent
of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory
effective date of amendments to IFRS 10 and TAS 28 was removed by
the IASB in December 2015 and a new mandatory effective date will be
determined after the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available for

adoption now.

IFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account for revenue arising
from contracts with customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to
be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.
The principles in IFRS 15 provide a more structured approach for
measuring and recognising revenue. The standard also introduces
extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements, including
disaggregation of total revenue, information about performance
obligations, changes in contract asset and liability account balances
between periods and key judgements and estimates. The standard will
supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under IFRSs.
Either a full retrospective application or a modified retrospective adoption
is required on the initial application of the standard. In April 2016, the
IASB issued amendments to IFRS 15 to address the implementation
issues on identifying performance obligations, application guidance on

principal versus agent and licences of intellectual property, and transition.



F 785 it o B ik

Notes to Financial Statements
—EF—tFE+H=1+—H
31 December 2017

2.3 LU R A 280 B B B

23 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

ek e )

% H BT IS B A5 B B A R 4R A
P 755 38 U585 15 S5k Ry S — B0 JE
T e A0 T 68 ) ) FRAS I 98 A o AR B
VBt ) BB P B o B 1S 9%
R A O A o I U Y 2 5L
B M —F— \E—H— B HmR
BRI TR o 75 5h > A G2 Rl ) {2 2
“ER - NE—H—HETR T A &8
JRRZHHERIBLE - A% 4 I FEUHT D I 4
JHI I % B 5 ot 5 s BE T R — &
—/\AE— A — H A H 038 % 0 8 B R
HOR o SR > T SCHE— A0 R AL & R
AT - B AL % — 5
DRR B MRELEREE - R°F
—L AR ACEE B R I A
HIERIE 15 URH0 Y BEEATRAL

AEBEERFFHMENE  WEME
T S 26 RS S © BR T I I TS
o4 T SIS 15 3 A A T T A B
wr

J M 7 bR % Yt B

@)  WOATRERR Y I [
BIRF > P38 8 A A AP 2E B
AR A S o T R T
7 (s 452 [0 37 40 £ B2 — Jie B i
HEAT 0 SR o 2 1
PEHIRE) - BUAHBAYSER A5 B o8
J o Sl LR B 5 Tt e 1) B 2 A
YIZE > HRE A SRS OB BRE I

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

The amendments are also intended to help ensure a more consistent
application when entities adopt IFRS 15 and decrease the cost and
complexity of applying the standard. The Group plans to adopt the
transitional provisions in IFRS 15 to recognise the cumulative effect
of initial adoption as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
earnings at 1 January 2018. In addition, the Group plans to apply the
new requirements only to contracts that are not completed before 1
January 2018. The Group expects that the transitional adjustment to be
made on 1 January 2018 upon initial adoption of IFRS 15 will not be
material. However, the expected changes in accounting policies, as further
explained below, will have a material impact on the Group’s financial
statements from 2018 onwards. During 2017, the Group has performed

an assessment on the impact of the adoption of IFRS 15.

The Group is principally engaged in the business of property
development, property leasing and commercial property management.
The expected impacts arising from the adoption of IFRS 15 on the Group

are summarised as follows:

Accounting for property development
(a) Timing of revenue recognition

Currently, sales of properties is recognised when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the properties are transferred
to the purchasers, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the properties, that is when
the construction of the relevant properties has been completed
and the properties have been delivered to the buyers pursuant to
the sale agreements, and the collectability of related receivables is

reasonably assured.
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INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Accounting for property development (Continued)

(a)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

Upon the adoption of IFRS 15, revenue from the sale of properties
will be recognised when control over the properties is transferred
to the purchasers. Judgement will be required to assess whether
control transfers over time or at a point of time. Properties that
have no alternative use to the Group due to contractual restriction
and when the Group has an enforceable right to payment from
the customers for performance completed to date, the Group will
recognise revenue as the performance obligations are satisfied over

time by applying an input method for measuring progress.

The Group has assessed that the sale agreements used by the
Group are standardised in a large extent and in the case of pre-
completion sales using standard agreements for sale and purchase,
the Group does not have an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date in accordance with IFRS 15, and
accordingly, the criteria for recognising revenue over time are not
met for the majority of the sales of properties. The Group expects
to recognise majority of the sale of properties until the point in
time at which the Group delivers the properties to the purchasers.
The Group does not anticipate that the application of IFRS 15 will
have a material impact on the timing of revenue recognised in the

respective periods.
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INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Accounting for property development (Continued)

(b)

(©)

Sales commission

The Group pays commission to the sales agents when agreement
for sale and purchase is signed with property buyer. Following the
adoption of IFRS 15, incremental costs of obtaining a contract,
including sales commission, if recoverable, are capitalised as an
asset and shall be amortised on a systematic basis that is consistent
with the transfer of the related property to the customer. Currently,
the Group expensed off the sales commission associated with
obtaining agreement for sale and purchase with property buyer.
Accordingly, the Group expects the recognition of an asset would
result in an increase of opening retained profits as at 1 January
2018.

Financing component for sale of completed properties

IFRS 15 requires property developers to account for the financing
component in a contract separately from revenue if the financing
effects are significant, subject to a practical expedient where
the period between the payment and delivery of properties will
be less than one year. Currently, it is expected that the length
of time between the payment and delivery of properties of the
Group's projects will exceed one year. Accordingly, the financing
component is considered to be significant. The amount of the
financing component is estimated at the contract inception and
the payment plan is confirmed by the property purchaser by using
a discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Group and the customer reflecting the
credit characteristics of the Group as well as any collateral or
security provided. Interest expense is recognised only to the extent
that a contract liability (receipts in advance) is recognised in
accounting for the contract with the customer. The Group expects
an adjustment to reduce the current year opening retained profits

with a corresponding increase in receipts in advance.
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INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)
IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an

Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases - Incentives and
SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal
Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to
recognise assets and liabilities for most leases. The standard includes two
recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets and short-
term leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise
a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset
representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease
term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses
unless the right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment property
in TAS 40, or relates to a class of property, plant and equipment to which
the revaluation model is applied.The lease liability is subsequently
increased to reflect the interest on the lease liability and reduced for
the lease payments. Lessees will be required to separately recognise the
interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on
the right-of-use asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure the lease
liability upon the occurrence of certain events, such as change in the lease
term and change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate used to determine those payments. Lessees will generally
recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an
adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under IFRS 16
is substantially unchanged from the accounting under IAS 17. Lessors
will continue to classify all leases using the same classification principle
as in TAS 17 and distinguish between operating leases and finance
leases. IFRS 16 requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive
disclosures than under IAS 17. Lessees can choose to apply the standard

using either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach.
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INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)
The Group expects to adopt IFRS 16 from 1 January 2019. The Group

is currently assessing the impact of IFRS 16 upon adoption and is
considering whether it will choose to take advantage of the practical
expedients available and which transition approach and reliefs will
be adopted. As disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements, at
31 December 2017, the Group had future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in aggregate of approximately
RMB84,679,000. Upon adoption of IFRS 16, certain amounts included
therein may need to be recognised as new right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities. Further analysis, however, will be needed to determine the
amount of new rights of use assets and lease liabilities to be recognised,
including, but not limited to, any amounts relating to leases of low-value
assets and short term leases, other practical expedients and reliefs chosen,

and new leases entered into before the date of adoption.

Amendments to IAS 40 issued in December 2016 clarify when an
entity should transfer property, including property under construction
or development, into or out of investment property. The amendments
state that a change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to
meet, the definition of investment property and there is evidence of the
change in use. A mere change in management’s intentions for the use of a
property does not provide evidence of a change in use. The amendments
should be applied prospectively to the changes in use that occur on or
after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity
first applies the amendments. An entity should reassess the classification
of property held at the date that it first applies the amendments and, if
applicable, reclassify property to reflect the conditions that exist at that
date. Retrospective application is only permitted if it is possible without
the use of hindsight. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
prospectively from 1 January 2018. The amendments are not expected to

have any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

IFRIC 22, issued in December 2016, provides guidance on how to
determine the date of the transaction when applying IAS 21 to the
situation where an entity receives or pays advance consideration in a
foreign currency and recognises a non-monetary asset or liability. The
interpretation clarifies that the date of the transaction for the purpose
of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income (or part of it) is the date on which an
entity initially recognises the non-monetary asset (such as a prepayment)
or non-monetary liability (such as deferred income) arising from the
payment or receipt of the advance consideration. If there are multiple
payments or receipts in advance of recognising the related item, the
entity must determine the transaction date for each payment or receipt of
the advance consideration. Entities may apply the interpretation on a full
retrospective basis or on a prospective basis, either from the beginning of
the reporting period in which the entity first applies the interpretation
or the beginning of the prior reporting period presented as comparative
information in the financial statements of the reporting period in which
the entity first applies the interpretation. The Group expects to adopt
the interpretation prospectively from 1 January 2018. The interpretation
is not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's financial

statements.
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INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

IFRIC 23, issued in June 2017, addresses the accounting for income
taxes (current and deferred) when tax treatments involve uncertainty
that affects the application of IAS 12 (often referred to as “uncertain tax
positions”). The interpretation does not apply to taxes or levies outside
the scope of IAS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating
to interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments. The
interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an entity considers
uncertain tax treatments separately; (ii) the assumptions an entity makes
about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities; (iii) how
an entity determines taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused tax
losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how an entity considers
changes in facts and circumstances. The interpretation is to be applied
retrospectively, either fully retrospectively without the use of hindsight or
retrospectively with the cumulative effect of application as an adjustment
to the opening equity at the date of initial application, without the
restatement of comparative information. The Group expects to adopt the
interpretation from 1 January 2019. The interpretation is not expected to

have any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it
is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of

the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant

activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group's investments in associates are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at the Group’s share of net assets under
the equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses. The
Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive
income of associates and joint ventures are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint venture,
the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates or joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group's investments in
the associates or joint ventures, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from
the acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as part of the

Group's investments in associates or joint ventures.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under the equity method. In all
other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any
retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence
or joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds

from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair
value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair value
or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the

separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any

resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration
classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is

accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's previously held
equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is
lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after

reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating
units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets

or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for

goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group
of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and

the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, derivative financial
instruments and equity investments at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the
asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value
of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that

market participants act in their economic best interest.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market

participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising

the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to

the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is observable,

either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on
a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, construction
contract assets, financial assets, investment properties and non-current
assets/a disposal group classified as held for sale), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs
of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is

determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories

consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether
there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in which
it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the

relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and

that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii)  is a member of the key management personnel of the Group

or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other

entity);

(iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
party;
(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other

entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the

Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person

identified in (a);
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POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

(vii) a person identified in (a) (i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of

the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group or

to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to

its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for
a major inspection is capitalised in the cartying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts
as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them

accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of
each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal estimated useful lives and the annual

depreciation rates ate as follows:

Annual

fliat oy A Estimated depreciation

ik % useful lives rates

K 54 19% Motor vehicles 5 years 19%
LN )4 Office equipment and

T 3ESE 19% % 33% electronic devices 3-5years 19% to33%

HEYEEE 54 20% Leasehold improvements 5 years 20%
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POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (Continued)

Wherte parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if

appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the

carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under construction, which
is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing
costs on related borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of

property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for use.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including the
leasehold interest under an operating lease for a property which would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes;
or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects

market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment

properties are included in profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in profit or loss in the year of the retirement or

disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied properties
or inventories, the deemed cost of a property for subsequent accounting
is its fair value at the date of change in use. If a property occupied by the
Group as an owner-occupied property becomes an investment property,
the Group accounts for such property in accordance with the policy
stated under “Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” up to
the date of change in use, and any difference at that date between the
cartying amount and the fair value of the property is accounted for as a
revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant
and equipment and depreciation” above. For a transfer from inventories
to investment properties, any difference between the fair value of the
property at that date and its previous carrying amount is recognised in

profit or loss.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Properties under development

Properties under development are intended to be held for sale after

completion.

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost comprising
land costs, construction costs, borrowing costs, professional fees and
other costs directly attributable to such properties incurred during the

development period and net realisable value.

Properties under development are classified as current assets unless those
will not be realised in the normal operating cycle. On completion, the

properties are transferred to completed properties held for sale.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated in the statement of financial
position at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined
by an apportionment of the total costs of land and buildings attributable
to the unsold properties. Net realisable value takes into account the price
ultimately expected to be realised, less estimated costs to be incurred in

selling the properties.

Allocation of property development cost

Land costs ate allocated to each unit according to their respective saleable
gross floor area (“GFA”) to the total saleable GFA. Construction costs
relating to units were identified and allocated specifically. Common
construction costs have been allocated according to the saleable GFA

similar to land costs.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition
at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination
is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are

reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are accounted for as finance
leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease payments and
recorded together with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to
reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under finance leases, are
included in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The
finance costs of such leases are charged to profit or loss so as to provide a

constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing nature are
accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated over their estimated

useful lives.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Leases whete substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets
remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases. Where the
Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating
leases net of any incentives received from the lessor are charged to profit

or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated at
cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over the lease

terms.

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land
and buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included in the
cost of the land and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and

equipment.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-
for-sale financial investments, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except

in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally

established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their

classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets
held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held
for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments as defined by IAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with positive net changes in
fair value presented as other income and gains and negative net changes in
fair value presented as finance costs in profit or loss. These net fair value
changes do not include any dividends or interest earned on these financial
assets, which are recognised in accordance with the policies set out for

“Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition and

only if the criteria in IAS 39 are satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as separate
derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic characteristics and
risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host
contracts are not held for trading or designated as at fair value through
profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Reassessment
only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or
a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or

loss category.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After
initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in other income and gains in profit or loss. The
loss arising from impairment is recognised in profit or loss in finance

costs for loans and in other expenses for receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial assets
in listed and unlisted equity investments and debt securities. Equity
investments classified as available for sale are those which are neither
classified as held for trading nor designated as at fair value through profit
or loss. Debt securities in this category are those which are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in response to

needs for liquidity or in response to changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
in other income, or until the investment is determined to be impaired,
when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve to the statement of comprehensive income
in other gains or losses. Interest and dividends earned whilst holding the
available-for-sale financial investments are reported as interest income and
dividend income, respectively and are recognised in profit or loss as other
income in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”

below.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities of the
various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and
used in estimating fair value, such investments are stated at cost less any

impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its
available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still appropriate.
When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to trade these financial
assets due to inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify these
financial assets if management has the ability and intention to hold the

assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale category, the
fair value carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes its new
amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life
of the investment using the effective interest rate. Any difference between
the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is also amortised over
the remaining life of the asset using the effective interest rate. If the asset
is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in

equity is reclassified to profit or loss.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of
a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed

from the Group's consolidated statement of financial position) when:

. REEWRBE AR EHRERNC F o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
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asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in
full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of

the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if
and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of
the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the

Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group

could be required to repay.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications
that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or

economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
whether impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset,
whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and
for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not

included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash flows is
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the

effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
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POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognised in profit or loss. Interest
income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount using the
rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any
associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of
future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred

to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment loss
increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later

recovered, the recovery is credited to other expenses in profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred
on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair value because
its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on a derivative asset that
is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity
instrument, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar

financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets are not reversed.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at the
end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that an

investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising the
difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and amortisation)
and its current fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognised
in profit or loss, is removed from other comprehensive income and

recognised in profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale, objective
evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against
the original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the period
in which the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there
is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in profit or loss
— is removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in profit
or loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments classified as available
for sale are not reversed through profit or loss. Increases in their fair value

after impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates, among other
factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value of an investment is

less than its cost.

4 #t Annual Report 2017

193



8 785 it o B ik

Notes to Financial Statements
—EF—tE+H=1+—H
31 December 2017

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.4 TRERHBORBEE ) 24

£ T A ()

A fE B R (4

B T LB A T M8 o B o OB
1 4 B 4 A A B 9 6 Tl
B4R 0 % AT o SATH » B A0 A R4 38
B B A BB AT AP (B A 2 8
Y LA 2 S 0 03 00 A S 0
BRI B EE - RAF B RAME
19 © 406 90 B T 4% A8 0 (DA
WP RS B R A B A BRI R 3t o
B A B BRSO ) — 45 o
5 T 1 2 ST W 5 80 2 B b B
R (L5 2 i S AR B
I EC 3 (R 4R 2 )

SR

W i i L

<& Pl BRI 0 0 T IR 0 BB 4R T
HFFABRGHEMARE - EHEER
BB E M — A R B TR
fE TR (M) -

JT A 4 T SRR A P (B 8 A
B - A B AL 25 A
& o

AL A AR 5 R
PR A B A R A~ A&
T DL Rt B AT R AR i 3K

194 Zhenro Properties Group Led. 1F 2% 3B 3 & BR A 7

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for sale, impairment
is assessed based on the same criteria as financial assets carried at
amortised cost. However, the amount recorded for impairment is the
cumulative loss measured as the difference between the amortised cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in profit or loss. Future interest income continues
to be accrued based on the reduced carrying amount of the asset and is
accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The interest income is
recorded as part of finance income. Impairment losses on debt instruments
are reversed through profit or loss if the subsequent increase in fair value
of the instruments can be objectively related to an event occurring after

the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as

appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the

case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, an
amount due to the ultimate holding company, derivative financial

instruments and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their

classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial

recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category includes
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by
IAS 39. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains
or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in profit or loss. The
net fair value gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does not include any

interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition and

only if the criteria in TAS 39 are satisfied.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective

interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included

in finance costs in profit or loss.

Corporate bond

Corporate bond issued by the Company that contain both liability and
early redemption option (which is not closely related to the host contract)
are classified separately on initial recognition. At the date of issue, both
the liability and early redemption option components are recognised at
fair value. In subsequent periods, the liability component of the corporate
bond is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
early redemption option is measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss. Transaction costs that relate to the issue
of the corporate bond are allocated to the liability and early redemption
option components in proportion to their relative fair values. Transaction
costs relating to the early redemption option are charged to profit or loss
immediately. Transaction costs relating to the liability component are
included in the carrying amount of the liability portion and amortised

over the periods of the corporate bond using the effective interest method.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the

liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a
new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying amounts

is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the

liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form

an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term
deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as

to use.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal ot constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided

that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group on certain
products are recognised based on sales volume and past experience of
the level of repairs and returns, discounted to their present values as

appropriate.

A contingent liability recognised in a business combination is initially
measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is measured at the higher of
(i) the amount that would be recognised in accordance with the general
guidance for provisions above; and (ii) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance

with the guidance for revenue recognition.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss,

either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and

practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting

purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences,

M HERR » 1T 5 DL A - except:
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of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects

neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses

can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable

profit or loss; and

. in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary

differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be

available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend
either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise
the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected

to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that

the costs, which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred
income account and is released to profit or loss over the expected useful
life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments or deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and released to profit or loss by way of a

reduced depreciation charge.
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24

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that the Group
maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree usually associated

with ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold.

Revenue from the sale of properties in the ordinary course of business is

recognised when all the following criteria are met:

(a)  the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the properties are

transferred to purchasers;

(b)  neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over the properties

are retained;
() the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

(d) it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the

transaction will flow to the Group; and

(e)  the cost incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can

be measured reliably.

For the Group, revenue from the sale of completed properties is
recognised upon the signing of property handover letter, which is taken
to be the point in time when the risks and rewards of ownership of the

property have passed to the buyer.

Deposits and instalments received in respect of properties sold prior to
the date of revenue recognition are included in the consolidated statement

of financial position under current liabilities.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease

terms.

Interest income is recognised, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument of the net

carrying amount of the financial asset.

Commissions from concessionaire sales are recognised upon the sale of

goods by the relevant stores.

Service income from commercial management services and other activities
are recognised when the services are rendered and the inflow of economic

benefit is probable.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive

payment has been established.

Employee benefits

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China are required to participate in a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain proportion of these payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension

scheme.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of
such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity

incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends are

disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

Since the majority of the assets and operations of the Group are located
in the PRC, the financial statements are presented in RMB, which is
the functional currency of the Company. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or

loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of
the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with
the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item
(i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also

recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal
of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income

relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair
value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising
on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation

and translated at the closing rate.

Perpetual capital securities

Perpetual capital securities with no contracted obligation to repay its

principal or to pay any distribution are classified as part of equity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying

amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, apart from those involving
estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts

recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its investment
property portfolio. The Group has determined, based on an evaluation
of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, that it retains all the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties which are

leased out on operating leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Classification between investment properties and completed

properties held for sale

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a property
generates cash flows largely independently of the other assets held by the
Group. Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation and another portion that is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
If these portions could be sold separately or leased out separately under
a finance lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the
portions could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement
is made on an individual property basis to determine whether ancillary

setvices are so significant that a property does not qualify as an investment

property.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts

of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

Provision for properties under development and completed

properties held for sale

The Group’s properties under development and completed properties held
for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Based on
the Group’s historical experience and the nature of the subject properties,
the Group makes estimates of the selling prices, the costs of completion
of properties under development, and the costs to be incurred in selling

the properties based on prevailing market conditions.

If there is an increase in costs to completion or a decrease in net sales
value, the net realisable value will decrease and this may result in a
provision for properties under development and completed properties
held for sale. Such provision requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, the
carrying value and provision for properties in the periods in which such

estimate is changed will be adjusted accordingly.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
PRC corporate income tax (“CIT”)

The Group is subject to corporate income taxes in the PRC. As a result
of the fact that certain matters relating to the income taxes have not been
confirmed by the local tax bureau, objective estimate and judgement
based on currently enacted tax laws, regulations and other related policies
are required in determining the provision for income taxes to be made.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts originally recorded, the differences will impact on the income

tax and tax provisions in the period in which the differences realise.

PRC land appreciation tax (‘LAT”)
The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. The provision for LAT is based

on management’s best estimates according to the understanding of the
requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations.
The actual LAT liabilities are subject to the determination by the tax
authorities upon the completion of the property development projects.
The Group has not finalised its LAT calculation and payments with
the tax authorities for all its property development projects. The final
outcome could be different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
and any differences will impact on the LAT expenses and the related

provision in the period in which the differences realise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar properties,

the Group considers information from a variety of sources, including:

(a)

(b)

()

current prices in an active market for properties of a different

nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect those differences;

recent prices of similar properties on less active markets, with
adjustments to reflect any changes in economic conditions since

the date of the transactions that occurred at those prices; and

discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates of
future cash flows, supported by the terms of any existing lease and
other contracts and (when possible) by external evidence such as
current market rents for similar properties in the same location
and condition, and using discount rates that reflect current market
assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and timing of the

cash flows.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Estimate of fair value of investment properties (Continued)

At 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of investment properties was
RMBS,542,700,000 (31 December 2016: RMB7,421,860,000). Further
details, including the key assumptions used for fair value measurement

and a sensitivity analysis, are given in note 14 to the financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for
all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period. Indefinite life
intangible assets are tested for impairment annually and at other times
when such an indicator exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or a
cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation
of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available data from
binding sales transactions in an arm'’s length transaction of similar assets
or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating
unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present

value of those cash flows.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based
upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with

future tax planning strategies.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management monitors the operating results of the Group’s business
which includes property development and leasing and commercial
property management by project locations for the purpose of making
decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment, while
no single location’s revenue, net profit or total assets exceeds 10% of
the Group’s consolidated revenue, net profit or total assets. As all the
locations have similar economic characteristics and are similar in the
nature of property development and leasing and management, the nature
of the aforementioned business processes, the type or class of customer
for the aforementioned business and the methods used to distribute the
properties or provide the services, thus all locations were aggregated as

one reportable operating segment.

Geographical information

No geographical information is presented as the Group'’s revenue from the
external customers is derived solely from its operation in Mainland China
and no non-current assets of the Group are located outside Mainland
China.

Information about major customers

No sales to a single customer or a group of customers under common
control accounted for 10% or more of the Group's revenue at the end of

each reporting period.
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue represents income from the sale of properties, property

management service income, and rental income during the reporting year.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

e
2017 2016
ANRETFL  ARETFIL
RMB’000 RMB’000
N Revenue
BB Sale of properties 19,882,015 14,534,660
A4 it Rental income 71,354 49,227
ESERiNE Y e Property management service income 38,816 18,772
HAth Others 2,876 861
19,995,061 14,603,520
FAb A B g Other income and gains
I ~ BE R TR H Gain on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment 438 961
R B 2 R AU ES (BT 36) Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) 1,708 —
FE A Interest income 138,182 36,538
Wk E Forfeiture of deposits 10,257 8,644
HAth Others 3,636 2,499
154,221 48,642
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6. BRBL R & F) 6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
7 B2 8 [ Bl i o6 R B DL R & IE AR The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
(FHA) RS
B3 R ZE R
Notes 2017 2016
ANBETL AR¥TT
RMB’000 RMB 000
CEFERA Cost of inventories sold 22 15,753,173 11,669,971
R0 8 19 58 L 2E 0 e E Impairment losses written off for
Fes AR (R &) completed properties held for sale (Note) 22 (72,330) (269,403)
B % o ) SE TR Y B (L s 1 Impairment losses recognised for
properties under development 21 74,030 19,747
YIZE ~ B RSt H s Depreciation of items of property,
plant and equipment 13 21,708 21,944
B H A TR B Amortisation of other intangible assets 16 2,702 1,808
HEWE - R K Loss on disposal of items of property
AR H 1R plant and equipment 87 135
th B B A m Y Wi s Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 36 (1,708) —
T4 BH 32 Rental expenses 32,119 26,611
1% B 365 M Auditors’ remuneration 7,290 2,398
18 B AR A1 B 32 (LG Employee benefit expense (including directors’
BEATEANEHM (Ff:E8)) :  and chief executive’s remuneration (note 8)):
ek TE Wages and salaries 385,005 289,104
TS FHEBR KAL €18 HF]  Pension scheme contributions and social welfare 49,665 37,719
FERE « BUCIE H 5SR-S 4T iR A 2K 0 8 A Note: It is included in cost of sales in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
Hio income.
7. BB 7. FINANCE COSTS
WIBS AR TN - An analysis of finance costs is as follows:
—F-bE —“TAF
2017 2016
ANRETFL AREFIL
RMB’000 RMB’000
$RAT B oAt £ 2R AR, Interest on bank and other borrowings 2,806,763 2,965,111
N AE SRR (B EE 30) Interest on corporate bond (note 30) 141,582 30,987
W EALAE Less: Interest capitalised (2,396,806)  (2,640,026)

551,539 356,072
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8. DIRECTORS REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1) (a), (b), (c) and (f) of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as

follows:

e
2017 2016
ARMBFL  ARWTT
RMB 000 RMB 000

i Fees — —
oAt 4 Other emoluments:
T& - R RCE AR A Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 6,905 5,248
FB (LA = Performance-related bonuses* 2,215 378
A AR HIHER AL g 4w A Pension scheme contributions
and social welfare 396 374
9,516 6,000
* AN R T AT S RS B A R B e < Certain executive directors of the Company are entitled to bonus payments which

045 1 1 AT B ) FE ALK

(@) BVIEHfTES
Bl bk Sk« VLB R T
BER-ZF—LETZATERE
FILARAABLFUTES o 1
BE-T—LER-FAETS
ES NS & 21 iy bl
WATHE HH -

are associated with the profit after tax of the Group.

(a) Independent non-executive directors
Mzr. Loke Yu, Mr. Shen Guoquan and Mr. Wang Chuanxu were
appointed as independent non-executive directors of the Company
on 15 December 2017. There was no emolument payable to

the independent non-executive directors for the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016.
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8. YK 8. DIRECTORS REMUNERATION (Continued)
b)) HITEF  FERTEERER (b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and the
TBANE chief executive

BAGHL  EEEH
Bl By fak R

TH - IR ECS G -
RENRER Equity- Pension
Salaries, FBHHEA settled scheme
allowances Performance-  share-based contributions Hr Gt
#i4  and benefits related payment  and social Total
Fees in kind bonuses expenses welfare remuneration

ARBTE  ARETE  ARWTFZ  ARKETT  ARETE  ARETZ
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000

“F—tF 2017

WhESH: Executive directors;

—Hflik e — M. Huang Xianzhi = 2,861 827 — 99 3,787

— MR — Mr. Lin Zhaoyang — 1,824 (84 — 99 2,607
= 4,685 1,511 = 198 6,394

FafrES: Non-executive directors:

— BB — Mr. Ou Guogiang - 1,110 366 - 99 1,575

—BiE g — Mr. Ou Guowei = 1,110 338 = 99 1,547
= 2,220 704 = 198 3,122
= 6,905 2215 = 396 9,516

RN 2016

WiEH: Executive directors:

-l — Mr. Huang Xianzhi = 2,250 108 = 94 2452

— R — M. Lin Zhaoyang — 1,475 108 — 94 1,677
— 3,725 216 = 188 4129

FamEs: Non-executive directors:

— A — M. Ou Guogiang = 800 108 — 93 1,001

BB g — M. Ou Guowei = 723 54 = 9 870
= 1,523 162 = 186 1,871
— 5,248 378 = 374 6,000
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and the

chief executive (Continued)

Mr. Huang Xianzhi is the chairman and an executive director of
the Company. Mr. Wang Benlong has been promoted to a joint
Chief Executive Officer of the Company from 28 February 2018.
Accordingly, Mr. Lin Zhaoyang (an executive Director),who has
been serving as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company prior
to 28 February 2018, has been re-designated as a joint Chief
Executive Officer of the Company with effect from 28 February
2018.There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the

year.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included two directors
(2016: three directors), details of whose remuneration are set out in note
8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining three
(2016: two) highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief

executive of the Company are as follows:
e
2017 2016

ARWTFE  ARWTFL
RMB’000  RMB’000

T& - B X EYAEF Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 3,748 1,742
FEHEEAL Performance-related bonuses 986 108
TEE RA A Pension and social welfare 297 187

5,031 2,037
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid

employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as

follows:
(=P
Number of employees
R -LE SRR
2017 2016
Z % 500,000 ¥ 70 Nil to HK$500,000 — —
500,001 #JG 2 1,000,000 ¥ IG HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 = 1
1,000,001 # JC % 1,500,000 # 7T HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 = 1
1,500,001 ¥ JG. % 2,000,000 ¥ JC HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 2 —
2,000,001 ¥ ICZE 2,500,000 ¥ IC HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 1 —
3 2

Pt Bi

A% 5 [ RO A 42 B A B W RE I R A
T 7 BB ) i M I A R U G i
32 TP L YE A B A B o AR PH 2 B
B ST 0 e S IR Rk L AR
A B o 5 % S L e I M S Y
Wf B 2~ ) B RS AE T BT A3 A SR 1
JA 7 it o RS ) B 2 ) 41 ZR 48 A B
B AAZEAARBE_F—L4F
+ A = Bk AR BE N 4 B
TEE A FA A o B R i 1

7R 52 T e B 7 3 68 7 Y BB 8 DR 4
TRZREE 259 WIBL AR BUAR H B A SE L

10. INCOME TAX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits arising
in or derived from the tax jurisdictions in which members of the Group
are domiciled and operate. Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Cayman Islands and British Virgin Islands, the Group’s subsidiaries
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and British Virgin Islands are not
subject to any income tax. The Group's subsidiaries incorporated in Hong
Kong are not liable for income tax as they did not have any assessable
profits currently arising in Hong Kong for the year ended 31 December
2017.

Subsidiaries of the Group operating in Mainland China are subject to

PRC corporate income tax rate at a of 25% for the year.
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10. Pifde ) 10. INCOME TAX (Continued)
A 3t B8 B G IR 30% £ 60% ) 2 AER LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
2R3 B A Ol > L b (R A appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from sale of properties less
AW 26 BT A5 3 TE BT 0B S (L 4E & deductible expenditures including land costs, borrowing costs and other
M RAR ~ 5 FORUAR B H A B b E B S property development expenditures. The Group has estimated, made and
) o AR B AR A B P B A B included in taxation a provision for LAT according to the requirements
RERMNEES T ER A fEH set forth in the relevant Mainland China tax laws and regulations. The
Kt iR R TE Bl o L b B (E R B A H LAT provision is subject to the final review and approval by the local tax
o M B S B 1 7 A A A bureau.
R L R A
2017 2016
ANREFL ARETE
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR Current tax:
B TR B PRC corporate income tax 848,245 741,022
o o - 3 4 (E L PRC LAT 610,225 548,426
AR (BT 19) Deferred tax (note 19) (230,285) (167,762)
A B TE 52 AR Total tax charge for the year 1,228,185 1,121,686
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S A ES S
31 December 2017

10. WifaBt )

10. INCOME TAX (Continued)

AN ) B Y 2 W A I L W o [
$5 1% 7€ B 2 w0 BRBL 6 A G B
6B B S B B AR A5 B o B A9 P A%
BEBH SCEIIR - DA K38 B AR (B3 2 Bt

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit before tax
at the statutory rate for the jurisdictions in which the Company and
its subsidiaries are domiciled to the income tax expense at the effective

income tax rate, and a reconciliation of the applicable rate (i.e., the

) BB ERINT

statutory tax rate) to the effective tax rate are as follows:

ZF-LE R AF
2017 2016
ANRHFL  ARETE
RMB’000 RMB 000
W o il s Profit before tax 2,749,579 2,364,908
R 8 TR B R 5 At the statutory income tax rate 687,395 591,227
BB AR 2 RS A T A U A K Profits and losses attributable to
joint ventures and associates 19,457 1,801
A0 B Expenses not deductible for tax 13,490 15,174
LR R BB B R 1 Tax losses and deductible temporary
T I IR R differences utilised from previous years (104,709) (71,088)
R BRI ] IR 2 Deductible temporary differences
not recognised 60,263 77,838
RIS 51 Tax losses not recognised 94,620 95,415
b3 (A Provision for LAT 610,225 548,426
TS ER B R Tax effect on LAT (152,556) (137,107)
F AR [ B R L BT Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate 1,228,185 1,121,686

Zhenro Properties Group Led. 1E 4% 3 & A FR A 7
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10. i3t

AR MBS IR VLR A B AT LR A

10. INCOME TAX (Continued)

Tax payable in the consolidated statement of financial position represents:

L
2017 2016
AR AREFT
RMB’000  RMB 000
JREASF o B i ZE BT A5 PRC corporate income tax payable 798,535 527,689
JREARF I = 4 (B PRC LAT payable 631,022 484,124
R A} 56 JE A AR Total tax payable 1,429,557 1,011,813
11. BB 11. DIVIDENDS

“F b CF N
2017 2016
ANRWFL AR¥TFT
RMB’000  RMB 000

SRR A HA S, — I 4 1 10 s A1l Proposed final — HK10 cent
(ZF =R %) (2016: Nil) per ordinary share 329,918 —

A BE AR R R 0 M S5 2R IR A A 2 ] JBOR
A i e RO A7 K 2 A o

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of the

Company's shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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12.

A2 v 35 R A R A A HE AN
(o3, 2 bl

o PR EE AR ) T AR R A ) L A A e
AN HE A A 4F B Ui A DA JAF N B B AT
T 0 RE T 4 $02,999,974,584 it (— %
—NE 12,999,950,001 ) 7HEE o

AREBRE ZE-LERZF - RNETZ
H =+ — R k4 B IR AR 2 R < %8
R 1 3 8 R HE - 35 T B DA 45
BHE RN RRZFE—RNE—H—HK
LRI~ AR REE - F—EE+Z
H =+ — B IR E AT 49,999 % & 47
B A E AR G AR AL AT O 5 1 4% 38
A ) T B AT 19 2,999,950,000 % 5 48 i (B
RE44(1)) > SO EZ SE AR AR AL B AT A
TR E R E ZF—RERZ
Z—bF+H=+—HILFEET -

HRAERREE —F—-LtHER_F
—ANEF A= HIREEI D
TSNS E g B RBE—F
—tEEZF-AFE+ZA=t—HIL
AR 28 2 AR A i g

Zhenro Properties Group Led. 1E 4% 3 & A FR A 7

12.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based on the
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 2,999,974,584
(2016: 2,999,950,001) in issue during the year.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used to calculate the
basic earnings per share amounts for the years ended 31 December 2017
and 2016 was based on 1 share of the Company as at 1 January 2016,
49,999 shares of the Company issued in the year ended 31 December
2017, and 2,999,950,000 ordinary shares of the Company issued under
the capitalisation issue occurred after the reporting period (note 44(1)), as
if these additional shares issued under the capitalisation issue had been in

issue throughout the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2017.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share amounts
presented for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 in respect of a
dilution as the Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.
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31 December 2017

12. A2 W)W R A A 4G
I B A )

A 2 L S L8 DL T
Hatg

ol
AL R A ARG A

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share amounts are

based on:

Earnings
Profit attributable to ordinary equity

holders of the Company

e
2017 2016
ARBFT AR
RMB’000 RMB'000

1,408,876 1,183,256

gl
SR E BT E A T 1 %

Shares
Weighted average number of ordinary

shares in issue during the year

2,999,974,584  2,999,950,001

BB
R L

Earnings per share
Basic and diluted

AE¥0477C AR¥0397T
RMBO0.47 RMB0.39
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13. ¥ ~ B it 13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
N
RET
Office &
#EH  equipment R LR
Motor and electronic Leasehold At
vehicles devices improvements Total

ARWTE  ARWTZ  ARETE  ARWTZ
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB 000

“F—tHE+ZAZ+—H 31 December 2017
RZF—=ANFEFZH=1—H At 31 December 2016 and
k=ZF—tH-H—H: 1 January 2017:
A Cost 79,928 41,535 27,477 148,940
ZFHTE Accumulated depreciation (50,776) (28,159) (19,811) (98,746)
R (] Net carrying amount 29,152 13,376 7,666 50,194
RZF—tFE—-A—H> At 1 January 2017, net of
ik 25t accumulated depreciation 29,152 13,376 7,666 50,194
NE Additions 8,051 5,834 33,631 47,516
irfed Disposals (1,248) (52) — (1,300)
EBEAT R Depreciation provided
during the year (8,755) (6,542) (6,411) (21,708)
RZZF—tE+-H=1+—H> At 31 December 2017, net of
HBR Bt & accumulated depreciation 27,200 12,616 34,886 74,702
RZZF—tE+ZA=+—H: At 31 December 2017:
JA Cost 86,731 47317 61,108 195,156
ZatiT Accumulated depreciation (59,531) (34,701) (26,222) (120,454)
IR Net carrying amount 27,200 12,616 34,886 74,702
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13. W3 ~ BB Rt a0

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Wi
RET R
Office e
e s equipment PR
Motor  and electronic Leasehold A5t
vehicles devices  improvements Total
ANBHTE  ARBTZT  ARNETT  ARETIL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000
B AETZAZTH 31 December 2016
REE—TAEFZAZ1—H At 31 December 2015 and
k=Z—RE—H—H: 1 January 2016:
A Cost 63,184 38,188 26,730 128,102
it Accumulated depreciation (42,826) (20,682) (13,294) (76,802)
R Net carrying amount 20,358 17,506 13,436 51,300
REZF—RE-A—H> At 1 January 2016, net of
Bk ATHTE accumulated depreciation 20,358 17,506 13,436 51,300
NE Additions 18,057 3,352 747 22,156
& Disposals (1313) O) — (1318)
TR Depreciation provided during the year (7,950) (7,477) (6,517) (21,944)
R-F-RE+ZHA=Zt—H At 31 December 2016, net of
Ik 258 accumulated depreciation 29,152 13,376 7,666 50,194
WEE—ANEFZAZT—H At 31 December 2016:
A Cost 79928 41,535 27477 148,940
Z5HTE Accumulated depreciation (50,776) (28,159) (19,811) (98,746)
R Net carrying amount 29,152 13,376 7,666 50,194
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14. BtEWE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

i
Under 5L At
construction Completed Total

ARHTE  ARKTZ  ARETFT
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

R_E—RFE—~H—H Carrying amount at 1 January 2016
E@E«EW& 1,564,219 3,221,661 4,785,880
NE Additions 892,495 — 892,495
{3 Transfer (621,974) 621,974 =
A BB (HEE21)  Transferred from properties
under development (note 21) 963,522 — 963,522
EEAEHEDRT Transferred from completed
W (Hf5E 22) properties held for sale (note 22) - 185,813 185,813

ONE R AR 0 R AR Net gain from a fair value adjustment 218,362 375,788 594,150

REF=AREFZA=+—H Carrying amount at 31 December 2016

R”=%—t4%—-H—H and 1 January 2017
HY B T 3,016,624 4,405,236 7,421,860
WA Additions 449,888 — 449,888
B AT TE21)  Transferred from properties
under development (note 21) 317,154 — 317,154
L Transfer (1,753,756) 1,753,756 —
N B R BT A5 Ui 4 AR Net gain from a fair value adjustment 59,890 293,908 353,798

RZE—LFEFZA=+—H Carrying amount at 31 December 2017
b B 2,089,800 6,452,900 8,542,700

7 S [ A 5 A 2 00 S P I A b o AR AR
B 1 45 ) 2 T KL A ST B E S A A
{8 B i S22 W5 47 A SEREAR KA A PR A
([h = BAT D) IFEA A —F —EFE+ 2
H="1—HE M A ANR8,542,700,000
fn(* T — N N R #7,421,860,000

o 74 452 [H 1YY 125 A% A5 408 L A AL
ﬁ$ﬁﬂ§$@ﬂ@ﬁ%&§ﬁ%%ﬁ
(L i B 35 A 42 [ W 2E 1 AR ER A 1 o Bt
TR G A T kB M O
R R S SE R UE o AR [ 1Y R AR B A
E&M%M%E%%ﬁﬁﬁ%”ﬁﬁﬁ
A A (BB AR A (E A AT vt o o
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The Group’s investment properties are situated in Mainland China. The
Group's investment properties were revalued on 31 December 2017 based
on valuations performed by Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and
Advisory Limited (“JLL"), an independent professionally qualified valuer,
at RMB8,542,700,000 (2016: RMB7,421,860,000). The Group’s senior
finance manager and the chief financial officer decide, after approval from
the board of directors of the Company, to appoint which external valuer
to be responsible for the external valuations of the Group’s properties.
Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence
and whether professional standards are maintained. The Group's senior
finance manager and the chief financial officer have discussions with
the valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation results when the

valuation is performed for financial reporting.
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14.

BEWE @)
RoZ—tE+A=+—H &&EH
IR N R 5,742,689,000 76 (=%
=74 KR 4,059,220,000 70) ##5 T
BEMEC B > 5 A IE BRI R AT
B FABAE AR (Bf5E 29)

AR %
T A 3 10 AT (T R
Ridk

AR I H AT R AR Recurring fair value

14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, certain of the Group’s investment properties
with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately RMB5,742,689,000
(2016: RMB4,059,220,000) have been pledged to secure bank and other
borrowings granted to the Group (note 29).

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of

the Group’s investment properties:

REZZ—tE+ZA=1—H
B8 FIDAR BRI AT 5t
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2017 using
BEAWMBE EAATEE
HHm 52 LN ¢ LN ‘¢
WECE—5) CGE=%) (=)

Quoted prices Significant  Significant

inactive  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs At
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ANRETFE  ARETFL  ARWTFT  ARWTL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AT = measurement for:
O TR &M% Completed commercial properties — — 6,452,900 6,452,900
TERE P Y Commercial properties

under construction

- - 2,089,800 2,089,800

- - 8,542,700 8,542,700

AN o B — SRR AR B A TE
Al A N S A =
RRACF—NE ) -

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 (2016:

Nil).
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14. BLEYE ) 14.
NVERE R )

LIT B BUE W A E I R (7 R £ B
A BRI

i B

Valuation techniques

Y ENGESYES KA EARAE
Completed commercial Income capitalisation
properties method
TERE T YK 3¢S
Commercial properties Comparison
under construction method

C & THEW RN A FETER A T4
HREE > kR S RN A
Ay AR K SRAEBUAT LN AT RIS B A
E L N AV R ROl DR b N (i
) - REMLLEARL  LHREE I E
AL REE AT - FEERERILT 2
M B T 4 b AR AT L AL -

fi Lok W B 20 30 A
KON - R M7 B3 B A (M LB
WES I (B0 ) BB A A (K
W () -

Zhenro Properties Group Led. 1E 4% 3 & A FR A 7

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key inputs

to the valuation of investment properties:

BN AT i A\ Bk i S RT3
Significant unobservable inputs Range or weighted average
e
2017 2016
filit & 30-248 29-240

Estimated rental value

(NRW /B FHRREH)

(RMB per sq.m. and per month)

EAHE 3.5%-5% 3.5%-5%

Capitalisation rate

A
Expected profit margin 15% 10%-20%

The fair value of completed commercial properties is determined by
the income capitalisation method by taking into account the net rental
income of the properties derived from the existing leases and/or achievable
in the existing market with due allowance for the reversionary income
potential of the leases, which have been then capitalised to determine
the fair value at an appropriate capitalisation rate. Where appropriate,
reference has also been made to the comparable sales transactions as

available in the relevant market.

A significant increase in the estimated rental value would result in a
significant increase in the fair value of the investment properties. A
significant increase (decrease) in the long term vacancy rate and the
capitalisation rate in isolation would result in a significant decrease

(increase) in the fair value of the investment properties.
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14. BEWE @)

I5.

TG G A (41)

IR ELE TS LA
o B AR LT A
550 5 1 3 (i ) #8411 A F I8 B
BELYENATHE(BRRERT)

o T2 HE ST SN E R Al R
BERAREEER 5 K

o TGS EENEMEMEER T
FORFEA Wl AR 2 -

et R AR - R A

/E YNSRIV i

14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The fair value of commercial properties under construction is determined
by using the comparison method, with reference to comparable sales
evidence as available in the relevant market to derive the fair value of
the property assuming it was completed and, where appropriate, after

deducting the following items:

. Estimated construction costs and professional fees to be expensed
to complete the properties that would be incurred by a market

participant; and

o Estimated profit margin that a market participant would requite to

hold and develop the property to completion.

The higher the estimated construction costs would result in the lower the

fair value of the investment properties under construction.

U L AL Ak 15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS
I e A
2017 2016
ARETFT ANRIEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
it—HA—HMREHE Carrying amount at 1 January 7,328,831 1,095,331
AE NS Additions during the year 8,308,259 6,549,341
g 23 B 8% ) 2 (P 21) Transferred to properties under development (note 21)  (12,584,734) (315,841)
A = — H R A Carrying amount at 31 December 3,052,356 7,328,831
W BPEAES 4 Less: Current portion 2,926,996 6,941,396
I B3I 4 Non-current portion 125,360 387,435

90 3t PR S AR A TR - A B RO
TR IR A R A > FLAT B S
I A o

REFE—LF T H=1—H &K4EH
HRRR T (H 40 N R 2,350,418,000 76 (=%
—NAE 0 N 4,442,747,000 78) FO T
LI EAT RO B > B AL B
SRAT T FLAAE R AEAEAT (Bi3E 29) -

The prepaid land lease payments for land use rights are held under
medium term leases and the parcels of land are situated in Mainland
China.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's prepaid land lease payments with
an aggregate carrying amount of approximately RMB2,350,418,000
(2016: RMB4,442,747,000) were pledged to secure bank and other

borrowings granted to the Group (note 29).
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16. HAbdmep % 2 16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

“HbE EAE
2017 2016
ARWTE  ARMT
RMB’000 RMB’000

Ligts Software
R—H—H At 1 January

A Cost 8,667 6,977

BT Accumulated amortisation (3,429) (1,621)
M T 3+ (B Net carrying amount 5,238 5,356
W—HA—BZHA Cost at 1 January, net of

bk B EHEEE accumulated amortisation 5,238 5,356
N Additions 4,594 1,690
GRNIRR F e Amortisation provided during the year (2,702) (1,808)
T HZ=+—H > kxR stk At 31 December, net of

accumulated amortisation 7,130 5,238

mTr—H=+—H At 31 December

A Cost 13,261 8,667

ZEH R Accumulated amortisation (6,131) (3,429)
W H(E Net carrying amount 7,130 5,238
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17. REBEENBE

oM

17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

Share of net assets

Rk CF AR
2017 2016
ABBFT  ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000

1,404,370 46,894

A S I B A S ) 5 ) M W I
o RTEAS BRI B 05 R IR R 40 i -

@ AEEGEAEFHNT

Gk

Name of company

RULERERBERERARAA

Changsha Zhenro Zhengtai

Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

REERETEEARAR

Wuhan Zhengsheng Real Estate
Co., Ltd.

B B 5 o A PR

Heifei Hegui Property Co., Led.

BILERF HEA R

Heifei Birong Property Co., Led.
Co., Ltd.
RN A B A R )

Suzhou Ronghui Real Estate
Co., Ltd.

The Group's trade receivable and payable balances with joint ventures are

disclosed in note 40 to the financial statements.

(a)

[aUptE Y&y

Place and year of

registration

R

S
Changsha, PRC
2016

o B
TR
Wuhan, PRC
2016

A
“E—tF
Hefei, PRC
2017

A
“E LA
Hefei, PRC
2017

v [
“E—tF
Suzhou, PRC
2017

A4 B M 1 B

HHEE I

HHEA Percentage of
Paid-in capital ownership interest
ARMTE attributable
RMB’ 000 to the Group
100,000 50%
100,000 50%
400,000 33%
20,000 49%
100,000 49%
(W&E1)
(Note 1)

Particulars of the Group's joint ventures are as follows:

FEED
Principal

activities

ESE
Property

development

e
Property

development

ESE
Property

development

ELE
Property
development

E LS
Property
development
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17. REBEENEE @)

() AEEAGECERBOT  (4)

Gk

Name of company

RAERFHEA R

Nanchang Jianmei Property
Co., Ltd.

oM S AT PR

Suzhou Lingrui Real Estate
Co., Ltd.

BN R B B3 PR 1

Suzhou Chengrui Real Estate
Co., Ltd.

L ERCE A R

Shanghai Juexu Real Estate
Co., Ltd.

A ET B R

Nanchang Zhengrun Real Estate
Co., Ltd.

17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

(a)

[alpE Y&y

Place and year of

registration

FE B

~F L
Nanchang, PRC
2017

R
“F—pf
Suzhou, PRC
2017

I
~F L
Suzhou, PRC
2017

B L
-
Shanghai, PRC
2017

FE B

~F L
Nanchang, PRC
2017
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Particulars of the Group’s joint ventures are as follows: (Continued)

A

ARG AL
HHEH I

Percentage of

Paid-in capital ownership interest

ARMEF TG
RMB’ 000

10,000

50,000

50,000

1,000

40,000

attributable
to the Group

19%
(Fit5E 2)
(Note 2)

50%

50%

50%

23%

FEED
Principal

activities

UE i S
Property
development

ELE
Property
development

UE i S
Property
development

IELE
Property
development

UE i S
Property
development
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17. REBEENEE @)

17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

) AEESELELHBNT - (4) (@)  Particulars of the Group’s joint ventures are as follows:(Continued)
A4 B HE AV B
FHET 4 b
HREAR Percentage of
A B S A Ay Paid-in capital ownership interest ~ FEGH]
UNTEA Place and year of ARWFL attributable  Principal
Name of company registration RMB’000 to the Group  activities
TR L33 5 o E B A IR ) FE M — 3% W%
ZE—LF Property
Suzhou Aoyuan Property Suzhou, PRC development
Co., Ltd. 2017
R e A PR R 142,860 14%  P¥kHE
“Z—tE (Fff&£3)  Property
Tianjin Zhongchu Hengfeng Real Estate Tianjin, PRC (Note 3)  development
Co., Ltd. 2017
SR ERH R B 80,000 36% WA
ZE L Property
Fujian Liwo Real Estate Fuzhou, PRC development
Co., Ltd. 2017
7B B BB LA ) Gl 100,000 50% YRR
—F—tF
Jiaxing Zhuosu Property Jiaxing, PRC Property
Co., Ltd. 2017 development
WAL B L IE VB A R PR — 50% W3R
ZE L Property
Hubei Fangtouzhengchuang Real Estate Wuhan, PRC development
Co., Ltd. 2017
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S A ES S
31 December 2017

17. REBEENBE =)
REWAB LT : (40)

Mk : RoF—bEFH=+—H>
S [ B A SRR M AR 2
A BRZA =] (TR FiRE ) B¢ & 1o i
T F 48 %8 ) A B 538,617,000 70
(ZF—NER) BARERHE
20 At SRAT A 2AE K0 (B E
29) ©

(a)

ffek2 s RoF—LEFZA=Z+—AR >
BB B A A PR A (7 B
HE WAL BE > 2 AlEE
H20% ~ 19% ~ 21% > 19% K 21%
JRHE o AR ER B R I A Ak A
AR - R E R I BT A R R TR
ROt A A BOR— Bk o B
LI HLE o I AR R AR A
FEH 19% BHE - 7B @A) AR
B A AR -

ffaEs : RoF—bEFZH=+—H>
R A A PR A (TR
HEP g ) B T4 B 4 B
H H35% - 219% > 20%  10% K
149 H HE o MR 9 K e v fok ) 4 2
RN A R AR I A TR
PRk 2 2 i T A4 R — Bk B o
B SR TE M o I A AR I AR
AR 14% BEHE > K 1 b 1R
BRSNS B -
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17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

(a)

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Particulars of the Group’s joint ventures are as follows: (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's investment in joint venture Suzhou
Ronghui Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Suzhou Ronghui”) with an aggregate
carrying amount of approximately RMB38,617,000 (2016: Nil) were

pledged to secure bank other borrowings granted to the Group (note 29).

As at 31 December 2017, Nanchang Jianmei Property Co., Ltd. (“Nanchang
Jianmei”) had five shareholders holding its 20%, 19%, 21%, 19% and
21% equity interests. Pursuant to the articles of association of Nanchang
Jianmei, all shareholders’ resolutions of Nanchang Jianmei shall be
resolved by the five shareholders on an unanimous basis. In light of this
requirement, Nanchang Jianmei is accounted for as a joint venture of the
Group notwithstanding that the Group only held a 19% equity interest

during the year.

As at 31 December 2017, Tianjin Zhongchu Hengfeng Real Estate Co.,
Ltd. (“Tianjin Zhongchu”) had five shareholders holding its 35%, 21%,
20%, 10% and 14% equity interests. Pursuant to the articles of association
of Tianjin Zhongchu, all shareholders’ resolutions of Tianjin Zhongchu
shall be resolved by the five shareholders on an unanimous basis. In light of
this requirement, Tianjin Zhongchu Hengfeng is accounted for as a joint
venture of the Group notwithstanding that the Group only held a 14%

equity interest during the year.
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ZEF—LEFZA=T—H
31 December 2017

17. REBEENEE @)

b REEEEAEFEARAR(EHE
“E—LET AT HHRE
AEFMEESEMIE) BApERK
H ) 75— % A B B A L ] B B — 1
YIEREEEE > AR IEALR -
TRIRA R EEREA EXEA
PR TI B RS R 2 > Cat st
WU 5 BLAE R I B 45 A BB

17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Concinued)
(b)  Wuhan Zhengsheng Real Estate Co., Ltd., which is considered a

material joint venture of the Group for 31 December 2017, co-
develops a property development project with the other joint
venture partner in Mainland China and is accounted for using the

equity method.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of Wuhan Zhengsheng Real Estate Co., Ltd.

adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and reconciled to

2% TR 1) S T (T R - the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements:
R
+=A=+—H
31 December
2017
AR EF
RMB’ 000
B4 KBS 5 EY Cash and cash equivalents 56,053
oAbt By Other current assets 5,963,287
) B Current assets 6,019,340
B Non-current assets 781
SRAM > NEEE S LA TFIH Financial liabilities, excluding trade and other payables (125,982)
HoAth i 8 & 5 Other current liabilities (19,092)
B F A Current liabilities (145,074)
FRBema s A Non-current financial liabilities, excluding trade and
B 5 B FA A T e 43t A other payables and provisions (4,300,000)
FEE Net assets 1,575,047
B2 BB 8 A SE R RE AR R Reconciliation to the Group's interest in the joint venture:
754 B BT A T 1 L 191 Proportion of the Group's ownership 50%
AL E NG £ R Group’s share of net assets of the joint venture 787,524
BB 2 S RS R B E % Adjustment for unrealised profits and losses from
related party transactions (288)
16 1 e T Carrying amount of the investment 787,236
g Revenue —
B Expenses (20,048)
BiIH Tax —
9 N R 4R B A TR AR Loss and total comprehensive income for the period (20,048)

4 #t Annual Report 2017
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Notes to Financial Statements
—EF—tE+H=1+—H
31 December 2017

17. RO BEENRE @) 17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)
() N WA 4L B Ik R BB =K A () The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information
BEMCENM R ER of the Group’s joint ventures that are not individually material:
R -LE A
2017 2016

ABHTE  ARKTT
RMB'000  RMB'000

ENE A B AR Share of the joint ventures’ loss for the year (55,533) (7,205)
OB A SR 2 T i g AR Share of the joint ventures’ total

comprehensive income (55,533) (7,205)
BB 28 5 AR B AE 7% Adjustment for unrealised profics and

losses for related party transactions (632) (901)

FERMRGECEREIREEMA  Aggregate carrying amount of the Group'’s

investments in the joint ventures 617,134 46,894
KATEEDE > HNSESER The directors of the Company are of the opinion that no provision
T LS U A & s for impairment is necessary as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 as
—LER B ANETA=T— the investments in joint ventures are considered fully recoverable.
H 42 S (R - A8 A %D The joint ventures have been accounted for using the equity
TR RS N S A R AR o method in these financial statements.
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A=
31 December 2017

18. BEE IR E A

R E

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

Share of net assets

“HbE EAE

2017 2016

ABETE  ARWTT
RMB'000  RMB'000

207,587 -

A S5 1 BTG W ) 5 M WK I
AR A BR 1S B 25 W Y o 40 85

(a) AL E A A EEIT

ACEA T

Name of company

S 5 I L B B A PR A

Zhengzhou Shengqing Property

Co., Ltd.

S i 5 R B R

Suzhou Haoyi Property Co., Ltd.

MR ERERARAH

Nanjing Taiqi Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.

REMEEEEARAF

Tianjin Shunji Real Estate

Co., Ltd.

REFRENERARAR

Wuhan Qingneng Decheng
Real Estate Co., Ltd.

The Group’s trade receivable and payable balances with associates are

disclosed in note 40 to the financial statements.

()

Ak R Ay

Place and year of

registration

I
“F—tHF
Zhengzhou, PRC
2017

g
e k2
Suzhou, PRC
2017

Bl
“E—L
Nanjing, PRC
2017
HEIKE
“FtE
Tianjin, PRC
2017

B R
i S 8
Wuhan, PRC
2017

BHEA
Paid-in capital
AREETI
RMB’ 000

47,667

150,000

100,000

30,000

250,000

HHET L

Percentage of
ownership
interest
attributable
to the Group

24%

20%

20%

13%

5%

Particulars of the Group’s associates are as follows:

AR 1 A e

TEES)
Principal

activities

ESLE

Property development

UESEES

Property development

ESLE

Property development

e

Property development

ESLE

Property development

4E #t Annual Report 2017 237
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—F— A=
31 December 2017

18. SERWE Al ) 18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
@  AEEHEARFEEOT - () (a)  Particulars of the Group's associates are as follows: (Continued)
S5 T e A i
FREE

Percentage of

HHEA ownership

ol o 2 A4 Paid-in capital interest T EYGH
ANGEA Place and year of NS attributable  Principal
Name of company registration RMB’000 to the Group  activities
I A R R 285,000 20%  WFHH
Y S o2
Shanghai Xuxi Property Shanghai, PRC Property development
Co., Led. 2017
WM A B RA R R ) - 10% PR
e S v Property development
Zhengzhou Xinronggui Zhengzhou, PRC
Real Estate Co., Ltd. 2017
BRI BV E SR B A PR ] FE M 100,000 36%  WFHE
“E A Property development
Suzhou Zhengchuang Real Estate Suzhou, PRC
Development Co., Ltd. 2017

Zhenro Properties Group Led. 1E 4% 3 & A FR A 7
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—F— bt A=A
31 December 2017

18. BERWGE Al )

(b) LI S I 1 7 8 K
g N B A ER

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(b)  The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information

of the Group's associates that are not individually material:

e

2017 2016

ARWHTE  ARKTL
RMB'000  RMB'000

SRND 2 k- /Nl R Share of the associates’ loss for the year (12,269) —
A N B A TR M 2 AR AR Share of the associates total

comprehensive income (12,269) —
LB T 58 5 ) R B BUH AR A Adjustment for unrealised profits and

losses for related party transactions (557) —
A SR T T gk 2 R4 Y R TR AR Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s

investments in the associates 207,587 —

AN FIHEER S o R R A
I Gl O/ S iyl
A=+ — e R E R - B L
) B PR AR Y A S BB IR AIR

The directors of the Company ate of the opinion that no provision for
impairment is necessary as at 31 December 2017 as the investments

in associates are considered fully recoverable. The associates have been

accounted for using the equity method in these financial statements.

4 #t Annual Report 2017
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= EAR
31 December 2017

19. ¥EHEAIIE 19. DEFERRED TAX
EAERITEE e X B BN B T The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are as
follows:
B RLIE G e Deferred tax assets
ELisic fhkn
MERE  ERARN K25
flieR 554 it il
Losses available ~ Advertising fee it BERE Unrealised kit
foroffserting ~ foroffserting ~~ TERGA Accrued revenue LR
against future ~ against future ~~ Payrolland  construction received Accrued it
taxable profits  taxable profits  welfare accrual ot inadvance LAT Total

ARKTE  ARKTE ARKFL ARKEE ARRFR AREER ARRTR
RMBOWO RMBOW  RMBUW  RMBUW  RMBOW  RMBUW  RMBUW

REF-RETZA=T—HR  Ac31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016

Z-RE-A-H 3750 % 5,109 5,115 495,731 3780 582,958
ERGA/ (MR BEDEESTE Deferred tax credited (charged) to
profi or loss during the year (10,336) 220 18 (5,745) 239,192 90,786 316300

REZ=REFZA=t=RR  Ac31 December 2016a0d 1 January 2017

“E—tE-A-H 0414 2173 3,312 19370 734923 114566 898,858
BEETA/ (IR B ) BEIEERA Deferted ta credived (charged) o

profi or Loss during the year 26,125 (2,189) 1979 1652 239493 36,803 318734

REF-HFZASt-R Ac3] December 2017 48539 8 721 3,803 974416 151369 127,592
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—EF—tFE+H=1+—H
31 December 2017

19. BHEBLH 20) 19. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)
A0 S B TR E e AT A Y S ) The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are as
T (#) follows: (Continued)
IEAERLE A Deferred tax liabilities
BEYREE
(K2 T (E B
Fair value
adjustment
arising from
investment
properties
ANRBT T
RMB’000
RE-F-HFETZA=+—HkK At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016
ZE—NFE—H—H 488,554
A 1A 1 8 4 1R 1 R A T Deferred tax charged to profit or loss during the year 148,538
REF-ARETZHA=+—HRK At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017
—Z—t%—H—H 637,092
AF 1A 1 18 4 1R 1 R A o T Deferred tax charged to profit or loss during the year 88,449
RE-F—LFE+ZA=1—H At 31 December 2017 725,541
MBAME AT REHREEE RAM For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
DS BRI E NI o DLF A5t have been offset in the consolidated statement of financial position. The
S SR ) 1 2 4 B T 4 AT following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting
purposes:
e S w3 —EF N
+=A=+—H +ZHA=t—H
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
AR T ANR#T T
RMB'000 RMB'000
TR &5 BB R DR A TR Y Net deferred tax assets recognised
AR E B IE o V(L in the consolidated statement
of financial position 1,059,807 821,090
TR &5 BB R DR A e RR Y Net deferred tax liabilities recognised
TRAEBIIE A (8 B in the consolidated statement
of financial position (567,756) (559,324)
492,051 261,766

4 #t Annual Report 2017
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—EF—tE+H=1+—H
31 December 2017

19.

20.

Zhenro Properties Group Led. 1E 4% 3 & A FR A 7

BB )

0 AE BT E e B RO AF T BY d
T (4

RSB B )

MRPECR 3N RSB R )
e Hh B 1A B8 ST 1 S 7 A A 2 1 g b
BO& & F IR S A Bk 0% 10 T 0
Bl e FENE—H—HEE
BUWEAN _EFLEF A=+ —H
5 EE LR B 2R o it e I A B A IR 4
A T I 3 A R B o o TR
PR TR AT B 56 o A 4E 18 % 780 1 B 26 I
10% I - 748 B 28k % S5 76 R B A
AR NG N e e NG s e
H A8 2 A= Y 2 1 i 43 UK 1 J 5 280 AR T A
ﬁ,ﬁ_ o

RE-Z—tFE+ZA=+—H - M
7% 45 [ A v ) 1A bR S FF R 4 ) ZE 2
AN TR B 1 2 T H 2 1 JE A5 1 T 411 B e
ARATMEERIE - ANFERZS > A
A5 [ 1 4 19 B4 B 7 2 I ) 58 A 1T
Hh I A R o R S R A A T T
SRR AT B4 IR A B o BELA I 4
i R A% A o T 19 o I A o /A D
1) 5 A B 1) B 22 AR A LA B N
R 3,275,407,000 76 (ZF—R 4« AR
#1,823,348,000 7C) °

uAk i A B

BAFEFME AR SR E
W B Y

19.

20.

Trust fund investments, at fair value

Less: Current portion

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are as

follows: (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The Group is therefore liable
for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008.

As at 31 December 2017, no deferred tax has been recognised for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings that
are subject to withholding taxes of the Group's subsidiaries established
in Mainland China. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
Group’s fund will be retained in Mainland China for the expansion of
the Group's operation, so it is not probable that these subsidiaries will
distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount
of temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries in
Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised
totalled approximately RMB3,275,407,000 (2016: RMB1,823,348,000).

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

“EEE CF R
2017 2016
ARKTE  ARBTT
RMB'000 RMB'000

5,000 —
5,000 —

FF BRI 73

Non-current portion — —

LRSS RE - B
ity s G » A AR -

The above investments consist of trust fund investments which were

designated as available-for-sale financial assets and measured at fair value.
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—F— bt A=A
31 December 2017

21. P#EhE

21. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

“HbE EAE
2017 2016
ARWTE  ARMT
RMB'000 RMB'000

Jit—H — H r i Carrying amount at 1 January 37,524,366 39,512,885
WE Additions 13,342,162 17,227,538
AR A A AR (BT 15) Transferred from prepaid land

lease payments (note 15) 12,584,734 315,841
A 2 R B B R L (M 22) Transferred to completed properties

held for sale (note 22) (22,338,959) (18,844,811)
Tl 2 1 B2 (58 14) Transferred to investment properties (note 14) (317,154) (963,522)
B R (B R 18 (B 3E 6) Impairment losses recognised (note 6) (74,030) (19,747)
ERERHELE LR TY¥E Impairment losses transferred to

A R 18 (B E 22) completed properties held for sale (note 22) 81,649 296,182

A+ A=+ — H iR Carrying amount at 31 December 40,802,768 37,524,366

7% 2 [ Y B 3% v ) SO0 I A R L
S

REFE—LFETH=1—H  &4%LMH
00 T 49\ R %5 26,640,857,000 7G (=
TN NRM14,015,451,0007C) f
e ECEM » HAEBERNHR
17 B FEAbAS SRR (B 5E 29)

The Group’s properties under development are situated on leasehold lands
in Mainland China.

At 31 December 2017, the Group's properties under development with
an aggregate carrying amount of approximately RMB26,640,857,000
(2016: RMB14,015,451,000) were pledged to secure bank and other

borrowings granted to the Group (note 29).

4 #t Annual Report 2017
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“EB— A=
31 December 2017

21. WEPWE )
B o ) S (R B T

21. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT (Continued)

The movements in provision for impairment of properties under

development are as follows:
e
2017 2016

ABHTE  ARKTT
RMB'000  RMB'000

it —H — H iR (E Carrying amount at 1 January 97,375 373,810
CHERR A S 18 (i 5E 6) Impairment losses recognised (note 6) 74,030 19,747
R FE LB C R LN Impairment losses transferred to

WA R (i 5E 22) completed properties held for sale (note 22) (81,649) (296,182)
R+ A=+ —Hi AR (A Carrying amount at 31 December 89,756 97,375

P % v ) S B (R (LS ot AR A o
PR Th (L A T [ < CBHE (B
HERARBREE) AR/ EE - A
FAE RS RA AR HEEA TS
oL A TR 8 4 52 5 B A g ]
B ARG B A -

244 Zhenro Properties Group Led. 1E 45 Hi & A F A

The value of properties under development is assessed at the end of the
reporting period. An impairment exists when the carrying value exceeds
its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal. The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based
on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable market prices less incremental

costs for disposing of the asset.
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S A e
31 December 2017

22. FEIB TR LYE

22. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

“HbE EAE
2017 2016
ARWTE  ARMT
RMB'000 RMB'000

iv—H—H W IREE Carrying amount at 1 January 9,526,678 2,564,430
T BHEE P2 (BT 21) Transferred from properties under

development (note 21) 22,338,959 18,844,811
Tl 2 1 B2 (58 14) Transferred to investment properties (note 14) — (185,813)
R 23 B AN (R 6) Transferred to cost of sales (note 6) (15,753,173)  (11,669,971)
B MG TE S (BT 6) Impairment losses written off (note 6) 72,330 269,403
TR ) B rh gy SE R R (B R R (FfE 5 21) Impairment losses transferred from

properties under development (note 21) (81,649) (296,182)
A = — H R Carrying amount at 31 December 16,103,145 9,526,678

REZFE—CEFZA=+—H A%H
AR (A N R 2,414,963,000 76 (%
=N KR 4,247,233,000 76) B FEAE
WED R TYECHEM > HAEMER
1 $R4T B FAth S R AE IS (B 5E 29) o

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's completed properties held for sale
with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately RMB2,414,963,000
(2016: RMB4,247,233,000) were pledged to secure bank and other
borrowings granted to the Group (note 29).
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“EB— A=
31 December 2017

22. e TYE
FEIE 45 L5 T 10 R A 0
T

A=A — B IR
Ll AR B (W E 6)
A B S R B 1R (5E 21)

22. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE (Continued)

The movements in provision for impairment of completed properties held

for sale are as follows:

“F b —F AR
2017 2016
ARMBFL  ARHTT
RMB'000 RMB'000

Carrying amount at 1 January 69,638 42,859
Impairment losses writrten off (note 6) (72,330) (269,403)
Impairment losses transferred from

properties under development (note 21) 81,649 296,182

R ZH=+—HBRIE(HE

Carrying amount at 31 December 78,957 69,638

FRIE 8 O 3% T 3€ 00 (B (E 8 4% i 0]
AT At o v e T 0 L T i o] < 25 (B
HAFEB S AN B R ) > AR5
T (E o P B A A R E
FE A1 22 By v B A R B 8 4 2 5 9
75 e T AR T (O A S E R R
A o
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The value of completed properties held for sale is assessed at the end of
each reporting period. An impairment exists when the carrying value
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less
costs of disposal. The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is
based on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable market prices less incremental

costs for disposing of the asset.
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—EF—tFE+H=1+—H
31 December 2017

23. RS MEWOK IR 23. TRADE RECEIVABLES
ZFUE CEFRE
2017 2016
AT ARWTL
RMB'000 RMB'000
B 5 e iR Trade receivables 15,605 10,205
WAE Impairment — —
15,605 10,205
B e E BRI E 4 o A Trade receivables mainly represent rentals receivable from tenants. The
45 [ 3 R 3 LR i [m] R i K T Ak A e A Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables.
Pl o S & R R @Ay o B Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by management. In view of
L E BTl R A 42 [ 1 R 5 E U SO the aforementioned and the fact that the Group's trade receivables
RRKENSEFWEE > WEEKEH relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is no significant
L 4 R o concentration of credit risk.
25 RE U 2 I H R R o B 5 E Trade receivables are unsecured and non-interest-bearing. The carrying
WA TE ) B T (B LN P AR o N4 amounts of trade receivables approximate to their fair values. An aging
A R LA B B H Y K 5 R i R analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the reporting period,
IRES AT based on the invoice date, is as follows:
e e L
2017 2016
ANBW T ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000
—IER Less than 1 year 11,693 10,205
—4ED) | Over 1 year 3912 —

15,605 10,205
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—EF—tE+H=1+—H
31 December 2017

23.

24.

Zhenro Properties Group Led. 1E 4% 3 & A FR A 7

S50 ME Wk ca0)

B oA A 39 R B (L F B WA R T K
IR R A RCER I Z UL R -

O 780 0 EL A 3ok (L 1 B MR B R
ALEEA RIS sk B E S -
RIPBEL S AAFAEERL > wR
i BB 200 0 3 A B AL RS R A
0 AT 2 B o W R S S A
BR AT A -

TS K~ 4 B U fib HEWK
L]

BiL - 4 5 HEE A IR B TR £+ 5

&
S - O A8 0 LA TR
oAt mT i 2 IR

R WS Y8 2~ ) 945 R R

AT AT BA
JISER-EiES LS siikRE¢:]
HoAl e E

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of
independent customers that have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are of the opinion
that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances
as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the

balances are still considered fully recoverable.

24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES

=t ST
2017 2016
ANRHEFL AREFL
RMB'000 RMB'000
Prepayments related to land use rights 4,919,534 —
Deposits 2,653,754 696,731
Prepayments for acquisition of land use rights 2,252,435 305,786
Other tax recoverable 1,336,866 1,280,497

Due from non-controlling shareholders
of the subsidiaries 479,138 571,270
Prepayments for construction cost 85,362 49,283
Prepayments for investment in a joint venture — 116,141
Other receivables 88,469 72,166

11,815,558 3,091,874

TR FIA ~ e B L R W I 7% 4K
i AEE B H I E R R o R s
A0 s TR R 2 e B A T K
TR (B RHR AT AT 48

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables are unsecured, non-interest-
bearing and have no fixed terms of repayment. There was no provision
made for impairment of prepayments, deposits and other receivables

during the reporting period.
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25. B RBEHEY - ZRH

25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, RESTRICTED

Bl& R e Ak

CASH AND PLEDGED DEPOSITS

e e L

2017 2016

AR ARETFT

RMB'000 RMB'000

Bl K ERAT A R Cash and bank balances 19,666,268 18,506,779
W A2 PR B 4 Less: Restricted cash 3,931,480 2,984,436
[REjiR T Pledged deposits 1,195,303 832,654
14,539,485 14,689,689

MBEA BT BIEH - AEBRETE
7 BR8N AR T B SR AR B R A
ERITHRF R E T - R _F—LF
ToA=t—H ZZRHEHEAAR
#52.506,480,000 TG (& —754E © AR
2,984,436,00078) ° R —F—LHFE+ A
=+—H > ZWRH a8 E NERA
R H1,425,000,000 76 > J5 i A< 45 B #E 15
IR T =M1 H 5 31 1A J 4 5 1A A7 R 3R e
AL o

R-Z—tFE+ZA=+—H BHA
R#1,195,303,000 76 (=& —N 4« AR
5 832,654,000 7C ) A SR A7 17 5k L R4
5 F B 5 44 B8 5 - TH H R 0
i BB T SRAT I BB AT SR AT R LR
BRI -

Pursuant to relevant regulations in the PRC, certain property
development companies of the Group are required to place certain
amounts of cash in the designated bank accounts for a specified use. As at
31 December 2017, the restricted cash amounted to RMB2,506,480,000
(2016: RMB2,984,436,000). As at 31 December 2017, the restricted
cash included time deposits amounting to RMB1,425,000,000, which
mature more than three months when acquired by the Group and earn

interest at the time deposit rates.

As at 31 December 2017, bank deposits of RMB1,195,303,000 (2016:
RMB832,654,000) were pledged as security for purchasers’ mortgage
loans, construction of projects, or pledged to banks as collateral for

issuance of bank acceptance notes.
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25.

26.

Zhenro Properties Group Led. 1E 4% 3 & A FR A 7

Blax B Bl & ~ Z R
Bl B CE AR a0

25.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, RESTRICTED
CASH AND PLEDGED DEPOSITS (Continued)

SR DA
2017 2016
ANR¥EFILT ANRETT
RMB'000 RMB'000

B BB EY) Cash and cash equivalents
PN RMEFHE Denominated in RMB 14,509,399 14,689,689
DL CEHE Denominated in HKD 64 —
PLETEHE Denominated in USD 30,022 =
14,539,485 14,689,689

ARBAG AR A IBER > HiR
458 v 0 1R B A R AR 491 ) B A6
15 ME S ST MR LR R ) - AR 4 1 A
FHEAE AT 1 HE 5 1O SRAT o N\ IR S e
RN -

BATH S RIEE B RAT A M R B
FIFFHE o SATAE BRAF I AT R 40T
BRAOMB AT RIRAT - B KB E%H
9y Y B T SR P (EL AR

S50 ME Ak sk T B B 4R
ISET e I PP RS L
5 M IR SOAE 4 BRI AT A0 T

26.

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange

business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with
no recent history of default. The carrying amounts of the cash and cash

equivalents approximate to their fair values.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES
An aging analysis of the Group's trade and bills payables as at the end of

the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

R ZERHE

2017 2016

ANRHEFL ARETE

RMB'000 RMB'000

—4ER Within 1 year 5,461,411 5,428,244
—4EDL k- Over 1 year 78,441 78,197
5,539,852 5,506,441

B 5 BEAH SR AR R B — R
RTEEELH -

Trade payables are unsecured and interest-free and are normally settled

based on the progress of construction.
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27.

28.

b Aok sk 95 B M it ¢

27. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

= A
2017 2016
ARKTFE  ARKTE
RMB'000 RMB'000

S+ 3 5 R R R P 4 4 Deposits related to land use rights 2,737,349 —
e JB 2 ) M B SR K Advances from non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries 851,470 68,600
HEMBEELS Retention deposits related to construction 351,086 512,420
JREART Interest payable 161,731 102,067
JE A T B A A Payroll and welfare payable 112,288 74,463
Y8 B A B Deposits related to sales of properties 78,950 37,329
A Business tax and surcharges 69,405 43,390
i 2 Maintenance fund 61,970 78,520
1§ B #K Advances from employees 145 697
Htr Others 46,850 50,547
4,471,244 968,033

B R 2 ) 2 M M SR A o 5K
YA B BGRCREAEAT ~ AN S R S % 2R
B o H At B AT SRR 45 4% S R Y A F
(P BELFCAR B P R T (AR A

% Fi 8k

5B AR 4 R s RS
ST A H ORI 88 B R & A R

R HSCHR 9 T SE A B AR s ¢

Other payables and advances from non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and repayable on
demand. The fair values of other payables at the end of each of the

reporting periods approximated to their corresponding carrying amounts.

28. ADVANCES FROM CUSTOMERS

Advances from customers represent the sales proceeds received from
buyers in connection with the Group’s pre-sale of properties by the end of
the reporting period and the commercial rental service fee received from

lessees.
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29. wl BT B I Ab AT % 29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS
“FtE RN
2017 2016
PR ) ElAlE )
Effective interest A AT Effective interest H ARETT
rate (%) Maturity RMB 000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
M
Current
TR - sBE  “FAE 250,000 -
Bank loans — secured 5.23-6.00 2018
SRATES - A 5908950  “F-AE 230,000 850  ZF—tf 120,000
Bank loans — unsecured 5.90-9.50 2018 8.50 2017
FAb sk - A 4155890 ZENE 4106572 630%15.62  “F—tE 3,474,624
Other loans - secured 475-8.90 2018 6.30-15.62 2017
Ak - S 8408890  “F-ME 688,416 6.00%9.50 “E-tE 850,000
Other loans - unsecured 8.40-8.90 2018 6.00-9.50 2017
RMRAT Sk A - 1 428%7.00 “F0\E 7,032,732 5718735 “F-tF 1,346,701
Current portion of long term bank loans — secured 4.28-7.00 2018 5.77-73) 2017
RM T sk A - A 499 ZE)\E 33,400 113 ZEiE 148,437
Current portion of long term bank loans — unsecured 499 2018 713 2017
R A S MM 2 - 1 5.50£15.05 ZF0E 7,660,637 5.64%1023 “E-tE 4,044,393
Cutrent portion of long term other loans - secured 5.50-15.05 2018 5.64-10.23 2017
RSB - Ak 6.50%8.50 “E- )\ 980,000  7.49%13.80 “FtE 335,000
Current portion of long term other loans — unsecured 6.50-8.50 2018 749-13.80 2017
20,981,757 10,319,155
et
Non-current
RATER-HHEN 428%712 TR 7,722,609 6.00%7.15 “ENE 6,310,945
2
Bank loans — secured 4.28-7.12 2021 6.00-7.15 2018-19
AT ES - S 499%830  ZFTCE 1,705,859 -
Bank loans — unsecured 499-8.30 2022
JAb g - H A 5508900  ZRKE 9531953 5551505  “E-AE 17,862,161
ETAE
Other loans — secured 5.50-9.00 2021 .95 - 15.09 2018 - 21
ot Sk - A 900 “ENE 19000  475%7d9  CE-AE 541,800
Other loans - unsecured 9.00 2019 475-749 2018
19,079,421 24,714,906
40,061,178 35,034,061

Zhenro Properties Group Led. 1E 4% 3 & A FR A 7
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29.

wt B 8T B A A K ) 29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (Conrinued)
—F-tHE ZF-RE
2017 2016
AR ARETFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
ik Analysed into:

TR — N fE Repayable within one year 20,981,757 10,319,155
JEINGE AEMEE Repayable in the second year 13,585,642 17,427,532
TR = B8 hAR AR Repayable in the third to fifth years 5,493,779 7,287,374
INEF Subtotal 19,079,421 24,714,906
40,061,178 35,034,061

AL BRI AN R EHE -

AFE—bLEF A= —H s AEE
i 1 3K 2 N R ¥ 3,664,674,000 76 (— F
— N NRH3,477,075,00078) > B4
TFEER o

The Group's borrowings are denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s borrowings of RMB3,664,674,000
(2016: RMB3,477,075,000) were borrowings with floating interest rate.
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29. wh B #AT BRI a0 29.

7% S T A A T SRAT S H A 5 ek 4 A
TR SRR T (B80T B S M

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (Continued)
Certain of the Group’s bank and other borrowings are secured by the

pledges of the following assets with carrying values at the end of the

reporting period as follows:

R S v S TR

+ZA=Z+—H +tZHA=+—H

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

AR T AR BT T

RMB'000 RMB'000

BB (T 14) Investment properties (note 14) 5,742,689 4,059,220

TEAT AR AT (BT 15) Prepaid land lease payments (note 15) 2,350,418 4,442,747

BER A ERZE (L7 Investments in joint ventures (note 17) 38,617 —

BB 2 (R 5 21) Properties under development (note 21) 26,640,857 14,015,451

FRfE B B E % T (M5 22) Completed properties held for sale (note 22) 2,414,963 4,247,233

S PR Bl Restricted cash 425,000 —
WoE—tE+-A=Z+—H > BiEL As at 31 December 2017, Mr. Ou Zongrong, Mr. Ou Guoqiang and Mr.

S~ R B g o A R B £ o 2 (40 R
[FEI ISR 1) DA IE 28 42 [ A BRA ] (T IE4E
F£ /A ) 19270,252,000 B (ZF— K
1 162,151,200 ) B B4R A S B 25 T
A H A R ¥ 745,902,000 6 (ZF — R
M KR 346,153,000 70) A EL A AE 2K o

REF—LFETA=Z+T—H EEE
B A E O A E AT AR AR
11,473,132,000 76 (= F — 78 4F « AR B
15,600,789,000 JT ) A $R AT B H Ath i 3k 1
AR o

AFE—LET A=+ —H o B

RE S T A B AR 4822,895,000

fu(‘ =N AR 3,380,328,000
T6) B ERAT B F A A SRR 4 AR

REZB—tFEFTH=1T—H  EX%£
VB ) e i R G [ A S [ T
AEH A R H9,855,542,000 76 (= F—78
M0 KR W 7,411,408,000 76 ) FOSRAT E 3K
T AR o

254 Zhenro Properties Group Led. 1E 45 Hi & A F A A

Ou Guowei (collectively referred to as the “Controlling Shareholders”), have
pledged 270,252,000 shares (2016: 162,151,200) of 1 5% £ [& 47 PR /2 7]
(“Zhenro Group Company”) for certain of the Group's other borrowings up to
RMB745,902,000 (2016: RMB346,153,000).

As at 31 December 2017, Zhenro Group Company has guaranteed certain
of the Group's bank and other borrowings up to RMB11,473,132,000
(2016: RMB15,600,789,000).

As at 31 December 2017, the Controlling Shareholders have guaranteed
certain of the bank and other borrowings up to RMB4,822,895,000 (2016:
RMB3,380,328,000).

As at 31 December 2017, Zhenro Group Company and the Controlling
Shareholders have jointly guaranteed certain of the Group's bank loans up
to RMB9,855,542,000 (2016: RMB7,411,408,000).
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29.

30.

wl BT Be LA 3K a0)

RoFE—LF+H=1—H K&EH
BLVE 7 2 BN R 176,000,000 76 (= %
— N4 AR ¥926,190,000 C) 1 A B
BB R AR TS R o AE A EUR A
LR 2,326,080,000 TG (& — /N4 ¢
N B # 484,350,000 76 ) 19 847 K H At £
AL & o

RoZ—t&E+ZA=+—H H=)
i3 4 T IR A PR A R O A 4 M
AN B 499,945,000 TG (2 F — 8
A ) B SRAT B AE 1 o

AN FE G TR > FE AT R A
BB P BLL AR AR A > FER K
R BE B P R % 5 D 2 BLAT T 4
I 258 778 A A T LA 57 565 = Ty < il 1 R
fEt o

29.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has pledged future proceeds in
respect of properties sold amounting to RMB176,000,000 (2016:
RMB926,190,000) as collateral to secure bank and other borrowings
amounting to RMB2,326,080,000 (2016: RMB484,350,000).

As at 31 December 2017, a third party 4 £ B B 7 A PR 22 7 has
guaranteed certain of the Group's bank loans up to RMB499,945,000
(2016: Nil).

The management of the Company has assessed that the fair values of
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the fact that such borrowings were made between
the Group and independent third party financial institutions based on

prevailing market interest rates.

Nl % 30. CORPORATE BOND
i S 3 “Ff
—A—H +ZA=1+—H
LRIES BA &R
1January  ZZF—44 31 December
2017 R BRI 2017
a4 Opening Issued in Interest ik Closing
Name of bond balance 2017 expense Payment balance
ABWTT  ARMTFZ  ARMTFT  ARWTT  ARKTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB’000 RMB 000
R Zhenro Bond | 1,988,777 — 141,582 128000 2,002359
“E-RE “FNE
—A—H toAZ+-H
LRIE IR SR
1 January ZE-RE 31 December
2016 #iTE MERX 2016
{41 Opening Issued in Interest ffa Closing
Name of bond balance 2016 expense Payment balance
ANRET I ARETT AR FTFx ARET NE#Fr
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R Zhenro Bond I — 19577% 30,987 — 1988777
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30. A% 30. CORPORATE BOND (Concinued)

REAEBR » A LB EEEN A FAES
wr

As at the end of each of the years, the Group’s corporate bond was

repayable as follows:

B S v S e AT

+ZA=+—H +ZHA=Z+—H

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

AR ANR#TT

RMB'000 RMB'000

JRE A — 4 (1 f Repayable within one year 2,002,359 —
JRETA — AR N R Repayable within two to five years — 1,988,777
2,002,359 1,988,777

REF—ANETHTH AEBENEE
A J 2 ) TG s b R AT AR G B A AN R
#2,000,000,000 JC 19 = 4F 1] A ] & 5
(MEAAEZ 1) » 50 BG5S i
BT o IEAE TN B M S E 0 A
R4 7 E > EH _F—LF+HT
HEREFEN A+ H Rk EmsEr+ A+
H 08 26 H 4 30T o BN IR AT LA
1% > A 4 T R B A7 WO 15 T T A8 A
R #1,957,790,000 TG © B E =T — A4
koZ—tE+ A=+ —HILEERN
AR 7.229% ©

MR IE SR R 25 TR M T TG 5 b/ ]
SRR A AR A R 2 () 0
E) > BRSRRA N TEERIR A AR %
FASE A B R A B 80 100% 75 I 22 I A b
AT H R R B R A LSRG (B A A (R
RS BT LG L o PRI
“F-tFETZA=ZT—B AR—F
M

256 Zhenro Properties Group Led. 1E 45 Hi & A L A A

On 10 October 2016, Jiangxi Real Estate, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group issued a three-year corporate bond with a principal amount of
RMB2,000,000,000 (“Zhenro Bond I"), which was listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange. Zhenro Bond I is denominated in RMB and bears
interest rate at 6.4% per annum, payable annually in arrears on or on the
business day nearest to 10 October of each year, beginning 10 October
2017. After deducting the issuance costs, the Group received net proceeds
of RMB1,957,790,000 from the issuance. The effective interest rate is
7.22% on an annual basis for the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2017.

According to the terms of Zhenro Bond I, Jiangxi Real Estate may at its
option adjust the interest rate at the end of the second year which will be
fixed in the remaining period, and the bondholders may at their option
sell the bond back to Jiangxi Real Estate at the end of the second year, in
whole or in part, at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the
bond plus accrued and unpaid interest to the option exercise date. Hence,

it was repayable within one year as at 31 December 2017.
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30. Al fE%R )

31.

AR HERRAR - O R R AR R
GIESS S 3G RN KR E WY FYS
R 1 e IR 208 A0 O R R AR
AR 4R I FERR -

0 A R T A A o O B 0 0 AR
AT Sl 645 7 T R R AL R 20 Y
B IR BULA o B R AR
it {9 B A A o

A E—tE+ZA=+—H > ARE

F 198 T8 B N B 2,002,078,000 7 (=
Z—RF - NRH1,996,770,000 78) © 2
AR 5 R w5 B R T E R o 0T
74 5 7 AT I IE 2805 55 109 A PR
OV N B B A o — > TR R
B RIS G B B e

30.

CORPORATE BOND (Continued)

After initial recognition, the corporate bond is subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as

well as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included

in finance costs in profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2017, the fair value of the corporate bond was
RMB2,002,078,000 (2016: RMB1,996,770,000). The fair value is
calculated using the market price of the bond on those dates. The fair
value measurement of Zhenro Bond I issued by Jiangxi Real Estate is
categorised within level 1 of fair value hierarchy as it is listed on the

Shanghai Stock Exchange.

JBe A 31. SHARE CAPITAL
JBe A Shares
e A
+ZA=+—H +ZHA=+—H
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
En En
Us$ US$
BEE Authorised:
5,000,000 &I {E 0.01 35 7T 5,000,000 ordinary shares
1132328 e of US$0.01 each 50,000 50,000
EBIT RBHAE Issued and fully paid:
50,000 B4 B T 0.01 25 7T A K 78 50,000 ordinary shares at US$0.01 each
(ZF—NE+H=1+—H: (31 December 2016: 1 ordinary share)
1 B % ) 500 —

R-F—-LFE+ZA=+—H> &A2HA
)] Warm Shine Limited * RoYue Limited °
RoSheng Limited * RoJing Limited & Sky
Bridge Limited 73 il il %% 3,619 ¢ ~ 37,876
B~ 3,630 % ~ 2,375 Bt K 2,500 e &
B > AN R R C B ATIROAR B 500 E T ©

As at 31 December 2017, 3,619, 37,876, 3,630, 2,375 and 2,500
ordinary shares of US$0.01 each were allotted by the Company to Warm
Shine Limited, RoYue Limited, RoSheng Limited, RoJing Limited and
Sky Bridge Limited, respectively, then the issued share capital of the
Company was US$500.
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32. il
BHE_Z—CEFE+_A=+—HIE
FE > A B Y Gl Al 4 A LB ) 2 51
GO BRI o

) BARGME
Bt AR JE P IR 2 A TR 1 4
A LR O A o 2 ) 42 PO £
LA AR A 2 T A o 2 88
BT B B RIS R 4 B W A2
HEE -

(b) ERERFMHE

AR P B2 ] 3 T v B A A B
B A AR AR RN > AEEH
e B AR 6 B B8 1 109 42 B B
B Wkt > BET AR b st e
fEE > HEREREED Mg
7 50% £ 1k o AR B S R
7% 4 B8 A4 4 R 4 0 O ol PR A
ORIRR > 3 2 28 B fRt v A K 8
e R A B A 5 (R R
(A BR AR D A A% A 1 o M A
1 25% o fEASHAELR L HB
DA FAh 38 IR ARTBAE A Bl
JEEL AR o

Zhenro Properties Group Led. 1E 4% 3 & A FR A 7

P

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for
the year ended 31 December 2017 are presented in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity.

(a) Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid for acquisition of non-controlling
interests in subsidiaries. Details of the movements in capital reserve

are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(b) Statutory surplus reserves

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the articles of
association of the subsidiaries established in the PRC, the Group
is required to appropriate 10% of its net profits after tax, as
determined under the Chinese Accounting Standards, to the
statutory surplus reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of
its registered capital. Subject to certain restrictions set out in the
relevant PRC regulations and in the articles of association of the
Group, the statutory surplus reserves may be used either to offset
losses, or to be converted to increase share capital provided that the
balance after such conversion is not less than 25% of the registered
capital of the Group. The reserve cannot be used for purposes other
than those for which it is created and is not distributable as cash
dividends.
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32.

33.

fitt 485 40)

) AP
AL A B e A R A K E
AL 5T B AN A T B MR AEE S 2 ) 1
REAE A R BV BT IR AR e AR 42 31
BRI /A 725 T B 2 v M i
BAEANEE -

AR EE A I
Ro-Z—tE+ZA=+—H &EH
() B o 2 0 1 4% 7 8 P A 4 A PR )
([IE 28 Hh e P 1 ) 647 A A s A IR
% 3,000,000,000 TG ) 1K # 7k A& A 35
F([ KA BEARBSR]) o BT AL
¥ BT A5 3K JE T 48 25\ R 2,974,443,000
TG o IF 4% Hi 2 P T 3R AT I K A B AR T
R EAE T o 3% TELSIG 4 3 B Y > W
0 IR 4 AT Fh OE 4% Hb 7 A Y R 2R 48 R
A} B 43 IR HE 1A A vk I 4 B A o 5%k
AEARTE S 0] AT N R - 247 A
98 5 1) 2 90 RO VR R, > U2 e R
1t e BT L 1 UK B 1) KA AR 7 S
HAMEH IR o B> KR AEAERD
BIAMELR TH s & BRI RN
FIVERESS o

5,

33.

RESERVES (Continued)

(c) Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents the issued capital
of the then holding company of the companies now comprising
the Group and the capital contributions from the equity holders
of certain subsidiaries now comprising the Group before the

completion of the Corporate Restructuring and the Reorganisation.

PERPETUAL CAPITAL SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2017, a subsidiary of the Group, 1F 4% Hi 7 % B A
A FRA 7] (“Zhenro Property Holding”) issued subordinated perpetual
capital securities (the “Perpetual Capital Securities”) with the aggregate
principal amount of RMB3,000,000,000. Net proceeds after deducting
the issuance cost amounted to RMB2,974,443,000. The perpetual capital
securities issued by Zhenro Property Holding are unsecured. There is
no maturity of the instruments and the payments of distribution can
be deferred at the discretion of Zhenro Property Holding and there
is no limit as to the number of times of deferral of distribution. The
perpetual capital securities are callable by the issuer. When the issuer
elects to declare dividends to their ordinary shareholders, the issuer shall
make distribution to the holders of perpetual capital securities at the
distribution rate as defined in the subscription agreement. Therefore,
the Perpetual Capital Securities are classified as equity instruments and

recorded in equity in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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34. BAE LA R 34.

il 4 B e B

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

il BEITR HHREEE
HAbfE % 30) s mARER
Interest-bearing N TR AFBIE  Total liabilities
bank and other Corporate Dueto Due torelated from financing
borrowings bond  shareholders companies activities

ARHTE  ARETE  ARKFZ  ARWTZ  ARKTZ
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

REF—RE—H—H  Ac1 January 2016 25,358,355 — 94,192 144240 25,596,787
METGFHHEERE  Cash flows from financing activities 9,675,706 1,957,790 (14,336) (134,778) 11,484,382
FREEHIERERE Cash flows from

non-financing activities — — — (1,814) (1,814)
FREED : Non-cash changes:
JESHRIE (B ek 30) Accrual of interest (note 30) — 30,987 - - 30,987
R4 At 31 December 2016
FZAZ+-AR and 1 January 2017
“Zt5-A-A 35034061 1988777 79,856 7648 37,110,342
BEEBEHERE  Cash flows from financing activities 5,027,117 — (79,856) 781,404 5,728,665
FREFEHIERERE Cash flows from
non-financing activities - - - 12,228 12,228
FREED : Non-cash changes:
TGS (FHE 30) Accrual of interest (note 30) — 13,582 — — 13,582
REF—tL5 At 31 December 2017
FZA=Et—H 40,061,178 2,002,359 — 801,280 42,864,817

Zhenro Properties Group Led. 1E 4% 3 & A FR A 7



B 25 e o B

Notes to Financial Statements
—F— Lt AZ
31 December 2017

35. B ERHERIRERMIER 35

¥ ik 8 24 )
A4 S 7 K H R B
RS -

= =

PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material non-controlling

interests were set out below:

31 December 2017

AHE
Fe b IR hE 2
BRI R AR,
RERE A Y (& 18)
BHEE 2 Profit/(loss)  FEHERRERS
Percentage for the Biithitk
of equity period Accumulated
interest held allocated balances
by non- to non- of non-
controlling  controlling  controlling
interests interests interests
% ARWTLT ARETT
% RMB’000 RMB’000
TR E Pingtan Real Estate 49.00 109,535 164,660
RN E Suzhou Real Estate 37.29 (11,024) 188,367
RN 5 b Suzhou Property 48.09 38,510 266,506
Y Hefei Yongtuo 75.00 (15,877) 284,123
—FE-ANFE+_H=+—H 31 December 2016
iy LE 2633 AR
MESEREAI IR
BRI MAERERA R
Percentage Profit for o S
of equity the year Accumulated
interest held allocated balances
by non- to non- of non-
controlling  controlling  controlling
interests interests interests
% ARWTL ARWTIL
% RMB’000 RMB’000
BREX Mawei Real Estate 37.50 — 70,095
R B2 Suzhou Real Estate 37.29 — 199,391
TR N 5 Suzhou Property 48.09 — 227,998
BERRE Nanjing Investment 49.00 — 297,602
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35. B E R RAERIES 35
% B A v )
T L O A 0 B
Ko 6 09 % R 5 A 24 7 A

B company eliminations:

PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information

of the above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed are before any inter-

31 December 2017

~F— A=A

FEEE HMEE  ENERE Ak
Pingtan Suzhou Suzhou Hefei
Real Estate  Real Estate Property Yongtuo
AREFL  AREFL  AR¥FFL  AR¥FL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
g Revenue 1,561,428 671,375 1,490,955 458
B S 4R Total expenses (1,177,681) (639,177)  (1,379,356) (28,557)
FrisBib Income tax expense (160,206) (61,762) (31,521) 6,930
SRR/ (ER) R 2RI 4% Profit/(loss) and total
comprehensive income for the year 223,541 (29,564) 80,078 (21,169)
HEEE Current assets 628,960 1,543,157 2,617,110 2,514,811
FRE Non-current assets 29,257 18,025 18,171 13,334
BRI Current liabilities (322,176)  (1,056,042) (2,081,098  (1,678,433)
FErEafE Non-current liabilities — — — (470,882)
TR T R B R R R Net cash flows used in
operating activities (89,038) (16,007) (364,768) (355,845)
BEwBHGE,/ R BHEREFHE  Net cash flows from/(used in)
investing activities — 330 15 (714)
REEB G/ () B ERRFH  Net cash flows from/(used in)
financing activities (2,617) 189,436 381,632 538,343
B4 RESSEWRM,/ (8D) B4 Net increase/(decrease) in
cash and cash equivalents (91,655) 173,759 16,879 181,784
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S A e
31 December 2017

35. A EAEREIRMERMIESR 35

PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL

H BB A ) 4 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)
—_EF—-ANF+_H=+—H 31 December 2016
EREE% B EE WM 7 Mg
Mawei Suzhou Suzhou Nanjing
Real Estate Real Estate Property Investment
ANREFE  ARETT ARETLT ARETL
RMB 000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
e Revenue — 1,293,355 414,323 —
PR S 4 Total expenses (41411)  (1,102,415) (404,413) (58,461)
RES b Income tax expense — (47,786) (2,516) 14,089
EREH/ (E1E) RETEA%E  Profit/(loss) and total
comprehensive income for the year (41,411) 143,154 7,394 (44,372)
RE B Current assets 2,272,990 1,594,803 3,500,194 7,022,007
FEREEE Non-current assets 116,759 4,380 20,476 109,245
nE A Current liabilities (2,115,191) (715,935) (2,575,484  (5,518,721)
T A Non-current liabilities (87,638) (348,545) (471,080)  (1,001,179)
BB RS IR Net cash flows from
operating activities 121,289 250,920 1,246,685 1,266,456
BREEH T AREREFE Net cash flows used in
investing activities (19,118) (124) 45) —
BUEIEEI TS/ (BT R B W E R4 Net cash flows from/(used in)
financing activities 184,787 (268,086) (1,177,951) (870,035)
Be LB 45BN/ (W)) 5% Net increase/(decrease) in
cash and cash equivalent 286,958 (17,290) 68,689 396,421
4 #t Annual Report 2017
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36. HAHE A W

(1) FRMIEREERRARA A
(BR M IEAD)

R H A = F— LA N H
PR B i ok > AR SR I DL AR
64,000,000 7G Y A 5 17 4% 1 482 16
SEAT BRA 7 S b i A e B
SE A PR R B A R TE A Y
64% BEHE o AUE 14857 i B B

36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(1)  Suzhou Zhengchuang Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(B IE A B E B R A IR 7] ) (Suzhou Zhengchuang)

Pursuant to the share transfer agreement dated 6 September
2017, the Group disposed of its 64% equity interest in Suzhou
Zhengchuang to Suzhou Jinhui Juye Co., Ltd. (M SRR
PR 23 7]) and Shanghai Sunac Property Development Group Co.,
Led. (V8 A 5o Mz B 5% 45 85 PR N ] ) for a consideration of
RMB64,000,000. The consideration was determined by reference

FR) A JRE 6 (B 7 E to the corresponding value of the equity interest disposed of.
A H B BRNIERI 2 B E LA The carrying values of the assets and liabilities of Suzhou
RAIRE E T Zhengchuang on the date of disposal were as follows:
ANRWT T
RMB’000
B BB EEY) Cash and cash equivalents 1,107
R EY/E S Properties under development 935,337
FABFEAT I - Bl s K ERE Other payables, deposits received and accruals (601,661)
JREAST BT W ) sk D Due to related companies (235,707)
99,076
649 JBOHE R MR T (1 The carrying value of 64% equity interest 63,409
HH B AR M IE 8 1 4 2 Gain on disposal of Suzhou Zhengchuang 591
DABL g AT Satisfied by cash 64,000

A BB ERIN B & BBl &%
BEWRA T AT

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect

of the disposal of Suzhou Zhengchuang is as follows:

HerE Cash consideration 64,000
6 1 B R Y Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (1,107)
A B RN A BB K Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of

RS EMRA T the disposal of Suzhou Zhengchuang 62,893
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36. B HIE A o )

2

MEBEHEERRA(H
S1ETH)

HAR FROR P ot — & — L4\ H
+— AT Z A ER AR - B
4 [ R B T S o B B R A
A VLV P AE 5 HhEE B A PR A A
Jo B B b 2 BE A A PR A )
(ZABTE=T) A A AR
30,000,000 7G LA U5 g i E 1E i 75 9%
WA G2 B FE B IR 2 R AR
B E 259 - T 2 3 r B TR
RORE » B2 o B 2 WA
A o

REEHS  MEEEZEERA
AR (E AT

36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

2

Nanchang Zhengrun Real Estate Co., Ltd. (ﬁﬁgﬁlfﬁ B
¥EA AW ) (Nanchang Zhengrun)

Pursuant to the resolutions of shareholders and amendments to
the articles of association of dated 11 August 2017, Lianfa Group
Nanchang Lianhong Property Development Co., Led. i %5 £€ [#]
T B R T o B A R A A Jiangxi Hongzhen Property
Development Co., Led. VL P4 ¥ 1 [ i 7 B 8% A R 24 7 and
Wuhan Runzhi Property Development Co., Led. & {# {# & &
b 7 BH B A BR A A chree independent third parties, invested
RMB30,000,000 in total to acquire 75% shares in Nanchang
Zhengrun. The Group's interest in Nanchang Zhengrun was
diluted to 25% and the Group thus lost control over Nanchang

Zhengrun, which is treated as a partial disposal of a subsidiary.

The carrying values of the assets and liabilities of Nanchang

Zhengrun on the date of capital injection were as follows:

ANRBTI
RMB’000
B BB EEY) Cash and cash equivalents 22,168
b % 4y 2 Properties under development 603,198
At A BRI~ it 4 KR Other payables, deposits received and accruals (465,550)
JRE A B i ) kA Due to related companies (151,305)
T I Net assets before capital injection 8,511
TE Capital injection 30,000
38,511
R 259% RIEM AFEFFASE Fair value of the remaining 25% equity interest
1 2E R R A included in interests in joint ventures 9,628
8 e B R 0 Gain on disposal of Nanchang Zhengrun 1,117
A BirE B IR T R Bl K Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of
B4 S B L the capital increase of Nanchang Zhengrun (22,168)

4 #t Annual Report 2017



5 25 Rk 2 Bt
Notes to Financial Statements

ZE—LEFZA=T—H
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37. AR
BRI + o R BT H P 5

37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not provided for

REBUT : in the financial statements were as follows:
e A
2017 2016
AR¥TFIT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000

[ $R AT 1 A B T AR SR T ) 3 Guarantees given to banks in connection
HARME IR with facilities granted to purchasers

of the Group's properties 21,961,434 18,129,489

AR SR B A T RAT 1 A 4 B AR
BT W) 36 H R 54T R R A
o MERIE R LR Bk - IE K HX
AR AR I AR % S RAT AR
AR I A G T 7 4 B R R AR AT
JERHALE R AR -

ek E Sl B RN T %
BT I B R RN B 5 D%
Gl A G - % ST M A
B S I A DR A
FRH -

7% S T A 07 R0 o 52 AR R R4 B 3
VIFSESS PR EiSUE JIRCR| TS 3R
RCLE > A B A B — M R A AR B
PIFEAR ) — ZE RS -

266 Zhenro Properties Group Led. 1E 4% Hi & A FL A A

The Group provided guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities granted
by certain banks to the purchasers of the Group’s completed properties
held for sale. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantee arrangements, in
case of default on mortgage payments by the purchasers, the Group is
responsible to repay the outstanding mortgage principals together with
any accrued interest and penalties owed by the defaulted purchasers to

those banks.

Under the above arrangement, the related properties were pledged to
the banks as collateral for the mortgage loans, upon default on mortgage
repayments by these purchasers, the banks are entitled to take over the

legal titles and will realise the pledged properties through open auction.

The Group's guarantee period starts from the dates of grant of the
relevant mortgage loans and ends upon the issuance and registration of
property ownership certificates to the purchasers, which will generally be
available within one to two years after the purchasers take possession of

the relevant properties.
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37.

38.

R AN )

SRR A SR TSI R 1 A A R A
3% T4 3 B 5 ) B 40540 O 4 1A 968
REEEMERELR - ARAHER S
i B A AT AR > B YSE I T S B
e DA 728 A R 78 0 5 it ] £ ]
TS B 5o B S Rt SR A

B ALK

(ZTEUN

A S TR 4 L 52 o LI R
E(WEL4) > HERERNAT1E2
6 o FL BRI — M B R R SRR
S o AR B T DL IR -

R-ZF—tFE+ZA=1+—H > FA%£H
AR SRR A BT 37 B9 A T fh s A A B
TR AT F B R A B AR B R AR T

37.

38.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

The Group did not incur any material losses during the year in respect
of the guarantees provided for mortgage facilities granted to purchasers
of the Group’s completed properties held for sale. The directors of
the Company considered that in case of default on payments, the net
realisable value of the related properties would be sufficient to repay
the outstanding mortgage loans together with any accrued interest and
penalty, and therefore no provision has been made in connection with the

guarantees.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

As lessor

The Group leases out its investment properties (note 14) under operating
lease arrangements with leases negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to
21 years. The terms of leases generally require the tenants to pay security
deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the then

prevailing market conditions.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had total future minimum lease
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants falling

due as follows:

R ZERE

2017 2016

AR ARETFT

RMB'000 RMB'000

—E R Within one year 117,408 54,353
FRERF (BEE RS In the second to fifth years, inclusive 339,528 189,651
HAER After five years 318,365 210,949
775,301 454,953
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38.

39.

Zhenro Properties Group Led. 1E 4% 3 & A FR A 7

BEMBLH

((ZYSiIVN

ALBREREHE LIRS TR
W HEMBNF1IZ 104 HEH
MR TR IR AR o A T E
E o
RE-ZF—tFE+ZA=1+—H > A%£H
AR A T $6 B A8 L 0 O R e e i
HE M HEEMT

38. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties under operating lease
arrangements, negotiated for terms of 1 to 10 years with an option for
renewal after the end of lease terms, at which time all terms will be

renegotiated.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had total future minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

s
2017 2016
ARBFL  ABHTT
RMB'000 RMB'000

—4E R Within one year 45,070 39,005
FBOEEAF (UEE RWE) In the second to fifth years, inclusive 41,161 19,264
HAERL B Over five years 3,340 —

89,571 58,269

R

Wi b 3CHE GE 38 BT R AL Y 48 A K IS
Ab o A B2 B R R B DL T AR
¥

SEARELER
— IS 3t
—BEE
— M1 DA 2 A E A $0R
BEMRE
g

39. COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 38
above, the Group had the following capital commitments at the end of

the reporting period:

“®LE CENF
2017 2016
ARKTE  ARKTTE
RMB'000 RMB'000

Contracted, but no provided for:

— Acquisition of land use rights 1,118,250 163,621
— Properties under development 7,948,776 6,982,580
— Capital contributions payable to
Joint ventures 11,600 —
Associates 90,000 —

9,168,626 7,146,201
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40. BB TR 5
(1) HAWEEF

Il Wt i 44

Name of related party
BoR R sEE

Mzr. Ou Zongrong

@

B R S

M:r. Ou Guogiang
IEREM 2w
Zhenro Group Company

45 (5 ) BB B A R L (T G R )
T4 (6 ) S B TR A

(“Mawei Investment”)

M S S8 A RRA R (TR M EE )
N IE S 308 A R A )

(“Fuzhou Property Management”)
IESEMEEIAE R AT (LI EE )
IERYEEARA A

(“Jiangxi Property Management”)

EARSEM (L) BRARAR (TERSEM(Lg) EXEARAR )

IEAREE (1) BEARA A
(“Zhenro Group (Shanghai) Real Estate Co., Ltd.”)

FEREELEABEEARSE) (ERARGE))

B EREERERBOCEERER)

(“Zhenro LP”)
RUEFRERELERARAR ([ RPEFESR])
RUWERIERBEERARAF

(“Changsha Zhenro Zhengtai”)
REELIETEEARAR ([REET])
REERESAEEARAF

(“Wuhan Zhengsheng”)

MEEXFEHMEARAFA(HERE])
MEREERMERRAH

(“Nanchang Jianmei”)

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Name and relationship

SELACE [ 4 A 1
Relationship with the Group
PR

Controlling Shareholder
PERBLOR

Controlling Shareholder

o 5 PR SR i ) 2~ )
Company controlled by the
Controlling Shareholders

42 B R A2 i B 22 )
Company controlled by the
Controlling Shareholders
2 B R 2 i Y 2 )
Company controlled by the
Controlling Shareholders

2 R i ) 4 )
Company controlled by the
Controlling Shareholders

2 MR R A2 i ) 0 )
Company controlled by the
Controlling Shareholders

2 P A R ol ) B
Entity controlled by the
Controlling Shareholders

T

Joint Venture

TS

Joint Venture

BEMRS

Joint Venture
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40. BT R G 41)
(1) A EBEIG )

L yEA

Name of related party

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(1) Name and relationship (Continued)

SEACEE [ 4 A 1
Relationship with the Group

AR EARA R (AR
AR A PR
(“Hefei Birong”)

A REANEE DS A BR A 7 ([ AR AR J)
A REAIEE 55 e A PR A ]
(“Hefei Hegui”)

TR M AF I B SE A PR ) (T AR M 43 1)
ok S S A PR
(“Suzhou Lingrui”)

TR SR PR A PR ) (TR S )

R M B33 5 e B B A PR
(“Suzhou Aoyuan”)

FR M B B SE A PR m) ([ RN 2 3 )
RN B B A PR A )

(“Suzhou Chengrui”)
BENDKEEARAR (THRENIK])
BENREEARAA

(“Fujian Liwo”)
MEEMEXERAR(TFHEEM])
B IEHEREARA A

(“Nanchang Zhengrun”)

WAL SRR B ARRA R (THALE 8 )

WAL P A A B S A R
(“Hubei Fangtou”)

% L 5L 5 B R A R 7 ([ 3 B )
B Bl o E B B A PR A

(“Jiaxing Zhuosu”)
PRELHT AR Foe ol YNEN(PRE L o )
Kt S B EARA T

(“Tianjin Zhongchu”)
PR R E B RA R A F (TR B8 )

F R R B SRR A R A
(“Nanjing Taiqgi”)

Zhenro Properties Group Led. 1E 4% 3 & A FR A 7

GBS

Joint Venture

CE-ge s

Joint Venture

CE-gied

Joint Venture

GE fied

Joint Venture

BEMRE

Joint Venture

BEMEE

Joint Venture

BEMEE

Joint Venture

CE-ged

Joint Venture

CE-gied

Joint Venture

CE fied

Joint Venture

YN

Associate
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40. BB TR 4n) 40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Concinued)

(1) AW EER )
B 5 4 7R

Name of related party

Name and relationship (Continued)

SELACE [ 4 A 1

Relationship with the Group

KENEE B3 A AR ([ RAESE D) YN

REMELE B A PR A Associate
(“Tianjin Shunji”)

RER RN ERARA R ([REFRE)) YN

REE BN EEARAR Associate
(“Wuhan Qingneng”)

BRI IE R E B R A IR 7 (BRI IEA ) - gNS!

BRM IEAIE SR RA R ) Associate
(“Suzhou Zhengchuang”)

T 07 SR B A R ) (T B e 1) NS

TR BT 4R AE B A PR A Associate
(“Zhengzhou Xinronggui”)

Y B 3 ot B R ] (R B 1) g/

B0 Y b B B A R 7 Associate
(“Zhengzhou Shengqing”)

RN 0 5 ot A A PR D (T M e ) =g/t

i M e i 75 ot A A R ) Associate
(“Suzhou Haoyi”)

EXRAuAEEE ((EXEE]) PEBSBOR I RE R R B A A ISR

ERENEEEE A close family member of the
(“Zhenro Foundation”) Controlling Shareholders

is a director of the charity
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40. BB TT 2 Hh ) 40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
Q) BBHRS (2)  Related party transactions
N BT ETUT RS The following transactions were carried out with related parties

during the year:
T e
2017 2016

ARH T ARWTT
RMB’000  RMB’000

B2 m) B Advances from related companies:
RUWIELIESR Changsha Zhenro Zhengtai 555,468 640,610
BN v Zhengzhou Shengqing 359,883 —
by Hefei Birong 220,030 —
Tk Al Suzhou Ronghui 202,359 —
ik ) L Suzhou Aoyuan 74,910 —
R M S8 i Suzhou Lingrui 15,417 —
TR M 2 B Suzhou Chengrui 13,000 —
IEARSEE A F Zhenro Group Company — 25,523,232
HERE Mawei Investment — 600,000
B IR R EGK Repayment of advances from shareholders:
Ji [ i S 2 Mr. Ou Guogiang 59,138 14,336
BOR S A Mzr. Ou Zongrong 20,718 —
B PR BRI A R #AGK Repayment of advances from related companies:
RN RS Zhengzhou Shengging 320,471 —
RUIERIESR Changsha Zhenro Zhengtai 241,192 640,610
o il Suzhou Ronghui 98,000 =
LB AT Zhenro Group Company — 25,523,232
EREE Mawei Investment — 689,778
IEREE (R BEARAH Zhenro Group (Shanghai) Real Estate
Co., Ltd. — 45,000
T IRR I BGR Advance to a shareholder:
Ji [ i S 2 Mt. Ou Guogiang 6,763 8,210
AT B R G Advances to related companies:
I IE T Wuhan Zhengsheng 3,192,400 8,209,927
RIWIES RS Changsha Zhenro Zhengtai 1,787,046 1,842,994
A A AN AE Hefei Hegui 609,576 —
R R Wuhan Qingneng 342,590 —
KIELE Tianjin Shunji 336,418 —
e Nanjing Taiqi 331,129 —
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40. BT R 5 ()
) BB G 40

ENHLEBOTET U TR S ¢ (4

WP B e
K e o ik
iR 38 i
ME#EX
e L
fiR N IEA
UEIAZEe
TR A )

PR TR A
R 38

(R A6 T B W 2 W £ Bk
RIEET
RUYIESKIER
fiR N IEA
A AR
MBER
IESEEEE A7)

R SR

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(2) Related party transactions (Continued)

The following transactions were carried out with related parties

during the year: (Continued)

Zhengzhou Xinronggui
Tianjin Zhongchu
Suzhou Haoyi
Nanchang Jianmei
Jiaxing Zhuosu

Suzhou Zhengchuang
Hubei Fangtou

Zhenro Group Company

Repayment of advances to a shareholder:

M:r. Ou Guogiang

Repayment of advances to related companies:

Wuhan Zhengsheng
Changsha Zhenro Zhengtai
Suzhou Zhengchuang
Hefei Hegui

Nanchang Jianmei

Zhenro Group Company
Suzhou Haoyi

B R BRI 1 34 IR (BfF5E) ¢ Property management services from

N7 E i

(R ESEgid
RETHELERBEAFN
Btk el IR Bs (BFRE)

Lt
(EFEPARIN
RUIESRIER
B IE T

WL - AR H IR EE S L& Ty 3L R i

TE WP B M AT -

related companies (Note):
Jiangxi Property Management

Fuzhou Property Management

Design consultation services to joint ventures

and an associate (Note):
Zhengzhou Shengqing
Fujian Liwo

Changsha Zhenro Zhengtai
Wuhan Zhengsheng

Note: These transactions were carried out in accordance with the terms and

“F-uf
2017
AR
RMB’000

320,076
279,829
223,561
205,979
188,850
156,387

2

14,973

4,149,576
2,177,046
299,707
231,000
197,809
54,875
40,000

90,941
6,095

1,753
1,123

conditions mutually agreed by the parties involved.
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2016
ARM T
RMB’000

954,286

7,202,751
1,452,994

3,009,465

114,678
8,073

586
275
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40. BT R G 41)

3)  BRBE T AR 5

(1) AR —LETF A=
H o> 42 B FB R DA OF 4% 48 1
] ¥ 270,252,000 i B 13 (=
F—N4E 1 162,151,200 BB
1) E B A< 4E 181 5 2 N R
745,902,000 70 (& — &
0 N B 346,153,000 7 )
T H A S A o

Gy WMZ_ZF—-tHE+ = H
=t+—H> EXEHNA
OB AL A AR
11,473,132,000 TG (=& — N
0 N R %15,600,789,000
TG ) A T 8T T H A £ S AR
R o

R-F—EFE+ZA=+—
H: BERBRED S m
N R %4,822,895,000
T(ZE—AE: AR
3,380,328,000 7T ) # T 8- 17
eSS FRAE A IR o

AE—LEF A=
H > IE4E4E A A RFE
RO EAREM RS A5 AR
9,855,542,000 TG (= & —
o N R #7,411,408,000
T6) % T84T B AR A
PR o

(iii)

(iv)
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

3

Other transactions with related parties

@

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

As at 31 December 2017, the Controlling Shareholders have
pledged 270,252,000 shares (2016:162,151,200) of Zhenro
Group Company for certain of the Group's other borrowings
up to RMB745,902,000 (2016: RMB346,153,000).

As at 31 December 2017, Zhenro Group Company has
guaranteed certain of the Group's bank and other borrowings
up to RMB11,473,132,000 (2016: RMB15,600,789,000).

As at 31 December 2017, the Controlling Shareholders have
guaranteed certain of the bank and other borrowings up to
RMB4,822,895,000 (2016: RMB3,380,328,000).

As at 31 December 2017, Zhenro Group Company and the
Controlling Shareholders have jointly guaranteed certain of
the Group's bank loans up to RMB9,855,542,000 (2016:
RMB7,411,408,000).
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40. BT R 5 ()
() HERRW AR 5 )

(v)

(vi)

WA A - Z—TELH
ST HMRE W EER
EBOLEREREY > 6k
il D) i AR SR 4R
LA 5 ot 2 PR B - B
A F A EAE11.80% £
15.62% > MR A3 M8 H 21
o LM R ERAREE
152 2 T 2E R AR B 4 T
w HEAE AR o A R
—ANEFZH=Z+—H %
H E A PR 1 15 3K 05 3
N R 643,455,000 7C ©
FERRC AR LG A
BRI > BUMERE BARAT
B LA - i =B — L4
+ZA=+—H  A%LEE
[ 1E 48 R4 10 P 5 £

Eod
mh °©

S
Ao ARMERERLSE

614 £ N R ¥ 14,858,000
T(ZFE—ANE: ANRK
2,555,000 7C) °

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Other transactions with related parties (Continued)

v)

(vi)

Pursuant to the investment agreement dated 30 July 2015,
Zhenro Fund established Zhenro LP as a financing vehicle
to provide loans to the Group for real estate development.
The effective annual interest rates ranged from 11.80%
to 15.62% per annum with the maturity periods ranging
from 3 months to one year. The Group granted the income
right from future sales of certain properties to Zhenro LP
as collateral. As at 31 December 2016, the balances of
borrowings from Zhenro LP amounted to RMB643,455,000.
These loans were included in interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings on the face of the consolidated statement
of financial position of the Group. As at 31 December 2017,
the Group has repaid all the borrowings from Zhenro LP.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has donated up
to RMB14,858,000 (2016: RMB2,555,000) to Zhenro

Foundation.
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40. BHYR 75 2 (40) 40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Coninued)
(4) BB ARG SR (4)  Outstanding balances with related parties
- Sl s R -ANE
+ZA=+—H +ZHA=+—H
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
ANR¥FI ANBWTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
JRE SRR Due from a shareholder:
ES= Vil Non trade-related:
T [ i S 2 Mr. Ou Guogiang — 8,210
JRE i PRI 8 ) 3O Due from related companies:
ES =il Non trade-related:
AR FIEE Hefei Hegui 378,576 —
R AE Wuhan Qingneng 342,590 =
KIHNRLE Tianjin Shunji 336,418 =
P AR Nanjing Taiqi 331,129 =
SR S A Zhengzhou Xinronggui 320,076 —
BRE L Tianjin Zhongchu 279,829 =
75 B L Jiaxing Zhuosu 188,850 —
TR i Suzhou Haoyi 183,561 —
BB IEH Nanchang Zhengrun 151,305 —
M IE A Suzhou Zhengchuang 92,387 —
R ET Wuhan Zhengsheng 50,000 1,007,176
MEEE Nanchang Jianmei 8,170 —
iR (7=t Hubei Fangtou 2 —
RUWIELFEZR Changsha Zhenro Zhengtai — 390,000
IEALEH A ) Zhenro Group Company — 54,875
2,662,893 1,452,051
JRE i PR ) RO Due from related companies:
B oM Trade-related:
TLPYH) 3 Jiangxi Property Management 13,206 10,828
LEREVARIN Fujian Liwo 1,860 —
M ) SE 1 B Fuzhou Property Management 16 —
15,082 10,828
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40. BT R 5 ()
(4) HLBRAWE T AR AT AR ()

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(4)  Outstanding balances with related parties (Continued)

S
+ZA=Z+—H +ZA=+—H
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
ANR¥TFI NRWTT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
B ASF P SR Due to shareholders:
FE oM Non trade-related:
[k [ i Sl AR Mzr. Ou Guogiang — 59,138
G i Mzr. Ou Zongrong — 20,718
- 79,856
JRE AT PRI w3 Due to related companies:
G Non trade-related:
RUWIERIES Changsha Zhenro Zhengtai 314,276 —
AR 4 Hefei Birong 220,030 =
Hok ] Fl Suzhou Ronghui 104,359 —
R L Suzhou Aoyuan 74,910 —
B0 B& T Zhengzhou Shengqing 41,734 —
TR S B Suzhou Lingrui 15,417 —
BRN P 3 Suzhou Chengrui 13,000 =
783,726 —
JRE At BR M 2 R 3RO Due to related companies:
UL Trade-related:
TLPG A A Jiangxi Property Management 17,343 7,235
LS8 Fuzhou Property Management 211 413
17,554 7,648

Sl 70 R W A 5 B SRR
w5 L 40 I8 R T

Balances with the above related parties were unsecured, non-

interest-bearing and had no fixed repayment terms.
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40. BWRIT B By a) 40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continucd)
(5) AHEEFEEHABFW (5) Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group

s
2017 2016
ARBFL  ABHTT
RMB’000 RMB 000

i B AR A Short term employee benefits 18,560 11,385
AT HIHE AL A7 A Pension scheme contributions and social welfare 1,209 1,160

Total compensation paid to key

AT R EAE B AL management personnel 19,769 12,545
4 0 — 25 SR R R Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 8 to
FMtars o the financial statements.
41. ﬁﬁﬁjﬂﬁﬂg%ﬂrﬂ 41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
IR R A R4 T EWIERED T The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as

at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

“F—t#HE+-_H=+—H 31 December 2017
LG Financial assets
W] fk B
SREE
iSe: 04 Available
JE Wk IH for-sale
Loans and financial At
receivables assets Total
ANR#ETFL AR¥TT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
T4 B 4 (Ff R 20) Available-for-sale investments (note 20) — 5,000 5,000

FEATEA R ~ Hd K Financial assets included in prepayments
HAOREWGKIAR & MERE  deposits and other receivables (note 24)

(Bif3E 24) 567,607 — 567,607
Z 5y N IE ( Mﬁ‘i 23) Trade receivables (note 23) 15,605 — 15,605
JRE W B e ) Due from related companies 2,677,975 — 2,677,975
2 R B4 ( |9ﬁ i 25) Restricted cash (note 25) 3,931,480 — 3,931,480
B (Fi5E 25) Pledged deposits (note 25) 1,195,303 — 1,195,303
B4 KB &% EY) (B 25) Cash and cash equivalents (note 25) 14,539,485 — 14,539,485

22,927,455 5,000 22,932,455
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41.

5I935 23 0 ik TR )

50 4 T R R B9 R (A
T (#)

"Rt AZ T H )
EmaH

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(Continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as

at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (Continued)

31 December 2017 (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Fe B g AR
HIMR Y

S AR
Financial
liabilities

at amortised

cost

N am

RMB’000

B T WA T R A S (5 26) Trade and bills payables (note 26) 5,539,852
A HC A R Ao 5 T R T ) 4 il 4 Financial liabilities included in other payables

(BftsE 27) and accruals (note 27) 1,075,316

FHRERAT B A 3 (Bt 5k 29) Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings (note 29) 40,061,178

oAl fE S (i EE 30) Corporate bond (note 30) 2,002,359

R ASF AT 2 ) KO Due to related companies 801,280

49,479,985
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41. BB AL m TR ) 41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(Continued)
20 4 B L S Ak 10 oK Y B (a0 The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as
T (E at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (Continued)
“F-ABETZA=Z1T—H 31 December 2016
g s Financial assets
i=v- 03
JRE i 3T
Loans and
receivables
N R
RMB’ 000
FE AT IR ~ $ 8 R ABREUCHIAR) Financial assets included in prepayments, deposits
SR FE (FFF5E 24) and other receivables (note 24) 643,436
2 5 BER A (i 5E 23) Trade receivables (note 23) 10,205
JRE i A W ) T Due from related companies 1,462,879
Rt B A SR Due from a shareholder 8,210
Z R B4 (BT 25) Restricted cash (note 25) 2,984,436
B (B 5E 25) Pledged deposits (note 25) 832,654
B & LB &5 EY (M5 25) Cash and cash equivalents (note 25) 14,689,689
20,631,509
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41.

5I935 23 0 ik TR )

50 4 T R R B9 R (A
T (#

“RANETZAZ A H ()
ES L

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(Continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as

at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (Continued)

31 December 2016 (Continued)

Financial liabilities

FEHRSH A
B 1 45 il
K
Financial
liabilities

at amortised

cost

N RIETr

RMB’ 000

B T WA T R A S (5 26) Trade and bills payables (note 26) 5,506,441
AP A REAT FKIE ~ B il 4 KR Financial liabilities included in other payables,

& Rl B E (FFE27) deposits received and accruals (note 27) 249,884
FHRERAT B A 3 (Bt 5k 29) Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings (note 29) 35,034,061
oAl fE S (i EE 30) Corporate bond (note 30) 1,988,777
JREASH B AU I Due to shareholders 79,856
BB AT R 2 ) 3K Due to related companies 7,648

42,866,667
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42.

S T A B AP
e B
B MR T A 54 - JAD % 9 T
O » AR 4 T SR 06 B A (8
e

42.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial instruments,

other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably approximate to

fair values, are as follows:

HR T AFfE
Carrying amounts Fair values
—“F-tfE —FT-RE ZFBLE —“T-AF
2017 2016 2017 2016
AR¥TE  ARWTT ARETFT ARFTL
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
SR E Financial assets
T fle i Available-for-sale investments 5,000 — 5,000 —
SRR Financial liabilities
At B BT AR Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings 40,061,178 35,034,061 40,027,553 35,088,130
ATl Corporate bond 2,002,359 1,988,777 2,002,078 1,996,770
42,063,537 37,022,838 42,029,631 37,084,990

BEHEC TR AREFEY  CK
AR IR 2~ B 5 BEWCER
52 50 ME A KR B B A 22 4% ~ wE AT 3K
VR~ e At B AR ORI 4 R E
il A H At R AT K T R T T Y 4 R
DA B ML, B AT A W 2 ) L 2
(E BLH R T AR > EER MR L% T
B3| B R -

74 S ) O P o B AR A AR B
O E B TR AT (E R R A BUR KR
JF o BB A B e A AR R o R
KRG IR > BB 00 e TR
(L A 528 ) I ke B P £l L ) 3 S A
BOR o il (E B AR B R -
FERh KRB R HEG A
B4 B A FAEAT T -

Zhenro Properties Group Led. 1E 4% 3 & A FR A 7

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents,
pledged deposits, restricted cash, trade receivables, trade and bills
payables, financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals,
and amounts due from/to related companies approximate to their carrying

amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance manager is
responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. The finance manager reports
directly to the chief financial officer. At each reporting date, the finance
department analyses the movements in the values of financial instruments
and determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation
is reviewed and approved by the chief financial officer. The valuation
results are discussed with the audit committee twice a year for interim

and annual financial reporting.
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42.

a] it i B F
REEHE

Available-for-sale trust

A LA P K A P
& B a)

EMEEMARZAFEUDZTARA
FART#) % 7 AT 2 28 5 (BRIB BUE B
HEBRIN) 2T BB -

w8 R AT B H A AR 2 P (E T A
TE R A B 4 0 B8 % BE I AT Y BB
ek > 5 LB S Bk R SR 2 TR
IR BTGB R - AR AR IR =
F-tHEF+ A=+ HAEFERITR
HAAE 3K 2 A B A B ¥ E I A B
* o

AR 5 1 % T 0 R <5 b Ll P
JH B0 B KA T B i A (L M 2 ] O B
TR A

B 5

Valuation technique

PGB B & i 1
Discounted

cash flow method

and fund investments

42.

Discount rate

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at
the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation

sale.

The fair values of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings have
been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using
rates currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk
and remaining maturities. The Group's own non-performance risk for
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings as at 31 December 2017 was

assessed to be insignificant.

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the valuation of
financial instruments together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as

at each of the end of Relevant Periods:

HAANT AR L YN
Bg i A\ i i H BRI
Significant Sensitivity of fair
unobservable input Range value to the input
Bl 0.72% B LT (TFE) 1% -

HIAPER =R —L4F
TZA=T—HRATFE
Wb () A RH 360 7T

1% increase(decrease)

in discount rate would result
in the decrease(increase)

in fair value of by RMB360
as at 31 December 2017
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42. EWTHMBA VML AT  42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

Jé B ) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Coninued)

NN Fair value hierarchy

TERIRAEB 2R T ERAFETE The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of
JE the Group's financial instruments:

BN PEFTRE E Assets measured at fair value:

AR —tLE+ - H=+—H As at 31 December 2017

3 F DL P Bt B AP

Fair value measurement using

WY EAWBE WAATEE
ZHM O WABE WA
GE—#%)  CGE=#) (B=8)

Quoted prices  Significant  Significant

in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs At
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

ARHTE  ARFTZ  ARETT  ARWTZ
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB 000

A ERE Available-for-sale investments — - 5,000 5,000
REBR - F—NEF -H=4+—H The Group did not have any financial assets measured at fair value as at
WAL T N PRI GRS E - 31 December 2016.

REBBR - FE—LEF _H=+—H The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value as
A MR A T ESENERAECE at 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

—NEE ) o

NARLERE R > 55— 4R BLAE — 4 2 [ 4 During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
INTAHE R 2 s T4 U E B4 between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for
R = A A S (R both financial assets and financial liabilities (2016: Nil).

A o) o
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42. G TR A TP R
J& &% 41)
NG G (41)

i AP A
RE=F—tF+ZA=+—H

>

TV 42

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:

As at 31 December 2017

i FH DA T et i A

Fair value measurement using

WETY EAWEE BAATBE
ZHRE WABE WA
GE—%)  OGE=&)  (B=8)
Quoted prices  Significant  Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs At
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ABWTL  ARWTE  ARKTFT  ARFTFE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
At BEAT R A Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings = 40,027,553 — 40,027,553
ATl Corporate bond 2,002,078 — 2,002,078
2,002,078 40,027,553 — 42,029,631
W E—NEF A=+ —H As at 31 December 2016
GIEIDES ¢ Ty Sa/AS ]
Fair value measurement using
EHTY EAABIE ERATBE
ZHE AR EWABYE
(55 —#k) (EH) (B =%)
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs st
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ANBETT  ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
At B AT RILMIE Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings — 35,088,130 — 35,088,130
Vil Corporate bond 1,996,770 — — 1,996,770
1,996,770 35,088,130 — 37,084,900
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43. WA B 4 B H B R BOR 43.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AEBEMTESB TR T EARHRI SR
MATHIBR > ZRHI B & H 5 Bk
W~ B R MR BOR > ST
BFHAET Bk EE - AEEEAH
i B E 0 BRI B RAT R A
Bk BESRSER - ATRACRAR - 1R AF
st BRI A M TH - B A R 208
BHAMREWCHIR - % F M T RN ER
HITER A A S B L o

A S I 4 T L 7 A Y o B A A
JEL B~ Ah BB 5 R B R B
JaK o — BT o A4 T E Ly B
PREUORST S o AR BOR 15 A B8 AT 7]
MMM EE# TR - ERGREIT
% S AR B > MR ANE

(@ AAREER
74 3 O T ) T 53 5 52 L
L 3 29 BT AR 9 A 4 ISR AT e
AR ST B < %S L 40
T R KA © A5
7 R 18 A LR
i NI

AT —tLEFZA=+—H > i
FE T A oAt 388 i A RS S 5 L T 4R
FHEROF R LT T 1% J
7% S A A A JE 1 R Al i 1 Uk
b/ B N R 5,353,000 76 (
Z—RF 0 ARH3,267,00078)
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AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments mainly include cash and
bank balances, restricted cash, trade receivables, and trade and other
payables, which arise directly from its operations. The Group has other
financial assets and liabilities such as interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, senior notes, convertible notes, financial instruments at fair
value through profit or loss, amounts with related companies and other
receivables. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise

finance for the Group's operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest
rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Generally,
the Group introduces conservative strategies on its risk management. The
Group does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading
purposes. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing

each of these risks and they are summarised below:

(a) Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to risk for changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group's bank and other borrowings
set out in note 29. The Group does not use derivative financial
instruments to hedge interest rate risk. The Group manages its

interest cost using variable rate bank borrowings.

As at 31 December 2017, if the interest rate of bank borrowings
had increased/decreased by 1% and all other variables held
constant, the profit before tax for the year of the Group would
have decreased/increased by approximately RMBS,353,000 (2016:
RMB3,267,000).
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43. S 05 e B 4 B H B R BOR

(%)

(b)

(c)

i R
15 T BBRHS DR 22 55 4 Sl R
R BT HL A 40 BT T SR F R
B o 5 PR = B 1 %
RS -

ENAEEBEARENES » A%
A Sl 5 R 4 o o AR SR B
F— LR A SR AT A ORI R AR
52 g

AEEHeMERE (EREHFHR
& RO KA &
R B W 2 )5 IRL) 19 £ L e
BB ETF @A) B T B A
KIEBR S R %5 T RRHRTE(E o

L0 < L

ALY F R B A LR
T Ht 8 A e S S M e
PR B2 T4 - A%
R Y B B

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

(©)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss due to the inability or unwillingness
of a counterparty to meet its contractual obligations. Exposure
to credit risk arises primarily from its financing activities to

customers.

The Group has no concentrations of credit risk in view of its large
number of customers. The Group did not record any significant

bad debt losses during the year 2017.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which mainly
comprise cash and pledged deposits, other receivables, and amounts
due from related companies, arises from default of the counterparty,
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these

instruments.

Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings and senior notes. Cash flows are being closely

monitored on an ongoing basis.
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43. WM PSP H B KK 43 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

(#5) AND POLICIES (Continued)
(© TRENE SR K ) (¢) Liquidity risk (Continued)
AR [ A AR R A A AR I B The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the
FETE Y 4 Bl & E i 23 W end of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted
o payments, is as follows:
wEK  3MAUR 3ERMAA IEDE
Less than 3t012 Over 1 At
On demand 3 months months year Total

AEHTE  ARETE  AEKFZ  ARETZ  ARKTZ
RMB'000  RMB'009  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000

ZFZ—tHE+ZH=1+—H 31 December 2017

at BAAT R A AR Incerest-bearing bank and

other borrowings - 2,158,489 20,441,910 20,132,452 42,732,851
NGl Corporate bond — - 2,128,000 - 2,128,000
BOEMSEREMNTESE  Trade and bills payables 5,539,852 - - - 5,539,852
JREATSIR Other payables 4 471,244 - — - 4,471,244
A BRI 2 10K Due to related companies 801,280 - - - 801,280

10,812,376, 2,158,489 22,569,910 20,132,452 55,673,227

FER 3EAME 3ELMEA VEULE
Less than 3t012 Over 1 ot
On demand 3 months months year Total
AEHT ANEW T NE¥ T AR¥ T ANEW T
RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB'000

“Z-NEFZHZ1+—H 31 December 2016

Figss YN ILEN Interest-bearing bank

and other borrowings — 2,114,986 10,653,312 26,635,452 39,403,750
Ar)fES Corporate bond = = 128,000 2,256,000 2,384,000
O FEREMR TS Trade and bills payables 5,506,441 — — — 5,506,441
Hof e At 20E Other payables 968,033 - — — 968,033
JE A5t B R0 Due to shareholdets 79,856 — — — 79,856
A5 BR 4 7 50R Due to related companies 7,648 — — — 7,648

6,561,978 2,114,986 10,781,312 28,891,452 48,349,728
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43, B MBS H B KK 43 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
(#5) AND POLICIES (Continued)

d) EAREH
7 4 A TG £ R
i S B AT A S A R RO

A HAREBEST - PLCHRH R
PR B (oK AL -

7SR B AR R AL IR D A AL B
BB EALUNE o JAERs Sl %
EALNE > A E S BIR AT T A
FE S, B B AR ] HR S B AT 40
FBEAE A

AR R T B A GUR (B
PR LA A SRR DL RS (2 A
ARELEEA o A SR WA B T
AR SRAT BOH A SR
8 ATHURCEER ARG B
JEABRIE S AT 52408 MR 3K
AR IR B - &P BB K
BESFEY - EREALFAHEAA
FEALRESE o FASR A IR Y B A A
BT

(d)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and

maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue

new shares.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Group includes,
within net debt, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings,
senior notes, convertible notes, corporate bond, trade and bills
payables, other payables and accruals, advances from customers,
less cash and cash equivalents. Capital includes equity attributable
to the owners of the Company. The gearing ratios as at the end of

the reporting periods were as follows:

R TR

+ZA=Z+—H +ZH=Z1T—H

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

AR ARETFIL

RMB’ 000 RMB’000

B 5 A 3R I B o 4 Trade and bills payables 5,539,852 5,506,441
HoABERTHE ~ E it & BMERE ] Other payables, deposits received and accruals 4,471,244 968,033
AT ARAT B A E 2 Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 40,061,178 35,034,061
UNGiles Corporate bond 2,002,359 1,988,777
JRE At i B TR Due to shareholders — 79,856
JEAT BRI/ R B Due to related companies 801,280 7,648
B HekEE%EY Less: Cash and cash equivalents (14,539,485) (14,689,689)
s A Net debt 38,336,428 28,895,127
AR NG R Equity attributable to owners of the Company 8,178,784 7,974,754
AR R BT R Capital and net debt 46,515,212 36,869,881
ERARR Gearing ratio 82% 78%
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44, WEHIH I

45.
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(1) EEARA A R E WA L
5 Fi A R4S w (T &8 i 1) B i
M5 > & 8 & {80.00001 % JT 1)
1,000,000,000 B -4 i £ 4% 75 i
98 i 3.99 ¥ T 1 (B A% B AT 4R
B4 AR 1E £ 3,990,000,000 # 76 (K
REATIBR A G 2 ~ I 48 DA A A B
) e i 2,999,950,000 % B 473 3 4%
EARAL AT o AN A B —
F— \4E— H +75 B B A 7E 8 52 Br

b
HHE °

2 RoF—/METHH O HERK
ORI MAARDR -
F— EZA L HiEER3.99 #0
ficl % 1% 3547 123,000,000 % 5F 41
o

A2 ) B 5R DL

THRA IR 4 B4 TR IR % 0
EORHTT

44. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(1)  In connection with the Listing of the shares of the Company on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”),
1,000,000,000 new ordinary shares with a nominal value of
US$0.00001 each were issued at a price of HK$3.99 per ordinary
share for a total cash consideration of HK$3,990,000,000, before
deducting underwriting fees, commissions and related expenses.
And 2,999,950,000 shares were issued by way of capitalisation.
Dealings in the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange

commenced on 16 January 2018.

(2)  On 2 February 2018, the over-allotment option has been partially
exercised and the Company allotted and issued 123,000,000
additional shares at HK$3.99 per share on 7 February 2018.

45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at

the end of the reporting period is as follows:
e
2017 2016

ABHTE  ARKTT
RMB’000  RMB’000

LB CURRENT ASSETS
Ba KB EEEY Cash and cash equivalents 31,004 —
TEATFRIE ~ e I H A RE N SRR Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 14,612 —
JRE i A ) KO Due from related companies 330,176 —
it B AR Total current assets 375,792 —
AR CURRENT LIABILITIES
JRE AT R W ) T Due to related companies 415,140 —
T B AR Total current liabilities 415,140 —
LR NET CURRENT ASSETS (39,348) —
WE AR A TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT

LIABILITIES (39,348) —
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31 December 2017

45. ARG BB LR )

TA R IR - A B A 2> 7 B8 IR DL 3 Y

BERWT ¢ ()

45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY (Continued)

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at

the end of the reporting period is as follows: (Continued)

A L
2017 2016
ANBETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB 000
T Net assets (39,348) —
R EQUITY
A Share capital 3 —
fit Reserves (39,351) —
1 1 KR Total equity (39,348) =
Mr. Huang Xianzhi Mr. Lin Zhaoyang
K S A: Bt
Director Director
#F #F
WRE - Note:
RN F Y REREE T - A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:
JBe A i AR e Pk B8 i At
Share premium Retained
account profits Total
ARHET ARWFTIL ARHFTI
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R-F—LE-A—HRK Balance at 1 January 2017 and 31 December 2016
“ER-NEFZAZt—H
45 B — — —
BATHR Issuance of new shares 3 — 3
A 7 s B B 4 T e A SRR Loss and total comprehensive income for the year - (39,351) (39,351)
R-F—LE+ZA=+—H
1 45 Balance at 31 December 2017 3 (39,351) (39,348)

46. TR

MBEREL R T /NE=H -+ /\H

e e AT 8 -

46. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the

board of directors on 28 March 2018.
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Financial Summary

BET A=+ —HIE4RE
Year ended 31 December

R ZENE R —ER 4

2017 2016 2015 2014

AR ANREF T ANREF T ANREF T

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB 000

e Revenue 19,995,061 14,603,520 4,310,180 3,039,559

GNPl Profit for the year 1,521,394 1,243,222 418,939 80,101

E/NGIE 2N Profit for the year
JREAG 4 7K 355 ) attributable to owners
of the Company 1,408,876 1,183,256 418,737 53,359
wt+—A=+—H
As at 31 December

R4 TR TER—HAE ZAR— AR

2017 2016 2015 2014

ARIETI NR¥TFor ANRETFT ANRWETFT

RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000

IE B G Non-current assets 11,421,656 8,732,711 6,417,900 4,397,400

L Current assets 95,000,014 78,025,956 53,103,800 39,130,493

jogrg ot Total assets 106,421,670 86,758,667 59,521,700 43,527,893

F Ui & & Non-current liabilities 19,647,177 27,263,007 16,419,481 16,640,138

) A Current liabilities 74,550,192 50,505,729 36,791,657 25,215,307

g4 Total liabilities 94,197,369 77,768,736 53,211,138 41,855,445

4 AR Total equity 12,224,301 8,989,931 6,310,562 1,672,448
EN/NGIE: DN Total equity attributable to

JREA B 55 4 AR owners of the Company 8,178,784 7,974,754 6,149,013 1,560,796

Zhenro Properties Group Led. 1E 4% 3 & A FR A 7
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